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Virgin Wines UK plc uses a datadriven,
open source buying model to deliver
outstanding quality, value and service
to both its direct-to-consumer and

commercial channels.
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Group at a glance

Financial highlights

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA!

£69.2m £6.2m

FYzl £7.0m
ity M VIge TR B 4 D ok e
§ xia e

Profit Before Tax (and exceptional items) % Grass Profit

£5.1m 31.4%

FY22 31.4%

Adjusted EBITDA as % of Revenue Case Velumes

9.0%

FY22 9.0%

FY21 9.5%

Sk

1 EBtTL adjusted [ eaent ~alitese

Comparatoee nl nbers forb <0 arc unaudited
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Strong balance sheet B 2l 371 |
The balance sheet ' I L
remains resilient with

£15.1m £7.m

Gross cash? Net cash*
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Business and operational overview

As adirect-to-consumer drinks retailer, we offer a
comprehensive range of wines, beers, spirits and gifts
delivered next day to any address across the UK.

Ourlocations
We have around 196 employees, operating
from three locations across the UK.

o Norwich HQ 9 Preston Distribution Centre 9 Bolton Distribution Centre

Our headquarters in Norwich is hame Cur Preston site serves as our primary In Qctober 2020, we opened a new

to the majority of our teams, including picking and packing centre and is also distribution centre in Bolton. It has 50,600

Buying, Seles, IT, Design, Marketing, Wine home to our Finance department. The sq ft of bonded warehousing and can

Advisors and Customer Services. site comprises 56,000 sq ft of bonded match the pick 2nd pack capacity of our
warehousing, which operates 24 hours a Preston site.

day and has the capacity to pick and pack
700,000 12-bottle mixed cases per annum.






40+

trusted
winemaking
partners

We have alarge and trusted network of
over 40 wine-making partners that we
work with across the globe.

CPO 15,800+
Q five star ratings

on Trustpilot

We are delighted to be rated excellent on

Trustpilot with over 15,800 5 star ratings.

' BteategicRepoft Governance Report . - Financial Statements o8
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Voted %
‘Online Retailer .
of the Year’

at the Drinks Retailing Awards

We were proud to be voted ‘Online Retailer

of the Year’ in 2022, This was the third e
time in the last 6 years we were awarded

this prestigious title.

fr'

Q
f o3
"

g o O employees
Qoo

We have 196 employees across three
locationsin Norwich, Preston and Bolton.
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Group at a glance continued

Key performance highlights and trends

Customer acquisition

A disciplined

. Number of new Costperrecruit (+ )and
bu S1ness mo del customers acquired net investment per new recruit (I}
d . . 000 £s
elivering | .
. 190 I 1 P
predictable N noo
o W b
A 3
outcomes « © b
40 4 k
4 e £
2 3 2 7 £
E . b
F¥19 FY21 FY22 FYlg FY20
Definitions
New recruits Payback Conversion rate of new customers
Customers making their lirst purchase Syears(l ) 10years(H) onto subscription schemes
inthe year. X Return %
7 1060
Ciost perrecruit
Custorner acquisition cost divided by ¢ 80
number of new racruits. s
4 60 .\/"\‘
Net investment per new recruit 3 20
Customer acquisition cost + s
contribution from recruitment case | 20
after fulfilment costs divided by
number Of new recruits. 0 FY22 v FY19 FY¥2Q Fyz21l £¥22
Payback
Number of times repeathntr:butlon Customers
payback compared to net investment _—
EESI per new recruit at 5 years and Active customers Sales retention rate
years.
‘000s %
Conversionrate 200 120
New customers ordering a second case _ o '/a———\‘
divided by the number of new recruits, 150 {
: 80
Active customers : b 0
Repeat customers ordering within the W , ¢ i ’
last 12 months. w ; : a0
Sales retention rate . : 2
Percentage Of sales from historical ¢ : FY19 ) FY20 F¥21 FY22 v FY19 FY20 F¥21 FY22
cohorts in the current year divided by
their sales from the prior year,
Customer retention rate Gustomer retention rate Trade rate
Percentage of repeat customers from % Y%
historical cohorts active in the current 166 100
year divided by the active number . 50
from the prior year. . - - -
e 60
Traderate
Percentage of customers in the opening 40 40
active base reordering within
20 20
12 months.
R = =" S = S 2t S > 2 S
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WineBank

WineBank revenue

£m
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Financial Statements

Definitions

WineBank revenue
Repeat sales from WineBank
customers.

WineBank deposits
Value of WineBank customer deposits
held at the year end.

Membership total
Total custoimers with a subscription
membership.

Membership cancellation rates
Membership cancels from active
customers.

Average order value
Wine advisor service.

Average gross profit
Wine advisor service.

Revenue
Annual revenue Wine advisor service.

Active Advisors
Number of Wine advisors.

o7
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enjoyable

1. Our purpose 2. Ourvision

Our purpose is to make people’s lives more To become the UK’s most loved drinks retailer
enjoyable. We think life should be funand and to grow market share in the significant
want our wines to be the soundtrack to the UK wine, beer and spirit markets.

best times of their life.

e Our culture Our strategy
T Wi —
s~ Ourunique culture is the foundation from . We have a clear and bold strategy for future .
' which our business thrives. Since our growth. Our strategic objectives: - ae

inception, we've heen on a mission to deliver
acongistently cutstanding wine buying
PR  cxperience. We are passionate about our
people, our partners and our customers.

Maximising Quality and Value
Through Unique Buying Model

Acquire Large Numbers of Low Cost,

High Quality Customers
Our values Maximise LTV Through High Conversion
and Retention Rates
Passionate

- Drive Growthin our Commercial Channel

Heartfelt Service
Straight Up

Insatiable Guriosity . Cur visicn lays cut where we want to

get to, and our strategy describes how

© Smart Disruption we plan to achieve that vision.

- Delightfully Surprising

+  We are Family

Se Poveviete delvering on our
strategy cn pages 14 to 19

.:"»’,:; Our purpose defines the reason
we exist, and our culture describes
how we do business.

See howwe cved gur vinaes
durngthe yeoron page 10
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3. Our ESG ambition

To be aleader in creating positive impacts on
our environment and communities within the
drinksindustry.

We work hard to implement sustainable
business practices and believe in ensuring
a positive impact from grape to glass.

Our ESG ambiticn states our sustainability
goals, and our approach will take us on
that journey.

4. Positive stakeholder
outcomes

Building and maintaining strong
relationghips with and generating
long-term, sustainable value for:

Gustomers

Employees

Investors

Partners and suppliers
Communities

All of these aligned elements will enable us
to deliver our purpose for our stakeholders.

Making people’s lives
more enjoyable
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Living our values

How we deliver is as important
as what we deliver

Our core values ensure that everyone understands, and is aligned behind,
what we stand for alongside the culture and environment we have created.

Passionate

What it means

This is our energy. We are passionate about

wine, gur customers, our people and the
business we have created.

Heartfelt service

What it means

Ourservice is warm, friendly and effective,

We love to solve problems and we treat
customers tike family.

Straight up

What it means

We are fair, transparent, honest and
ethical in all that we do.

How welived it during the year

we are proud to have close relationships
with our winemakers, and to be back

at source, working hand-in-hand with
them, creating the perfect bespoke
blends of wines for our customers.

é For more information see
our ¢se study on page 20

How welived it during the year

We were proud to have been named
Specialist Online Drinks Retailer 2022 at
the Drinks Retailing Awards, as well as
winning Bronze in the Contact Centre
of the Year category at the UK National
Contact Centre Awards.

How welived it during the year

We are committed to ensuring all the
products we sell are created through

the operation of an ethicai supply chain,
which is why we strengthened our
supply chain due diligence, including the
creation of a Supplier Code of Conduct.
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Insatiable curiosity

What it means

We are interested in what people love
and how to evolve and do things better
in arapidly changing world.

Smart disruption

What it means
We challenge conventions to cormne up with

different and better ways of doing business.

Financial Statemernts

How we lived it during the year

The number of vegans in Great Britain
quadrupled between 2014 and 2019,
which is why we are proud to be leading
the way in sourcing quality vegan wines.
Currently over 60% of ourwine range s
suitable for vegans.

How welived it during the year

For us, better business means being a
sustainable business, which is why we are
proud to be in the process of becoming a
Carbon Neutrai business, as a step on our
journey to becaming Net Zero,

é For more information see our
sustainability section on page 28

Delightfully surprising

What it means

We always deliver the basics brilliantly but
love to go the extra mile with unexpected
touches that make people smile.

We are family

What it means

A sense of belonging, where everyone feels
welcome. Each person feels recognised,
understood and rewarded; a part of the
bigger Virgin family.

How we lived it during the year

In celebration of the Platinum Jubilec,
the Virgin Wines team collaborated with
East Sussex vineyard, Henners, to create
300 bottles of exclusive, small batch,
commemorative sparkling wine, The
label artwork was also designed by our
in-house team.

How we lived it during the year

We started working with the Norfolk LGBT
Project to support our mission of being
an inclusive employer. This included
surveying our employees to see how
inclusive they felt their workplace was.

For more information see
Qur case stidy on page 32

11
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Market overview

The UK has the world’s sixth largest wine market.
Wine consumption in the UK is heavily weighted
towards off-trade channels such as supermarkets,
off licences and wine specialists like Virgin Wines.
In the twelve months up to the end of June 2022, 70%
of the total UK wine volume was sold through the off-
trade compared to 50% consumed in the on-trade.

't/

Our markets

Off-trade wine market Trends
' . Australia continues to
o untry and is the ¢

weenvolume and value, most

premitrmisation and a variety of Amongst the w h‘t( wine:

increased costs, top spot followed by Pinot LHQ\U and Chardonnay for both
volume and valuel).

Pricing - Amongst the red wine varieties, Merlot continued as the

i £ most popular red wine varietal by volume, followed by

Shiraz and Malbec,

UK Wine Market UK Off-trade Market
£bn £bn

. P : o o -
2018 2019 2020 2021 2018 2019

Sabey 1. = sl vanes fotfimdwine spacne and chamoaens Datarete <t the Lome ko an o I uns 2002 & ane- WS EA

A A f"f”‘ 4™ 'w’p"" m‘&

i . n-&

Virg in Wines has increased market share
from 6.1% to 8.4% in the last year, according
to mdustry benchmark IBISWorld.

o ?#
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Macroeconomic trends

Governance Report
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« Incicased cost of living has left consumers with lower disposable income, driven by highinflation rates.increased costs across all goods

and services, plus rapidly rising energy prices,

+ The Russia-Ukraine war has put pressure on both commodity prices and supply chains.
The war has also impacied the supply ot glass, and there are concerns there will be furthier glass shortages in Europe due to the rising

energy costs.

Market trends

1. The rise of lowand no

alcohol

The UK is the 5th largest no and low
alcohol market by volume according to
research from the IWSR, and the market
will continue to grow, with an expected
6% CAGR between now and 2025,

Recent research has found that those
that regularly drink alcohol also buy
products from the low and no category:

+ Research carried outin December by
the Portman Group discovered that
almost one in three (329) UK drinkers
now ‘semi-regularly’ consume low
and no alcohol products compared
to one in four {25%) in 2020.

+ A 2022 report by Kam Research and
Insight found that people who drink
11-20 units of alcohol per week on
average are most frequently buying
products in the low and no category.
“There's o common misconception
that teetotallers are driving growth,”
Katy Moses, Kam MD.

The low and no market is dominated by
beers, with the spirits category enjoying
a growth in popularity. however wine
continues to lag within the category,
mainly due to struggling to meet

the benchmark of what wine should
taste like (Wine intelligence and

JWSR research).

2. Changes to the

ecommercelandscape

This financial year we saw the return of
the high street as pandemic restrictions
were removed, and with that came
afallin ecommerce sales. Whilst the
percentage of sales online has declined
YOY, they are still firmly up on pre-
pandemic saies.

Gizemn Gunday, partner at McKinsey &
Company, noted, “Our analysis shows
that we're not going to see a full-scale
return from online shopping back to
bricks and mortar stores. In fact, 92% of
consumers said they plan to continue
spending online post-pandemic, internet
retailing”.

According to ONS data:

- Internet sales accounted for 22.73%
of total retail sales during FY20 (July
2019 - June 2020}, with sales in
February 2019 accounting for 19.1%
of sales.

- During the pandemic and cur FY21
{July 2020 - June 2021) ecommerce
retail sales hitan average of 31.23%.

»  Whilst ecommerce sales have
seen a drop post-pandemic, this
financiaf year {July 2021 - June 2022)
ecommerce sales stitl account for
28.14% of retail sales. Thisis 9pp
above the pre-pandemic share.

3. Growth forecast for the
UK alcohol ecommerce
market

Whilst the UK alcohot ecommerce
market has failen post-pandemic, in
line with the decline of the overall
ecommerce market, itis predicted to
return to growth in the coming years.

i the fatest IBISWorld ‘Online Alcohol
Retailing in the UK’ report, it predicts
that over the five years through to 2027,
the market is expected to grow in value
at a CAGR of 8.4%.

This is supported by IWSR predictions that
by 2024, the total value of online alcohol
sales in the UK will be 50% higher than it
was in 2019, reaching £2.8bn.

IWSR UK ecommerce
market share
forecast 2024

® Wine 51%

Wine is the most developed ecommerce
category Itis also expected to generate the
highest incremental value, with a forccast
value 846 CAGR, 2019 ta 2024

@ Beer/Gider/RTDs*29%

Beer currently accounts for 25% of valuc
sales onbing, but1s expecied to gain share
slightty over the next five years,

@& Spirits 20%

Afifth of ecommerce alv ohal sales are
made up of spints.

CREDTL - Read s todnnre
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Our business model

From grape to glass

We operate a unique business model that delivers
large numbers of quality customers, high levels of
sales and customer retention whilst generating

industry leading levels of profit.

Four key pillars of the model

00

2
Wine Customer
Buying Acquisition

Our open-source
buying model allows
us to maximise

We acquire large
numbers of new
customers, at low

global wine buying cost, to deliver
opportunities. highlevels of
payback and return
coninvestment.

IR wv;.-€ TR N

=

3
A Loyal
Customer Base

We retain customers
through a number
of consumer
propositions and
subscription
gchemes delivering
sales and customer
retention ratesin
excess of 90%.

w T P

Al g T

Operational
Excellence

Our award-winning
customer service
team manage
every point of
contact with our
customers and our
in-house fulfilment
centres ensure the
highestlevels of
efficiency, speed
and care within
our warehouse
and distribution
functions.
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f@% 1- Wine Buying

We operate a unique, open source buying model,

Financial Statements 18

that allows us to focus on making our wines
where we can find the best quality Grapes, at
the best value prices, and stylistically blending
them to match the tastes of our customers.

Open-source buying

Finding the best quality grapes every
vintage, that deliver the best value, is
fundamental to the buying model, Grapes
are an agricultural product, and as such vary
in yield, quality and cost from vintage to
vintage and region to regicn. Having a wide
network of trusted and loyal winemaking
partners across the globe, gives us the
flexibility to focus our winemaking on
wherever we can lind the best value, every
year in both the northern and southern
hemispheres.

Driven by data

Our highly engaged customers rate and
review our wines in their thousands every
week. This datais continuously analysed
and referenced to understand themes and
trends in customer preferences which can
then be utilised in the stylistic profiling of
each wine made. This continual focus on
marginal stylistic improvements helps to
ensure we can refine and improve the taste
profile of our wines, year after year.

Exclusive wines

93% of wines sold by volume are exclusive to
Virgin Wines. Due to the fact we are blending
the wines at source to match our customers’
taste profiles means they are being exclusively
made in conjunction with our winemaking
partners around the world, specifically

for Virgin Wines. As well as this pivingus a
portfolic of unique wines that we believe
deliver the very best qualitysvalue ratics, it
also delivers three other key benefits:

1 - Customers who love the wines they
receive from Virgin Wines come back again
and again to purchase those wines,

2 - We control the pricing of the wines
based on the skill of the wine buyers
and winemakers delivering the highest
value ratios possible, rather than price
matching brands,

3 - We are in complete control of the
product architecture to ensure
everything frem the design of the label
Lo the weight and shape of the bottle are
exactly to our own specification.

Summary

This ability to materially influence the
winemaking process gives us the flexibility
to ensurewe can build our range éxactly to
our reguirements, delivering to customers
the very highest quality/value ratios while
ensuring we can maintain gross margins in
conjunction with consistently improving
the taste profiles of our wines to match
the stylistic preferences of our customers
through the use of data.



Our business model continued

2 - Customer Acquisition

Virgin Wines UK ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022

The ability to acquire large numbers of high-

quality customers at a low cost per recruit has

been a ftundamental element of our business
model which delivers high levels of return on
investment and 5-year payback rates of 5x.

Delivering New Customers Through a Variety of Channels

Partnerships

Yirgin Wines partners with a wide variety
of businesses to offer their customers a
special offer on a selection of wines. These
partnerships can range from relatively
small businesses wishing to partake in a
one-off opportunity to deliver added value
to their customers, threugh to large scale
partners where a full annual marketing and
promotional plan is agreed.

We are delighted to have partnered with
over 350 different organisations over the
past 12 months.

Digital and social

We use a variety of digital and social activity
te deliver new customers into the business.
These include SEO, Google Shopping, paid
search {both branded and non-brand)
alongside programinatic, Facebook and
native advertising.

Web

Our brand visibility and PR delivers a
significant volume of organic traffic that then
converts those potential customers through
avariety of mechanics onto one of our
consumer propositions.

Telemarketing

We use an outsourced telemarketing agency
to re-engage with customers who have
lapsed from being an active customer with
Virgin Wines to bring them back into the fold.

CRM

Our comprehensive CRM programme
includes the targeting of previous customers
wheo have failed to purchase for over 24
months.
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3 - A Loyal Customer Base

Financial Statements 17

We have developed aunique suite of different

consumer propositions and subscription services
that attract a wide variety of different customers.
These have been devised to keep customers loyal
and to offer the ideal service no matter where the
customer is in their wine buying journey.

Subscription Schemes

WineBank

Our most popular service with 130k members, that allows
customers to spread the cost of buying wine by saving an
amount of tneir choice each month (between E15-£100]

ard in turn they receve 2090 Tnterest' to then spend onwine
inthe future, as well as free express delivery to their door.

Wine Plan

Other Retention Services

Wine Bdvisor

We have a 45 strong team of qualified Wine Advisars who offer a
ane-to-one, personal service Lo approximately 45k customers
This s afree service and customers enioy the attention of 2
single person who finds out the styles of wines they like so they
can recommend specific vanes from across our full portfolio, as
well as dealing with any advice or service 1ssues the customer
may have.

Aservice that delivers a selection of our wine buyers favourite
picks, delivered to the customer every guarter and at Chiristmas,
as a perfect, hassle free way to heep a customer’s wine rack
topped up with quality wine.

Pay As You Go

This service has been aesigned tor customers whao wish to use
Virgin Wines as and when they ke withoul being part of any

subscription scrvice or having the interaction of a personal
wine Advisor. Custoniers have full access to all the products
offered but dor'treceive the other benetits that customers on
the subscription or Wine Advisor services enjoy.

o

[@5 4 - Operational Excellence

We operate our own distribution centres,
based in Bolton and Preston, which deliver high
productivity, outstandinglevels of accuracy

and low fulfilment costs.

Customercare

All our customer sorvice 15 also operated i house where Lthe fecusis on one-call
resolulion, lop guanty conversations and high levels of efficiency helping boitd loyalty,
trust and repeat purchases,

Delivering an exceptional customer experience 1s at the hear L of ow brand proposition,
ensuring every conversation or louchpoint that our team have vath customers results m
anodtstanding eipenence, in ine with our puipose and values.

We were delighted this year whon our cuslomer service leam were recognised as one
of the lincst in the UK when they were awarded the bionze award for ‘Contact Cenire
of the Year’ at the National Contact Centre Awards,

Warehouse and fulfilment

We have over 100k sq frof fully Sonded
warehousing space frontwhich all our cases
are proxed, packed and distribotea, The
ability to have this fund tion under our own
control increases operational flexibility, cost
efficiency and produc tivity.
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drive growth in both our core plroposﬂcloni
and our Commercial busmess “

Strategic objectives

Drive customer
acquisition through
increased strategic
partnerships

Maximise gross
margin through
our Open Source
Buying Model

T
Tk

Grow the WineBank
membership through
conversion and
retention

Delivering high quality customers at low cost is at the heart of our business
model. The most preductive way to achieve that dual aim is to work
with business partners who have a customer base that is well aligned
demographically to our own. We have been delighted to have made significant
progress during the second half of FY22 in this regard and we aim to continue to
grow this area of our acquisition strategy, particutarly focusing on a handful of
new partnerships with significant scale and tenure.

-y
With cost pressures continuing to increase on dry goods and freight, it is more
impertant than ever that our focus on maximising the value we can derive from
our wine buying, is higher than ever. Our ahility to increase the percerntage of
wines we source from areas where there are the best quality/value ratios is
fundamental to our business model, and we are optimistic that over the coming
year there will be opportunities 1o drive margins in Australia, South Africa and
Spain, amongst others.

Our flagship WineBank scheme currently has 130k members and these loyal
o the growth of the core business. Our custon sition
altracting new customers to this main subscriptior fice
o) m)gmmme is the main driver o recry
ion and r £ e rurtumwr

1epurn@y to minimise early ‘drop « g customers

. The rolling 12-month cancellation rate on WineBank
and iLis cur aim to minimise any increase in this, evenina

cconomic climate.




Growth of our
Commercial channel

Adjacent product
categories

Our people

Prioritising
our ESG Policy

We have been greatly encouraged by the epportunities we have identified in the
Commercial area of our business. Over the past year we have seen the launch

of our partnership with Moonpig and both businesses see substantial scope

1o increase both the existing business as well as having identified a number

of incremental cpportunities. Similarly, we have continued to increase our
footprint within the travel sector. Successful long-term partnerships with LNER
and Avanti have led to a new relationship with Great Western Railway which we
have been delighted 10 secure. We see exciling growth prospects in this channel
and driving this further is a major strategic goal over the coming months.

é See oJrase study cnLammendia
[USIess Nr page 22
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We have refined our beer and spirit offering over the past year, concentrating

on developing our exclusive range whilst giving our WineBank customers the
opportunity to receive preferentiat pricing. This focus on driving beer and spirit
sales as incremental add-ons for our existing customers to enjoy, as opposed 1o
acquiring new ‘beer and spirit” members is the favoured strategic direction given
the cost of acquisition, the average order values and the cash margin within
these two categories at the current time.

Following the high demand during the Covid lockdowns, it has been a

tougher climate for our gift offering to thrive. Despite this we have continued
to drive new product development and cur advent calendars still prove to be
extremely popular. We are also optimistic about the size of the opportunity tor
personalised tabels following the recent launch of this service.

A . B ..\N\‘. ”‘ ?f'u..l '.1‘L
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We believe that the best businesses are built from the inside aut. We focus on
developing the cutstanding talent we have within our business and ensuring
that the culture we have created is conducive Lo ensuring everyone has

the opportunity to grow, learn and fulfil their professional ambitions in an
enthusiastic, energetic, vibrant and inclusive envirenment.

We are also focused on the physical and mental welibeing of our colleagues.
Amangst several initiatives, we continue to invest In the Employee Assistance
Service which gives a range of free services to all staff, from counselling to
financial advice.

We are atso committed to the development of our teams, and we are delighted
that we have supported more employees than ever in gaining new qualifications
orincreased skills. It is core to our philosophy and our values that we support
and develop our people in every way we can, and we will continue to do so over
the coming financial year,

Central to our environmental strategy is ensuring we are achieving our short-
and longer-term goals. These include becaming the first online wine retailer

to achieve Carbon Neutrat status, which we aim to achieve by the end of 2022,
Following on from this we will be setting near-term science-based targets and
producing a carban reduction roadmap as part of our application Lo the Science
Based Target Initiative (SBTI). These mitestones wiil take us on our journey
towards our ultimate goal of becoming a Net Zero business by 2045,
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Strategy in action

South Africa @
2022 Vintage é

Our Wine Buying Model

Our open source wine buying strategy allows us to curate ourown
exclusive ranges of wine brands. This means that we can find the
best grapes, from the best regions each vintage and produce quality
wines at prices that represent the finest value to our customers.

After years of not being able to travel due to Covid, this year saw the return of our wine
buying team being able to get back to blending at source. This included a trip to South
Africa where we have many longstanding relationships with trusted winemakers.

Wildeberg Winery Leeuwenkuil Family Vineyards

This is a long-time partnership that continues to thrive and This is a well-known name in the Cape owned by Willie &
grow with each vintage and the source of our top-rated Billy ~ Emma Dreyer, but a brand-new source for Virgin Wines.

Bosch collection. Whilst there we alsc worked on a new They recently built a new state-of-the-art winery with much
project where we had highlighted three unique parcels of greater capacity, and with that more opportunity to create
grapes, from specific sites with the winemakers Ryno and exclusive blends in styles we know work. Whiist there we

JD in the previous vintage ~ through a long distance tasting  created some exclusive blends specifically for our Discovery
via Zoomm rather than in person - which they'd harvested Club that highlights how progressive the Cape is - a Rhone
and vinified separately for us. We blended these wines up inspired white and a pure Grenache Neir from stunning
during our visit and we are excited to be launching these Swartland dry farmed vines.

cuvées early in 2023.

T
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It was with great pleasure that | was able to meet

our winemakers face-to-face to see first hand the
opportunities that were open to us following the 2022
vintage. Due to travel restrictions, it was first time since
the 2019 vintage that we had the opportunity to do this
in person and it was fabulous to catch up with a whole
host of old winemaking friends, as well as make some
new gnes, over the coming week or so.

The 2022 vintage wasn’t without its challenges out

in the Cape. Some periods of intense heat and long
dry spells meant that fruit development was a little
stunted, and berry sizes were small but concentrated
in the lead up to harvest dates. The harvest itself
was interspersed with some potentially disastrous
periods of heavy rain, but careful and experienced
vineyard management, meant that the overall result
was a positive one and we were thrilled with what we
discovered and were able to blend up.

Governancc Report
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Qur trip included visits with known wineries and
winemakers to discover and blend the best quality
grapes we could find to create the best value wines. We
did this armed with animmense amount of data that our
customers had given to us over the previous 12 months,
which helped us ensure we were delivering the perfect
taste profiles. As we look to create an exciting and
balanced portfolio we also established new sources of
supply to build on our already extensive supply chain.

Being on the ground allowed us to unearth the wines
of tomorrow that are more difficult to discover without
getting out into the vineyards and cellars. Working
hand in hand with winemakers at source allows us to
have conversations that unearth precious barrels we
would never have heard about or find unique parcels
we would never have seen, that in turn have managed
to supercharge some of the blends we are delighted to
have created.

Dave Roberts
Senior Wine Buyer
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Strategy in action continued

Delivering growth through our

Commercial channels o

L n group plc

ve

The Commercial channel is a major
focus for the business. Over thelast
year it has seen significant growth,
with multiple major new partnerships,
and thisis set to further develop over
the coming years.

We aperate in the B2B space in a variety of ways, from
delivering full strategic partnerships on an ongoing basis
to a range of highly vatued clients through to fulfilling a
whole raft of different corporate gifting requirements.

Here we look at a cross section of the type of services
we offer and the partnerships we have created.

Moonpig: Virgin Wines launched a strategic partnership
with Moonpig in August 2021 with a bespoke selection of 20
gifts, ranging from single bottles through to full cases. Over
the last 12 months we have developed the partnership to
be a 'store in store’ concept - 'Virgin Wines at Moonpig’

- and extended the range to over 70 SKUs, including
Prosecco which is also utilised across their hugely papular
flower and gift sets. The partnership has been extremely
popular with the Moonpig customer base, and we are on
target to achieve growth in excess of 100% YOY for FY23. We
are working closely with the Moonpig team to continually
innovate, grow and develop their wine and alcohol
category and have exciting plans to significantly develop
the relationship over the coming months.

Very: We started working with Very (Shop Direct Group)
over six years ago and they were one of our first major
strategic retail partnerships. We developed and curated

a range which we believed would work well for their
customer base and demographic profile. They already

had an alcohol category which included a range of wine
cases and alcohol gifts, so we worked hard te significantly
improve upon that with a great selection of choice and
price points. Over time the range developed from a handful
of SKUs to over 60 lines, including a selection of premium
champagnes. We have driven continual growth over the time
we have been working in partnership and are now considered
one of their key partners across the alcchel category.
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Great Western Railway: Through our experience in ‘travel
retail’ and in particular the rail sector, in January 2022 we
entered into an exclusive partnership with Great Western
Railway to act as its sole supplier of wine across the train
operator’s network, with trains operating across almost
ten counties and South Wales. This was the first time they
had changed suppliers for this category in uver 20 years,
representing the confidence they had in Virgin Wines, its
product offering and the value in the brand alignment, We
were tasked with developing a bespoke range including a
selecticn of exclusive products for them to retail to their
customers. By using cur experience of working in the travel
retail sector, and more specifically rail, we were able to
develop a partfolio that would not enly be popular with
their customers but also provide great quality and value to
GWR. We currently supply the wines for their First Class and
Retait propositions and for their famous Pullman Dining
service, We were delighted to add GWR to cur portfolio

of successful rail partnerships, joining Avanti WestCoast
and LNER,

Governance Report
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Gifting: Corporate gifting continues to be a key channel
within our commercial offering, and we are continually
developing our range of exclusive and beautifully
packaged gifts for this growing sector. It’s extremely
important to have the depth of range to meet the wide-
ranging budgetary requirements across a very diverse
client base. We cater from ten cases to tens of thousands
across our wine, beer, spirit and hamper portfolios. We
have also introduced a full personalisation service from
labels through to packaging.

Some key stats across the last 12 months:

Corporate gift sales increaged 16% YOY
{largest contributing sector was autamotive)

Average gift value increased by 8%

Average account spends across corporate gifts
increased by 19%

Average cases per account across corporate gifts
increased by 35%
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Our resilient business model and

outstandugieojp_g continue to perform

well in a period of rapid change

Jay Wright

Chief Executive Officer

Introduction

It's fairto say the last two and a hall years
have brought more rapid change and
differing chalienges within a short period of

time than any other pericd in recent history.

It gives me great pride to have witnessed
close up the way our people have adapted.
and continually nsen, 1o these challenges
and how robustly our business model

has performed in the face of these vastly
differing economic climates and swingsin
consumer behaviour

Through the rapid growth and
unprecedented shift to online purchasing
that was the hallmark of the Covid peniod,
through to a return 1o more normal
canstmer behaviour and then onite the
ceonemic chalenges of steep infiation,
rising casts, supply cham disruption and
war in Ukiaine, we have continued £o adapi
quickly and decisively.

1 Lompoaratee rumbers tor F o189 are unaadied

“We are pleased that we have retained the vast
majority of the exceptional growth we enjoyed
during the previous two years, showing that
demand for our high-quality, exclusive winhes
remains strong and loyalty from our customers

remains high”

We are pleasad that oul business remains
robust and resslient, and we continue to
drive forward an our strategic growth
ambitions. making good progress on
anumber of important initiatives and
performing well on many key metrics.

Business overview

Dunng the year we denvered revenues of
£69.2m. 2 6% decrease on the prion year but
3 63% increase on a three year basis (FY21:
£73.6m, FY19 : £42 4m). We also achioved
an EBITDA of £6.2m, a 11% decrease from
the prioryear bur up 130% on a thres-year
basistF¥21: E7mi b y19h £2.7m) whichic a
more meaningful comparison based un
normalised pre-Covid trading patterns.

We are pleased that we have retained the
vast majority of the exceptional growth we
enjoved aver the previvus two years, despite
the aforementioned mac roeconomic
chaltenges, and we'te proud of this robus:
performance which shows that demand for
curhigh quality, exclusive wines remains
strong and toyalty from our clstomers
remaims high.

During FY22 we sold 980k cases and served
more than 273k customers. In order to
achieve this, we have continued with our
focused and disciplined strategic approach
1o new customer acquisition, which has
detivered strong results and a great nunmber
ot high-quality, loyal recruits. During

the year, 105,000 new customers were
acquired across all schemes, 3% ahead of
our provious expectalions, ang cost per
recrutl was just £13 22 against £13.49 & year
ago. This s an industry-leadmg rcsult, anrd
we have acnieved notable market share
gains - from 6.100 1 2021 to 8.4 11 2022,
according to industry benchmark 1BISWorld
- as aresult.

Wewere also delighted to receve industry
recogmtion winning the ‘Goline Retailer of
the Yea: ' award at the 2022 Drinks Retailing
Aweards far the third fime inrecent years,

In addition, our continuea and unwavering
focus on customier care was also recognised
when wewere the proud recipients of the
bronze award for 'Contact Coatre of the Year”
al the National Contact Centre Awards
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Group Revenue

£69.2m

FY22 £65.2m

Fyzl £73.6m

FY20? £56.6m

Governance Report

Customer Retention Rate

91%

Fy22 21%
Fy21 93

Fr20’ 0%

L FBIE acfused for enceptiona iteres ond share Laged payments

2 Comparative nemsers for Y20 are uraud.ted

Wine sourcing model

Uniquely, we source our wines from a large
network of trusted long-term winemaking
partners and suppliers across the glote
using a data driven, customer focused,
open-source supply model This means
that we can source the best quality Grapes
from cvery region of every country for every
vintage, while mantaining the flexibility to
crisure we can make, and deliver, thevery
best value wines to our customers.

93% of the wines we sell by volume are
exclusive and this absolute control of the
winemaking process ensures we have the
ability to blend our wines ourseives, match
the precise stylistic qualities and taste
profiles that we know our layal customers
are looking for, through the constant use
of extensive data and clever analytics trom
tens of thousands of customer reviews,

1o curate our range of the most premiurm
quality, exclusive wines.

e helieve that our unique model
differentiates Virgin Wines for both our
customers and investors, ensuring working
capital can be minimised, quality/vatue
ratios can be maximised whilst delvering
the micst advantsgeous gross margings. This
sourcing model s key in supporting the
resilience of our business and the strength of
ourinvestment case

Subscription schemes

The success of our business centinues to
be strongly supported by the popularity
of ourwide range of subscription schemes
on offer, which give our loyzl customers &
number of ways Lo purcaase their favounte
wines from us, as well as continuing to
attract new customers. The ever-growing
demand for Both our WineBank and Wine
Plan subscription schemes is shown
through the revenue contributren of 81%
of DTC sales achieved in FY22, compared
to Gt in £Y21 and cur conversion rate

of rew custaniers erto our subscrption
schemes remalnrs high at 530¢

Meanwhile, our overall sales retention rate
and custornoer retention rate both achieved
an impresstve 91%.

The WineBank membership. our mamn
subscription scheme, which allows
customers to spread the cost of buying
wine by saving imoney each month and in
torn earning 20% ‘interest’ on the money
they save to then spend on wine. grew

by 8% from the priar year, with revenues
increasing by 219 during the period. We aiso
managed to maintain a consistent and low
canceflation rate in WineBank, at just 16.7%
(My21: 15.8%).

e doubled down on our efforts o pricritise
WineBank over the year, given ils ‘recession
prool nature and gave less emphasis to our
quarterly Wine Plan scheme, Despite this
tetal revenue from Wine Plan custorners
decreased just 2.3% and monthly yields
from the membership remained strong at

an average ot 65%.

Ot Wine Advisor team continue to offer
apersonal and highly valued one to one
service to over 45k customers, delivering
the highest levels of customer retention
alangside the highest average spend per
annum of any group of customers. This
focus on delivening én unbeatable custormer
experience is core Lo our proposition and we
continue to expand the sarvice to be able lo
ofler cven maore customers this experience

Strategic partnerships driving
new customer acquisition

Central Lo our growth strategy 1s our focus
an developing partnerships vath other
Frands and businesses to mcreasce ou
exoosure actoss additional consumer
audiences and be more visible and
accessible to new potential customers.
Over the past year we have partnered with
over 36 other trusted brands to drve over
65% of our new customer acguisition.
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Adjusted EBITDA!

£6.2m

£7.0m

186,000

active customers

1,080

products in our portfolio

91%

sales retention rate

152,000

total number of customers
in a subscription scheme

9.0%

EBITDA as percentage of revenue

In particuiar we have seen encow aging
growth over the second half of FY27 with
anumber of new partnerships agreed
including exciting neve relationships with
organisations and businesses such as
the i newspaper. Prionity fram 02, Currys
and The Rail Delivery Group These new
ninatives have helped customer acquisition
numbers increase 37% YOY ovar Q4 of
Iv22 and with a strong pipeling of turther
partnerships to come in 2023 we are
confident about our ability to continue
to grow this key area of our business
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Commercial opportunities

One of the most exciting growth
opportunities within our business is the
scope to deliver increased scale through our
Commercial and whelesale operations. We
have been detighted to be able to ttade with
our travel partners again following on from
the enforced suspension of our activities
with them during the Covid affected periad.
Both LNER and Avariti are key partners and
we are therefore pleased that this year has
gradually seen a return 1o wine heing served
on the train networks. We are also delighted
to have added Great Western Railway to out
portfolio ot travel partners and look forward
to a long and successful relationship

with them,

Y22 has also seen the launch of our
partnership with Moongig, which has
developed substantially ove: the year, We
are proud to be partnering with such an
irnovative and like minded business and
our "Virgin Wines at Moonpig' initiative

has proved extremely successful The
relationship s one of the most exciting that
we have developed for @ number of years
and both businesses see substantial growth
opportunitics in a whole varicty of areas
moving forwards

Events

We were delighted to be able to take Yirgin
Wines back out on the road again this year,
after a 16-month gap, with the return of ow
hugely popular 'live” events. As a customer-
focused business, where connecting with
our customers is kay, we were delighted to
see a return to our popular tasting events
across the UK, which had been cancelled
during the lockdowns of 2621 22. Our
events in London, Edinburgh, Manchester
anid L eeds were all sold out and hugely
successful, introducing those in attendance
to exciting new ranges, allowing them o
meet the winemakers behind the wines they
love and educating them on our exclusive
products in a fun and engaging way.

This ability to bring both our wines and our
business to lite in a physical setting is one
we have truly missed, so to see hundreds of
happy customers at each event having such
a good time was a highlight of the year and
we look forward to doing more of the same
over the next 12 manths.

“I continue to be confident in our long-term
prospects and that our business model and
growth strategy leaves us well positioned to
withstand current macro-economic challenges.”

Operations

Despite well documented headwinds within
the supply chain, alongside significant cost
pressures driving up the price of dry goods
and freight, we have worked hard to keep
costs under contrel and our operational
efficiency high.

Across the Group, we have been focused on
implementing the necessary mitigating
measutes to limit the impact of these
headwinds, including the eatly ordering
of stack We have continued 1o keep our
stock at ahigher level as supply issues
continue with our focus o ensuring

we have a full portfolio of products
avallable to offer customers and the most
comprehensive portfolio of wine ro ensure
we are maximising margins through the
configuration of our pre-mixed ¢ ases.

We have increased the amount of wines we
bottle at Greencroft in Durham to maintain
lower costs of dry goods, lower costs of energy
and hetter continuity of supply

Whilst the Group has been proactive in
taking avariety of mitigating actions, there
continues to be inflationary pressure imn
muitiple areas of the supply chain, such

as shipping, packaging, glass and courier
charges, and we are subsequently keeping
our pricing and case configurations under
conslant review, in order to protect margins,

Our culture, values and people

Al Virgin Wines, we ara commitled to making
propie’s lives moie erjoyable and this
mantravery much underpins cur culture
and values as a business. We understand
the impartance of our custormers enjoying
aleohol inmaoderation and continue to dive
the messaging that 'Drinking is only fun
when youdon't overdo it

tlsewhere, we have been active ir
developing a number of imtiatives aimed at
supperting those most inneed In particular,
we have been delighted to mantain cur
support for The Dricks Trust and Growing
well chanties as well as adding Leeway, a
chanty based locally 1o our Head Office in
Norwich, as ou eriployee voted 'Charity of
the Yoar which supports women. nien and
children that have heen subject to domestic
abiuse. Given the atrocities seen following
the outbreak of the war in Ukraine, we also
added the Red Cross Ukraine Crisis Appeal
to charities supported this year.
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To help with raising funds for these excellent
causes we have created and launched

a charity range of wines named our
‘Benevolent' range, and we are delighted
that we are able to help raise money to
support our varous charity initiatives
through the sale of these wines.

Across the business, our teams continue
1o rise to everyday challenges, and their
continded dedication and resilience
continues to drive our business forward.
I'would like to take the opportunity to
thank everyone across the business for
their continued commitmenl and support
in our second year as a listed business In
particular, our values and purpose keep
us focused and united on common goals
and beliefs and this clear framework is
fundamentalin driving the umty, support
and cuiture that we work so hard to maintain,

A focus on sustainability

In addition to providing our customers

with gquality wines, and creating a high
performing business, we understand that
itis our responsibility o have a positive
impact on our planet. Both the Board of
Directors and our Senior Management are
committed ta achieving our ESG ambition of
being a leader in creating a positive impact
on the environment and cur communities

within the drinks industry.

Governance Report

We have taken a significant stnide forward
this year, completing our first Scope 3
emission report. This insight aliows us to
identify where we can make positive steps
towards lowering our carbon emissions
and we have also started the path towards
achieving Carbon Neatral status via the
FAS 2060 certification. It gives the business
confidence knowing that our emission
reporting will have passed a full external
audit. More importantly, to continue
athieving the PAS 2060 certification, the
focus will be on achieving carbon reduction
targets we have set out, and not just purely
oftsetting emissions. We also understand
the importance of setting science-based
targets aligned to the 1.5%C scenario as
promoted by the Paris Agreement. During
the new financial year, we will be submitting
our application to the Science Based Target
Initiative {SBTN, and in doing so we will be
one step closer Lo achieving our goal of
becoming a Net Zero business by 2645,

In addition to our cnvirenmental impact
offorts, we have also reviewed and improved
our supplier due dilipence process. We are
committed to ensuring all products we sell
are created through the aperation of an
ethical supply chain, and we take a zero-
tolerance approach to slavery and trafficking.
Our newly created Supplier Code of Conduct
ensures that the businesses we deal with
reflect our approach in how they operate, but
also take steps in reviewing and demanding
zero tolerance from their own supply chains.

but]ook

Loohing ahead, we expect many ol

the challenges seen through 2022 to
confinue inte 2023 as cost inflation holds
atsignificantly high tevels whilst supply
chain disruptioniis still yet to normatise.
We understand that there will continue

to be pressure on consumers disposable
income and as such are mindful of the
potential impact on frequency of order and

average order values. However, as consumer

spending comes under pressure, we are
also aware people are more likely to stayin
aricl souiahse at home rather than taking the
more expensive option of going out.

Financial Statements
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Uespite these macro challenpes, we remain
confident in the robust nature of our
business model., Qur subscription schemes
offer oar customers fantastic value for
money, as well as the useful budgeting
mechanic of spreading the cost of buying,
wine through WineBank, whilst our focus
on disciplined customer acquisition wail!
continue to deliver a good quaiity and loyal
customer base.

We will continue to tocus on profit,
generating cash and driving efficiencies
throughout cur business. These key pillars
have been consistent elements of our
strategy for many years and wiil remain
key 0 drving our sugcess.

Ve will also continue to progress

aur strategy of developing long term
partnerships and are delighted to be
working with Saga plo o exclusively launch
and operate a co-branded wine proposition
for all Saga members. With such strong
brand affinity, a perfect demographic profile
and ambitious expectations around the
scale of the partnership, we are confident
surrounding its potential

we also continue to engage in new and
enhanced partnerships with a number of
leading brands, which wilt help arive our
customer acquisition strategy We loak
forward to providing updates as these
exciting new partnerships are signed and
finalised over the coming manths and years.

Given the macro environment and the
COSE Pressures 1IN NUNIEerG.Us areas, we
have engaged in careful planning to be
well prepared lor Christmas, driven by the
strength of our product range ncluding owe
stand out cellection of advent calendars.,
However, whilst we are confident in our
ability to mitgate against a number of the
margin pressires we tace we believe 1t is
correclto be prudent in our farecasting
vehilst liv ng i such a volatite and
challenging environment

Jay Wright
Chief Executive Officer
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Sustainability

Ensuring that we have a positive
impact, from grape to glass

Our ESG ambition
To be aleader in creating
a positive impact on the

environment and our
communities within the
drinks industry.

Environmental ambition
Strive to continuously

reduce our emissions

and operateinan
environmentally D
thoughtful manner

Social

A fun, supportive
and inclusive place
where people are
proud to work

Governance
Operate an ethical and stable
business, that understands

the importance of
creating a culture
of responsible
drinking

Both the Board of Directors and Senior Management are committed
to achieving our ESG ambition, and we believe that in doing so we
can create a company that:

Minimises the Group's environmental impact through further
product innovation, targeted operational imtiatives and
callahoration with our stakeholders

- Maintains an inclusive workpiace that respects and values each
employee's individuality, background and experience

- Supports our employee's wellbeing and creating ar environment
where they can thrive personatly and professionally

« Operatesinanopen and ethically transparent manner

Ensures all products we sell are created through the operation of
an ethical supply chain, with a zero-tolerance approach to siavery
and trafficking

This year we have made great progress in each of these core areas,
however we are committed to continucusly developing our plans
and engaging with key stakeholders at each point, ensuring we are a
leader within our industry.

Sustainability governance

All departments within the business have worked hard to implement
sustainable business practices over the years, however to achieve
our ESG ambitions our Head of Strategic Change and Governance
has taken direct responsibility for the development, and managing
of, our ESG strategy. Their responsibilities include providing a monthly
update to the CEC on progress within all key ESG areas.

Whilst day to-day responsibility sitswith cur Head of Stratege
Change and Governance, the Board understands the impeortance
of ESG within Virgin Wines, and our £5G progress and planming, is
routinely maonitored by the Roard The Board also plays a key roie
surrounding our carbon emission targets and in approving the
CSGroadmap

Our contribution to the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
The key areas we are focusing or as business contribute

towards SDGs 3, 10, 13 and 16.

We have noted throughout this report which individual arcas
contribute towards a particutar SDG.

[of Sl i)
LLiRsati o
L xerE )




We are proud to have made great strides
this year when it comes to reviewing
and implementing plans around our
carbon emissions.
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Sustainability continued

Environmental ambition
Strive to continuously reduce our emissions and
operate in an environmentally thoughtful manner

We are proud to have made great strides this year
when it comes to reviewing and implementing
plans around our carbon emissions, as well as
liaising with our supply chain to further our
knowledge around where they are in their own
sustainability journey. We believe that our plans
for the coming year will take us one step closer to
our ESG ambition of being aleaderin creating a
positive impact on the environment.

Carbonemissions

This year we compiled our first Scope 3 ernissions report. All relevant
categories were covered in the reporting and optional extras such

as homeworking emissions were also included. The report was fully
aligned with the GHG Protocol Stardard,

Having access Lo this level ot detail allows us to take an in depth look
at how owr business is operating and identify areas and processes
that we can change to achieve carbon reductions.

We also started the process for achieving the PAS 2060 standard
for Carbon Neutrality, PAS 2060 1s an internationally recognised
standard and onec of the few officaily veritied routes to achieving
this status, which we foel is important Lo avoid any association with
claims of ‘grecnwashing’

The process takes a few mionths to complete and involves our GHG
report being externally audited, site visits from auditors, as well

as our carbon reduction targets Geing reviewed and approved.

To maintain cur carbon neoutral status, we arg audited annually

to ensure that we have implemented our carbon reduction plans
and cannot rely purely on offsetting. We are on course to achieve
certification by the end of 2622.

Roadmap and key focus areas

Whilst being a carbon neutral business will be an achievement,
we understand that this s only a step wilhin our journey to reduce
our carbon emissions. We will be aiming to cut our Scope Land 2
emissions by 25% in FY23,

Next year we wilt also be submutting our applicetion for the Science
Based Target initiative (SETi} and will be setting our near-torm
reduction targets. Those targets will be aligned to the 1.5°C scenano
as promoted by the Paris Agreement,

13

@

Long-term, our goal wilt be for Vigm Wines to achieve
Net 7erc by 2045,

——————————

2022 2023 2030 2045
Certified carbon Become a member Implement further Achieve our near-term Net Zero
neutral company via of the SBTi reductions SBTi carbon reduction target date

PAS 2060 certification
Achieve 25% direct

emission reduction

Lt Sowdbores Db oo pione g e osshl el utane SR

target”
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Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions information

Governance Report
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2021/2022
{basetine year*}

Scope 1 52.10
Scope 2 67.49
Scope3 3,242.32
Category 1 - Purchased good and services 141
Category 2 Capital poods M0
Category 3 - fuel and ensrpy related amiscions notinciudad in Scope 1 and 2 30 32
Categor ;4 - Upstrenn transportaron and distribution - Wine Fusion only 1283 of FY27 wines) £,181.52
Calepory b - Waste gencrated i operations 14.05
Category 6 Business iravel 14.22
Category ¢ - Employee commuting 105 26
Category 9 - Dewrstrearm transporation ard distributior S8 61
Category 17 - Use ofsold prodacts 177.35
Category 12 - End-of-lie treatment of sold products 2984
Total 3,361.91
Peremployed i71%
Per fmiturnover 4872
Total Energy Consumption (kWH) Scope 1 and Scope 2 589,527

Provie s cletad rist i lidoef o theee oo new Boseliew voar EROTDow inGiuces Scope 3

Methodology

« We have reported on emission sources required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors Repaorts}
Regulations 2013 and the Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting requirements,

«  Emissions have been calculated tollowing the GHG Protocol
standard and using the UK Government GHG Conversion Factaors
for Company Reporting (2021 and 20221, The aperational contral
approach has been used. with the location hased method used
far Scope 7 emissions.

« The above 2021/2022 report refiects the base year emissions
submitted to NQA who have been appuinted as an independent
third party to venfy our GHG inventory as part of the PAS 2060
certification process.

» [Y22reporting covers all business and facility operations
occurningin all three locations 1l includes all applicanle Scopes
1.7 and 3 emissions except for the mnclusion of only a proportion
of Scope 3. category 4 emissions, Scope 3, category 4 inicludes
the transpart of 28% of wines procured within Y22 from the
overseas vineyards to our warehouses. The remaining category 4
emissions were excluded as it 15 not feasible tor the full emissinns
to he affset, as allowed under the PAS 2060 gindelines

TCFD

Yirgin Wines 1s not currently required to report against the TCHD
{Task lNorce on Climate Retaled Financial Disclosure), however during
the new tinancial year we will identity our key risks and review which
cloments relaled to the TCED recommendations we are abic (o
implement as we devetop our climate related reporting.

13

Further environmental achievements this year:

28% of wine we bought this year was bottied in the UK, which
saves approximately 40% of the carbon emissions, We partner
with Greencroft Bottling which 1s BRC Grade AAt rated {the
highest rating you can achievel and is a pioneer in sustainabie
practices, producing its own renewable energy.

0% of waste from our warchouses goes to landfills. Last year

we aiverted 389 tonnes from landfill which instead was nsed

for recycling {355 tonres) or directed to an energy waste facility
(34 tonnes},

Our transit packaging is manutactured from 100% FSC certfied
paper, is 100% recyclable. 100% biodegradable and has up to
B84 1ccycled content.

We have been engaging with aut suppliers to capture information
around ther sustainability intiatives and practices they currently
have in place, o/ plan toirtreduce. This enables us to share mere
information with our customers on indradual wines, arwimemakers’
cnvironmental credentials Itaisa identifics partners that we

can pursuc working with on potential projects We will conlinuc
collecting this information throughout the next financial year.

We have continued to promote hybrid working to allow our statf
to cut down an emissions from commuting, Commuting and
homeworking emiss:ons have both been included within our
Scope 3reporting and will be oftset as partof ot Carbon Neutral
certification in the coming year.
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Sustainability continued
O(T,) Q) Social
N

Principles

Diversity and inclusion

A fun, supportive and inclusive place
where people are proud to work

Qur people

Community

Weare committed o ceating and nraintaining
an inclusive workplace that resoects and valies
each employee's individuality. backgiourd and
experienice,

Supporting our emplogees wellbeing and
creating an environmert to thrve persanally
and professionaly

Hawving a positive impact on people within our
ndustey and ueyond

A year inreview

Diversity and inclusion

Cur people

Community

Started working with the Norfolk LGB Projecs
to suppoart our mission ot being an inclus.ve
employer iplease see rase study

Our Employee Assistance Programme offers
access to fully fundec counselling sessians, in
adgition 10 a range of serv ces offering advice on
personal and workplace matters, including legal
and debt ma-agerent advice. I the last year 5%
of employees Lsed the services provide d.

We contimue to 1an eur BSG grot p that gives all
empleyees a plarform to mput ard feedback

regarding all envirenmiont. 56013, and gOVernanie

1ssdes

Wewarl o ensuie that our emiptoyees thrnem
then current and futu e roles We proside fu-ded

access to external courses relevant to entployeecs’

carcer development as well as offer ngantcrmal
traming. sueh as the Wine 2rid Spintkdacat’on
Trust {WSET 1 guatifications run by an nrernal
cdJacator

We are delightec ta have continued to part-er
wil~ industiy weliness initsative The Drnks

Trast and mental health chanty Growing Well. in
additior, wemntroduced a staff-voted charity cf
the veas which has led Lo us supporting L eeway o
Marwich hased domestic violence charty
Supporting acharty that ~as been chosen Sy the
staff has led 1o fantastic iovels of enpagement,
inc.uding takong pastin the Leeway Chnsimoas
Campaign providing presents for fariies e
refnges. Plus, a team of people have taken partin
various Cyctng events taisi g over £2500 so 'ar,
As purt of our furdraising efforts. we have created
a gedicated the of wines cal ed ' The Benevolent
Range’ With every bott.esold woewill conate £1 1o
GUIVATIOWS Charity poartrers.
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The future

Diversity and inclusion Qur people Community
« Complete tailored inclusivity trawning based + Qurupcoming HR system will allaw ns te Support charities within our community vie
on feedback from employeas, zlongside introduce a calendar of stal engagement donatiors and chartable initiatives

complenrg aset of tecomnended actions
thal vl help as progress fursher as an
Irclusive husiness

- Create aspecihic Gender Transition Leave
policy

« Comrrencecollecting diversity cataviaour
upcaming HR syster which will allow us o
frther analyse diversity within our business

surweys and easily back the resulls [Lwall also
pive pmiplovees instant 00oess Lo o 0T ana
systems such as Lhe LAP,

+ Continue te ensite that our employess have
aceess to tranming ard development, buth
internally and externally run

SDGs

Diversity and In¢lusion

Our People Community

L Rt

Lo L e
et

GO WAL
A0 B BN

e e

We started working with a local chaiity called The Norfolk LBGT Project to help us further incorporate inclusivity into our
workplace, and support everyone in being their authentic selves at work. The starting point was a survey inviting all employees
to anonymously feedback about how inclusive they felt Virgin Wines currently is. This feedback was handted and reviewed by the
charity, maintaining the anonymity of our staff,

Key findings:

Apnjsasen

. Virgin Wines scored 76% when staff were asked their position on the statement *I consider Virgin Wines to be an inclusive

employer”.

«  Overall, employees rated virgin Wines as an LGBTQ+ inclusive employer, with several individuals writing that all employees are
treated the same and accepted for who they are. It was also noted that several current employees openly identify as LGBTQ+.

»  Onaverage, 86% of respondents reported that they would feel confident in supporting a colleague who came out to them in

the workplace.

Following on from this we are running open forums that give everyone Lhe chance o feedback further, discuss the survey results
and raise any ideas they have, Once all forums have been completed, the team at the Norfolk LGBT Project will put together an
inclusivity training session tailored to the feedback we received, along with a set of recommended actions, both of which will help

us progress further as an inclusive business,
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Sustainability continued

el

Principles

Fair and ethical conduct

Governance
Operate an ethical and stable business, that understands the
importance of creating a culture of responsible drinking

Responsible drinking

Compliance

e are committed o ensuning all products we se'l

As aretalern of alcohel, wounderstand

To cperate nan onen and ethically transparert

arecreated through the operat’os of an ethica thean portance of sronoting a cilture of TIne
sdpply cham. We take a 7ero-to vrance approoch respansible drinking

to slavery and trafficking,

A ] i

Fair and ethical conduct Responsible drinking Compliance

we strengthened our supply chaip due
dilipence by creating 2 nesws mandawry supplies
documentation pack This pack ineludes the
creation of aVigin Wines Supphcr Code of

Conduct

This code detans t~e minimum standards we
expect from aur sunpliers within key areas such as
warkers r ghts, but it also ensures that they have
similar expec lattons thiougholt their own supply
thain

ADec aration of Compiiance with tioderr Slavery
Leg slation was also created, which asks our
sdppherto contirm they camply with the Mocern
Slavery Act 2015 and to explain what measLres
tney have 1n place to mitigate the risks of slavery
with'n not only their awn Group, but throaghout
their supsly chain It atsc asks all companies that
tey are requited onder Sectiar L2t sapply the
latest capy of thewr slacery and mun-ar trafficking
statement Acopyofoudr latest statemoent s
included as aartof the pack.

v Qurifocus cortinues 1o be around our
respor sinle dricking ethos of 'drnk'ng s
only funwhen you don’t everda . This
15 commurnneated ac-oss all customer
tecuchpomts, and where 30ssisle we SIgNPOSt
to aresoarce page that contains practical
in‘ermation such as units within drinks, and
where to access alcohol suppart servces
+Wecoranue to offer a gocd range of no anc
fow nlcohol across oL wime, seers and sprrits,
Currently we have over 26 low or ne alcohot
products
Our emiployees oll hove access 1o aicohio
support resources sd services via The
Drinks Trust

Our Group has several pelicies in olace ncluding,
»Insider bading poricy

+Ant-brikery and corrugtion aclicy

» Whistlebiowing policy

We are glea comp antwath the QO A Gove nance
Code imore:nformation can be found on page 510
Virgin Wines is proud to be a rrember of the
Retail ot Alcohel Standa-as Group. which works

on preventing underage drinking, as well a<
aranotng high stardardy among a cohal retailens
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The future

Fair and ethical conduct Responsible drinking Compliance
Continue communicating our new due diligence «  Conlirueto promote cur drink respansihty » Qurupcomrirg HR system will ensure that all
process to new and exsting suppliers. ethos throughout all cuslomer new emaloyees have reviewed wey policies
CommMuNications duning their on-hoarding nrocess, arc
.+ Maintain 2 signficant range of 1o and low cmpayees will be automatical y asked w0
alechol producs. reviow these dodument s annually

- Maimta’n membership of the Retail of Alconol
Standgards Coup

SDGs

Diversity and inclusion Our people Community

¥ LT
g w e
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Section 172

The Board considers the needs and concerns of
all stakeholders in its running of the Company.
By seeking to understand the differing
stakehclder interests and impacts through

a proactive programme cf engagement, the
Directors ensure that their decision making is
informed and that the development and delivery
of our strategy leads to long-term sustainable
success for Virgin Wines UK plc.

This section arliculates how, as required by section 172 of the
UK Companies Act 2006. the Directars have acted 1o promcte
the success of the Company for the benefit of its stakeholders,
in meeting this responsibility during the year, the Directors have
had regard, amongst other matters, to.

Al the likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;
B) theinterests ol the Company's employces,

Ci the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others:

D} the impact of the Campany's operations on the community
and environment;

£, the Company s reputation for high standards of business
canduct; and

F} the need to act fairty as between members of the Company.

@Q:'

Customers
Why we engage How we engage and actions taken Their material topics
Our unique wine sourcing model is « Collecting over 100.000 customer atings and «  Accesstoquality products at

built around our customers’ reviews.
Plus, in order to continue to deliver
exceptional service, feedback at every
point during a customers' experience is
vital so that we can monitor and react
to any area that doesn’t meet our high
standards.

aurrange.

reviews every year which we use to help shape

fair prices

« Service lovels

«  Extensive insight schedule including NPS . Customer propositions available
score tracked every guarter, a 30+ question
bi-annual survey, encouragement Lo review
us on Trustpilot (currently rating excellent’
from over 20k reviews), and regular ad-hot

Company ethics

feedback requests focused on spedific customer

SERIMEnts,

- One-on orecontact made by ow Wine Advisor
team with Lher customier base of over 45k

CJSTOmers

« Regular contact with our customers via digital
platforms such os sacial media and our blog,

« Renstated our live tasting events, giving face-to-
face access to over 2000 customers.
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Why we engage

How we engage and actions taken

Their material topics

The Directors recognisc that our
people are integral to the success of
our business, and we are proud to have
many long-serving employees.

»  Regular communications from the managoment
Lleam sharing key company information, such as
end of year results.

+ Internal communications covering topics ranging
from promoting access to employee wellbeing,
updates on new initiatives across the business.

+  Employes £SG group that gives all employecs
a platform to input and feedback regarding all
envirenment, social and governance issues,

« Participation in | TIP schemes.

+  Provide access to learning and development.
such as wine and Spirit Education Trust (WSE )
qualifications run by an internal educater.

«  Launched anindlusivity project to gather
feedback upon how inclusive employees leel
their workplace 1s, and any actions we should
take to further this,

Providing an inclusive and
supporlive workplace

Career opportunities
Fatr pay
Company ethics

Financial stabitity of the Group

A
[@5 Investors

Why we engage

How we engage and actions taken

Their material topics

As an AlM-listed business, we now
have a wider range of investors, both
institutional, private and employee.
t’s important that we understand fully
the matters that are most important
to them in their investment decisions
and that these are aligned with our
corporate strategies.

« Regular reporting of financial pedlormance.
Updates on carporate strategy and new
opportunities.

Investor meetings to create a two-way dialogue.
lnvestor presentation forretail investors.

« Fnancial PR o inforni and undate,

«  AGMto mieet and discuss progress,

Financial stabnlity of the
Campany
Growth plans for the Company

Leadership and Board
compasition

Company ethics
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Section 172 continued

w

&—0— Partnersand suppliers

Why we engage

How we engage and actions taken

Their material topics

Many of our winemakers are small,
family-owned businesses. We are
proud to partner with these businesses
to support their growth and help them
to make a positive impact on their
local economies.

we regularly review our supplier base and
require our partners 1o comply with all relevant
local legislation regarding working hours, wages
and working conditions.

Active partnerships with suppliers in order to
supply the range our customer wants, including
reinstating winery visits and in-person suppler
meetings.

Introduction of a new ethical and environmeantal
audit of all suppliers, incluaing a supplier code
of conduct.

+ Company ethics

+ Fan pay
Environmental and responsible
SOUrCING Practices

Longevity of partnerships
with the Group

@W Communities

Why we engage

How we engage and actions taken

Their material topics

We have a responsibilitytobe a
force for good in our community,

Continuous prometion of our respansibie
drinking campaign ‘Drinking 1s only fun when
you don't overdoit’, acioss all communication
touchpoints.

Fnsuring that all internal and external poficics
are regularly reviewed, updated and publ-shied

lntroduction of statf voted charity of the year.
Leeway Domestic Abuse chanty. Alangside.
continued suppaort of the dirinks trade
remmunity by partnening with and donating
to The Drinks lrust charity, and donations to
Growing Well mental health charity

Commitmerit to cutting our carbon emissions
and being a more sustainable business.

Company cthics
«  Eavironmental practices

« Charitable giving
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Considering stakeholders in action

@QD

Customers

39

What customers told us

Some customers had fed back to us that when dealing with

a query they often spoke to different people within the
department. This was due to having separate teams within the
Customer Service department who each dealt with different
functions, such as a separate delivery team for delivery issues.

Employees

What we did

After listening to the feedback, we decided to change the
structure of the department. by removing the separate teams
and making a multi-skilled department. This means that each
member of the team can deal with every element of a customer
query, and the customer wiil be deal with the same Customer
Service advisor whilst we resclve their query. This also allowed
us to change our system so that we canidentify a customer with
an open guery when they call, so they can be routed through to
the agent that has been dealing with them.

We also analysed two years worth of call data to review our
opening hour structure. We found that whilst we were cpen
fam - 8pm there were very tew calls taken lirst and last thing
during the day so we changed our cpening houwrs to 9am - 7pm,
which meant we had morc staff during key opening hours and
wo increased our answer rate as a result,

What employees told us

We have an employee ESG group to give all employees the
chance to tell us what is important to them, and what they
believe as a business we should be focusing on when it comes
to environmental and social issues.

One issue that we discussed is how to make sure that new

and existing people understand that we are an inclusive and
supportive business, but to also make sure that we are listening
to pecple so that we can continuously improve how inclusive
and diverse we are.

What we did

we started working with a local chanity called The Norfolk

L BGT Project to help us turther incarparate inclusivity into
ourworkplace, and support evervone in being thar authentic
selves at work, The starting point was a survey inviting all
emplovees to anonymously feedback about how inclusive they
felt Virgin Wines currently «s. This feedback was handled and
reviewed by the charity, maintaming the anonymity of our staff.

Followinig on from this, the team at the Norfolk LOBT Project will

put together a bespoke incluswity training session tailored to the
feedback we receved, along with a set of recommended actions,
hoth of which will heipras progress further as an indlusive Business
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Financial Review

A strong Balance Sheet, cash reserves

and no debt

Graeme Weir
Chief Financial Officer

Overview

As 3 business that grew sharply during Covid it was always going

to be difficult to forecast exactly how the impacts would play out.
Our focus has remained on maintaining the core disciplines of our
financiat model. Investing in new customer acquisition by retaining
competitive cost per acquisition to achieve a quick payback an each
new customer, strong margin controls across all sales channels to
ensure we optimise the return on repeat sales and effective cost
controls to continue to deliver sector leading profit to revenue
margins. In 5o doing the business has continued to invest for future
growth and strategically deployed cash and working capital to oftset
supply and inflationary pressures commion to all companies. As a
result we have a business model fit to meet the chalienges of difficult
trading conditions as well as benefit fron future opporturities.

FY22 SN

£m e

Rewenur 69.2 e
Gress Protit 21.7 233
Cprerating Expenses’ 15.5 163
Adjustec EBITDA 6.2 i0
Fxcephional Costs PO fcest [+ 5
Share-hased Payments 0.1 ¢
Amornsation ced Juprecintion 0.9 s
Cperating Profit 5.2 7t
Finanee Inzame [ it
France bxpense 0.2 e
Probitoefere Tax 5.1 1
Tax 0.7 {4
Profittor the Penad 4.4 0.8

“A disciplined approach and a proven
business model ensured the business
continued to perform well in an increasingly
challenging environment.”

Profit hefore Tax

Profit before tax far FY22 increased by F34mto £5.1m (F Y21 £ 1.7m).
After adjusting for exceptional costs profir before tax was virtually
unchanged at £5.1m iFY21: £5.2m). Given the considerable challenges
in FY22 and the strong inflationary cost pressures in H2, we are
pleased to have maintained the prohit level. The Group does not
propose to pay a finat dividend for Y22 (FY21: Enill,

Revenue

Reported revenue for FY22 was £69 2m down £4.4m 6.1% £ Y21
£73.6m). [ho wineBank customiers continued to perform wetl with
annual revenue from this base up 2146 After the sharp growth over
Fy20 and FYZ1 revenue from new customer acquisition and gifting,
both dropped back in FY22 by £2 8m and £1.7m respectively. After
posting an exceptionally strong perfarmance in FY21, Commercial
revenues were also down slightly by 10 5m. Tatal revenue remained
63% above Y19 levels, the last full year without a Covid impact. Core
sales proved resilient down less thar 1% on FY21 at £54m.

Gross Margin

Despite the impact of nflation on inbound freight, packaging and
delivery costs, average gross profit as a percentage of revenue

held firm, FY22: 31 4%, FY21: 31.6% and FY20- 30.3%. Good margin
disciptine in the repeat sales channels enabled the business to invest
MGre in New customer acguisition margins without any material
impact an the overall gross margin percentage Gross proht in these
financial statements is stated as revenue less wine cost, pachkaging
and carner delivery costs. Uk Duty, inbound packaging and freight
costs are included in the wine cost.

L Dperating Braenses Refrre Share-oasen 2avreeits Amanisationn

a1u Depreaastion
£ Compatative rembers for Fr20 are unodnied
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Key Performance Measures

Revenue

£69.2m +63% from FY19

Fya2 £69.2m
Fyzl £73.6m
EY20° £56.0m

FYlg? £42 Am

Profit before Tax and Exceptional Costs

£5.1m +86% from FY20

FY22 £5.1m

Fy21 £5.2m

Fyzo* £2.8m

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses icompnsmng Administrative expenses and
Selling and Distribution costs) fell by £0.6m to £16.5m (FY21: £17.1mj.
This retlects an important part of the business model where variable
cost clements fies with sales volumes. The business continued to
nvest in prople. skills ang 1T infrastructure to support increases in
capacity, efficiency and deliver future growth.

Finance Expense and Income

Finance expenses tell by y0.9m, FY22: 5 0.1m (FY/ 1o 7 Tmy,
reflecting the repayment of all term loans in March 2071

The charge in financial statements for FY22 relates solely (o the
interest charge on right of use assets and the adoption of IFRS 16
forleases, Finance income relates to bank deposit interest received.

Further details are avallable in note 12 of the financial statements.

Adjusted EBITDA*

Adjusted EBITDA fell by £0.8m (11%0) to £6.2min FY22 reflecting an
increase investment in new customer acquisition and the more
challenging trading conditions. As a percentage of revenue, Adjusted
FRITDA was 9.0% (FY21-9.5%, FY20 : & 5%0). These numbers eflect
the underlying strength of the business aisciplines and modet 1in all
trading environments. Adjusted EBITDA 15 calcutated atter adding,
IPO transaction fees showing as excoptional costs in Fy22

ol £nil (1¥21: £3.5m}, and share based payments ol 10 Imin FY22
fFY21: Fnil).

Impairment Review

At the reporting date the Directors tested goadwill for impairment i
accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
The total carrying amount of the Group’s singte cash-generating unit
was compared to its estimated value muse Noimparrment was
identificd. For lurther details see note 15.

2 Comparative rumsersfo Frl9ard Py 0 ae uraua ted
4 Ac usted TRITRA s FBITDA after aad ng bacwe txzept onal

gats are share-o0sea paymen’s
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Gross Profit

31.4% +2.3% from FY19

FY22 31.9%
F¥zl 31.6%

Fy2o¢ 30.3%

FY1g® 29.1%

Adjusted EBITDA % Revenue

90% Adjusted EBITDA Margin

FY2o? 8.5%
Taxation

The tax charge in the tinancial statements for FY22 s £0.7m (FY21-
£0.9m 1his tax charge relates to a usage of the deferred tax asset
and will have no cash impact. The Deferred taxes have been
measured using the tax rate of 25% {FY21: 15%!.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The Group reported a basic earnings per share of /.8p, 121 loss per
share of 0.5p Dituted earnings per share for FY27 of 1 8p and loss

per share of (1.5p in FY21. The weighted average number of shares in
issuc for FY22 was 55.8m (FY21: 50 G6m} 1see notc L4 for more details).

Cash and Working Capital

The Group end of year cash balance tor FY22 was £15.1m (FY21:
£15.7m}. These balances inciude cash deposits from WineBank
customers of FY22 £7.4m (FY21: £/ 3mi. This cashis not used to
fund working capital and is kept in a ring fenced ctient account
separate from Group cash. Met of WineBank customer deposits

and the deferred payments the adjusted cash position was FY22
[77m (FY21: I8 4m) Operationsin FY22 generated L6.3mn cash,
The Group has used its strong balance sheet and cash reserves to
accelorate investmentin capital projects £1m (FY21. £0.2m} and
inworking capital to de-risk the potential impacts of supply chain
disruption. Trade receivables are up £6.5m due to the commercial
channel. To offset the impact of ongoing supply uncertainties the
Group continued the policy of holding higher inventory levels, up
v1.4mfrom 2 July 2021 The earler procurement of all key linesto
ensure uninterrupted availability and the reversal of accelerated
cashtlows in Q4 FYZ1 has resulted in a reduction of Trade and other
pavables of £2.9m. This strategic deployment of working capita! has
allowed the Group to avold any significant supply issues and counter
inflationary pressures o gross margins. As supply pressures ease
working capital requirements will return to the normal run rate

The Group is cash generalive with ne net bortowing and can
continue to deploy working capital to achieve lulure growth plans
ane manage any downside financial risk, Given the Groups strong
balance sheet and cash reserves, the Board is mindful of the
importance of effective capital allocation.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for identifying key risks, appraising
thelikelihood of occurrence and the potential impact on the business.

In so doing the Board continually reviews and evolves the framework for
appraising risk and the mitigating actions in place to minimise the impact.

Risk management and internal control framework

Board Audit Committee
The Board has considered The Audit Committee formally reviews the effectiveness of our risk management
market, strategic, financial processes and internal controls bi-annuzlly,

and operational risks and
uncertainties. Review of
the Group's risk register is a .
continual process as well as Leadershlp Team
a regular agenda point for
Board meetings throughout
the year.

The Company regularly updates the Risk Register which is reviewed by the Board quarterly.
£ach riskis allocated to a mermber of the senior management team who s responsible for
managing the risk and updating the Board of any changes in nature, tikelihood or impact.

Virgin Wines Teams

Everyone at the Group has a role to play in identifying key risks, and in the day to day
management of risk through applying the appropriate controls, policies and processes.

1 Changesinconsumer preferences and increased competition 4)

Potential causes Potential impact Mitigatingactions

Consumer behaviours and spending habits may Reduce demand for the Group’s products and The Group has a robust and resilient business
change due to a number of factors including services or increase business complexity and model that evolves in line with consumer
lifestyle, health considerations, attitude towards  eperational costs. leedback and changing trends. We listen to our
online shopping and the actlions of competitors. customers from regular surveys, monilor ew

mitiatives in the drinks sectar and the actions of
our key competilors,

2 Macroeconomic conditions A

Potential causes Potential impact Mitigating actions

Worsening economic outloos 1n the UK and global - Reductionin consumer spendmg, higher input The Board manages credit fisk to ensure tne
supply issdes driving up inflationary pressures and - costs and disruption to supply chains. Group has adequate resouices and liguidity to
impacting consumer discretiorary spend. manage economic shocks beyond our contio

The business model allows for a high level
ofvariable and discretionary spend that can
he flexed to reflect the underlying economic
conditiors.

Risk change

A 'hcreascd W Occreased 4P Nochacge
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Potential causes

Potential impact

Mitigating actions

Wine is an agricultural product and the quality
and yield of harvests may be materially impacted.
Adverse weather conditions may alse interrupt
supply chains and order fulfilment.

4 (Global pandemic

Limiting access to important products, impacting
availability and pushing up costs. Operational
disruption reducing customer chowre ard
impacting service levels,

The UK wine market is among the most diverse
in the world with popularity for both New Worid
and Old World wines Qur wine sourcing model
allows the Group to move between countries
and regions to find the highest quality, best value
products. Qur own initiatives to achieve net zero
and work with our supply base to reduce the
environmental impact of our operations is a key
management focus. Business continuity plans
ensure we can manage supply and operational
disruption caused by severe weather conditions,

<

Potential causes

Potential impact

Mitigating actions

The widespread rollout of vaccines has created a
new ‘tliving with Covid’ approach. There remains
the risk of new Cowid variants or a new virus.

5 Foreign exchange exposure

Staff welfare and public health regulations
impacting operations at business units. Supply
chain disruptions from the impact of global
rESPONSES.

The business demonstrated the ability to operate
surcessfully during periods of Covid lockdown by
enabling all office based staff towork effec tively
frem home and the adoption of new safe working
regimes within the nationat distribution centres.
Business continuity plans will continue to evolve
and be tested to ensure the business maintains
these capabilities.

I

Potential causes

Potential impact

Mitigating actions

The Group purchases the majority of its wine from
a global network of winemaker s and suppliers.

As a result the Group is exposed to exchange rate
risk on purchases Drimarily 1n Furos, Australian
and US dollars.

6 Increasesintaxation

Increases in the cost ol wine driving up retail
prices and the affordability of wine and impacting
Lross marging,

The Group hedges its expesure to foreign
exchange nisk, reducing the potential impact
of majorfluctuations and giving surety of cost
prices.

I

Potential causes

Potential impact

Mitigating actions

UK Government propesals to intioduce a new
alcohol duty regime.

Risk change

A W Decreased

Ircreased

Increase operationul complexity and red tape.
Pusting up the cost and the RRP of higher
ABV wines,

< } No change

The consuliation issued by UK Gov fails to meat
their stated objeclives to simplify the duty regime
and levelup the treatment of different alcoholic
products We continue to work with our industry
trade body the WSTA to ensute ony chonges
reflect the stated objectives.

Changes wiliimpact all wine retailers the same so
will not create a competidive disadvantage,

43
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

7 Governmentregulations

I

Potential causes Potential impact Mitigating actions

Proposed new reguiations subject 1o Increases in operational complexity resulting in The Group will continue to invest in technology
consultation, including online sales tax higher costs. and expertise to minimise the impact cf extra
and deposit return schemes. red tape and support campaigns overseen by

the WSTA to ensure new regulations are fan and
proportional.

8 Cybersecurity threats 4)
Potential causes Potential impact Mitigating actions
Cyber attacks leading to unauthorised access to Financial costs including possible regulatory Security measures are regularly reviewed
the Group's software and systems, resulting in fines. Reputational damage and loss of and updated to prevent unauthorised access
the potential misappropriation of Group assets or - stakeholder confidence. to systems. Focus on staff awareness and
intetllectual property, the loss of customer data, the engagement of third party expertise to
the carruption of data or ransomware and denial supplement internal 1esource.

of service atracks.

9 Attraction and retention of key personnel

I

Potential causes Potential impact Mitigating actions

Post Covid challenges attracting new and the Delay of key projects, shortage cf expertise to Cnsure we continue Lo offer competitive salary
retention of existing staff impacting the ability to - deliver Group plans and increased personnel| packages ircluding LTIPs for key management,
deliver our strategic plans. costs Continue to put staff wellbeing at the centre

of everything we do, making Virgin Wines an
attractive and rewarding organisation to be part of.

10 Reliance onIT systems 4p

Potential causes Potential impact Mitigating actions

Failure of critical eperational technology. Reduction or loss ot operational capabilities Continued focas on system resilience to minimise
impacting customer service [2vels or increasing the number and seventy of incidents. Investment
oparating costs. in internal respurce ard external support to

ensure systems are robust and scalable,

Risk change

A increased W Decreased P Nochange

The Strategic Report was approved on behalf of the Board on 26 October 2022.
(P2

Gideme Weir

Chief Financial Officer
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opportunitiesin FY22,
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the
management of the business as a whole and
for ensuring that high standards of corporate
governance are maintained.

Jay Wright

Chief Executive Officer

Jay Wright is CEO of Virgin Wines UK

ple, having held the role since 2008
when he successfully mergad the
Warehouse Wines and Virgin Wines UK
plc businesses. In 2013, Jay led a private
equity-backed management buyout of
the Virgin Wines UK plc business and
following substantial growth took the
business public in March 2021.

Prior to joining Virgin Wines UK plc,
Jay held Managing Director roles at
Warehouse Wines, the business he
founded in 2000, and World Wines
Direct, a subsidiary of the Greenalls
Group.

In addition to his role as CEQ of Virgin
Wines UK plc, Jay is also Vice Chairman
of Lincaln City F.C.

John Risman
Chairman

John has held the position of Chairman
of Virgin Wines UK plc since October
2018, Heis also Chief Executive of
Hillarys Group, the UK’s largest window
furnishing company.

John has 30 years’ experience within
the retail sector. Prior to joining Hillarys
Group in 2005, John was COO at
Thresher Group and held various roles
at Dixons Retail, where he was latterly
aManaging Director. He started his
business career as a strategy consultant
with LEK Partnership.

Graeme Weir
Chief Financial Cfficer

A Chartered Accountant, Graeme has
been CFO at Virgin Wines UK plc since
2008 and in 2013 led a private equity-
backed management buyout of the
business alongside CEO Jay Wright.
Prior to joining Jay as his Finance
Director of Warehouse Winesin 2003,
Graeme held a number of roles in the
engineering and manulacluring sector.
Gracmeis based at the main National
Distribution Centre in Preston to
oversee the finance function.
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Sophie Tomkins

Non-Executive Director

o®

Sophie is a Non-Executive Director with
extensive public markets experience
gained through nearly two decades

as a London-based stockbroker, She
has been involved with a huge range

of public markets transactions and is a
qualified Chartered Accountant.

Sophie currently sits on the Board of
several AIM-listed companies, and

a sizeable private company. Sheis

a Non-Executive Director and Audit
Committee Chair of Hote! Chocolat
Group plc, System1 Group plc and The
Snowfox Group, and a member of all
three Remuneration Committees.

Helen Jones

Non-Executive Director

DO

Helen joins Virgin Wines UK plc as a
Non-Fxecutive Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee. She

has more than 35 years’ experience in
the food and beverage sector, both in
the UK and internationally. Helen was
Group Executive Director at Caffé Nero
and Managing Director at Zizzi. She also
sperit nine years at Unilever, where she
launched the Ben & Jerry’s brand in the
UK and Europe.

Helen is currently Senior Independent
Director at the Halfords Group plc,
Remuneration Chair at Fuller, Smith &
Turner plc and at Premier Foods plc. She
also serves on the Boards of Whittard Tea
and Toast Ale.

Financial Statements a7

Non-Executive Director

®

Ed is a Portfolio Partner at Gresham
House Ventures, previously Mobeus
Equity Partners LLP. He brings

more than 20 years’ experience of
supporting companies to create and
realise shareholder value. Prior to
joining Gresham House, Ed was Chiet
Investment Officer at Catapult Ventures,
£d has held a number of senior finance
roles, including at ATX Software and
The Carbon Neutral Company, having
qualified as a Chartered Accountant
with PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Chairman’s Statement

The business has remained resilient,
stable and profitable

Introduction

I am pleased to report the Group's second set of annual results as a public company,
following our admission to AIM in March 2021,

The business has continued to perform well amidst a challenging backdrop. Like many
others 1n the sector, we have faced numerous macroeconomic headwinds, including labour
shortages arising from the continued effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, cost inflation and supply
chain delays. Despite all of this, the business has remained resiient, stable and profitable.

white it is true that some of the excitement and expectations arcund the ways in which
people use digital has been tempered, with consumer trends constantly ebbing and towing
bothin light of Covid and beyond, itis clear that the long-term and underlying, structural
growth drivers across the direct-to-consumer wine sector - on which we launched our IPO
in early 2021 - remain lundamentally the same, Even post Covid, daily consumer habits have
been formed and continue to evolve, For example, flexible working and working from home
are here to stay, which means that people are more comfortable receiving detiveries during

John Risman

Chairman

FY22 summary

We are pleased to have reported revenues of £69.2n duning the year,
against a comparison of £73.6min FY21, which was up 63% on a
three-year, pre-Covid basis (FY19 £42.4m). | ockdowns undoubtedly
boosted our trade. However, the three-year comparison also

shows that we have been able to consistently maintain much of aur
substantial growth, despite the lifting of restrictions and opening up
ol hospitality. EBITDA was £6.2m iF¥21: 1 7my, which was up 130% o
the same pre-Covid basis. We are very proud of the resilience of our
profitability, which is industry-leading.

One of Virgin Wines’ key strategic cbjectives, which we qutlined at
IFO, is new custamer acquisition. The business has delivered on this
at levels ahead of expectations, taking a disciplined approach to
marketing and heeping cost per recruitiow. This has beer impartant
in ensunng that the customer base remains loyal, somcthing that
the Group has dlearly achicved, with subscription membership

and demand for the WineBank scheme and Wine Adwvisor service
dernonstrably resilient and prowing

Ihe signing of new comeercial partnerships s another key priority
against which the Group has performed strongly. and where we
continue to expand. During the year, we signed significant deals
with Great Western Railway. the i newspaper and Priority from 02,
among others,

Iwould like to thank coileagues for ther continued hard work and
dedication, our customers for their ongoing enthusiasim and loyalty
and our partners for then collaboration.

1 Comparate numzers from FY1Tare anaueisc

the day. The benelils of buying wine anline - quality. price, range and scrvice - are proven
and enduring, and Virgin Wines remains best placed to deliver this for our custamers.

Environment, social & governance

ESGis an impertant driver of our business. It informs our culture,
our strategy and stakeholder engagerment. We are committed to

operating an ethical, transparent business, detivering value for all
stakeholders in line with cur long-term growth strategy.

During the year we inficduced a number of important environmental
initiatives as we make progress towards a nel zero strategy

Wwe have made good progress in setting targets for reducing carbon
emissions and are now putting apprapriate goals in place for the
COMINg years.

Our people are of the utmostimportarce to us and we nvestin
talent. training and wellbemng, We continue to promote diversity and
inclusion throughout the Company as this is an essential part of our
culture and identity.

Outlook

With the econoimic prognosis of high inflation squeezing disposable
incomos and a worrying geopoliticat cuticok, the year aheadis likely
to be tough o consurners, But Virgin Wines has a greal busineces
model, an excellent product offer focused on value for money and a
strung oalance sheet 16 leverage future growth.

The Group's strategic and disciplinec focus on new customer acquisition
is delvering encouraging results ana we have numarous excating new
partnerships in the pipeline for 2023 as well as fantastic newe products
to be launched i both the busy Chiistmas penod and beyond

Therefore, the Board looks to the future with cantidence

John Risman
Chairman
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The benefits of buying wine online -
quality, price, range and service - are
proven and enduring, and Virgin Wines
remains best placed to deliver this for
our customers.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to ensuring high standards
of governance for Virgin Wines UK plc as the basis
for promoting the long-term growth and protecting
the reputation of the business for the benefit of
shareholders and wider stakeholders.

The Board considers the QCA Code Lo provide the most appropriate
framework of povernance for a public company of this size and
complexity and supperts the QCA Code’s princinles

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining the
Group's systems of finanicial controls and robust operational
controls, which are continuously moenitored ano reviewed. 1 his
provides the Board comfort around the risk exposure of the
Company and to what extent it has changed during the year,

Ihe Board seeks 1o ensure they have a dynamic governance
erivironment where open dialogue is encouraged to build trust
and ensure the wishes and expectations of shareholders and wider
stakeholders are recognised and met.

Commitment to providing robust leadership and oversight of the
business by setting and monitoring the Company’s culture to ensure
that behaviours align with the purpose, vision and values. A strong
corporate culture is paramount to the vitality and sustainability

of the Caompany. The Board is satisfied that a culture of openness,
honesty and integrity pervades the business and complements
Virgin Wires' strategic goals

During the year, there have heen no carporate governance
challenges nor adverse governance-related matters to report. The
Board is satisfied that the steps taken to ensure business continuity
were eftfective and appropriate and, as the situation continues to
cvolve, the Board will continue to adapt its approach and guidance
for the Company.

The Board recogiises the benehits that diversity and inclusion can
bring to the effectiveness of Board decision making where difterent
skill sets, and perspectives are present. The Board supports the
Company's diversity and inclusion pelicy and 1s committed te
achieving and maintaining its objectives,

The Board is focused an delivering our strategy for the benefit
ol all stakeholders.

Board structure and composition

Ihe Board s responsible to the snarcholders and to actin the
interest of alt Group stakeholders. This inciudes setting the
strategy for the Group to achievets long term goals, monitoring
performance, governance and managing Group risk.

Luring this financial year the Board comprised of six Directors,
twao Executive Directors, Jay Wiight and Craeme Wen and four
Noo-trecutive Directors, Chairmean John Risman, suppaorted by Fd
Wass, Sephie Tomkins and Helen Jones. Furthe detals and Board
hicgraphies can be found on pages 46 and 47

The Chairman is responsible for setting the Board agenda

and monitoring its effec tiveness. There is clear separation of
responsibilities and independence betweer the Chairman and
Chief E xecutive.

Matters reserved for the Board and meetings

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group's strategy,
performance and management 1he Board discusses and reviews
all matters and issues relevant te the performance of the Group.
Arolling agenda of matters 10 be reviewed is agreed by the Board
under the guidance of the Chairman. Certain matters are reserved
for the Beard, these inciude;

« Setting the Group strategy and long-term objectives.

«  Approving budgets and torecasts

+ Changes to the Group's capital structure and dividend policy.

+  Extension of Group activities by geographical regions or
acqguisitions.

- Approval of significant contracts, capital or operating
expenditure

«  Assessing the effectiveness of financial risks and control.
« Effective communication with sharcholders.

< Approving interim and annual reporting and regulatory
commurnications,

The Board has met 11 times in this financial year All Board members
attended all the meetings. The Beard will normally meet eleven
umes in a full 12-month cycle. Board members are expected to
attend all meetings Outside formal Board meetings, Non-Executive
Directors communicate directly with the Lxecutive Directors and
senior management. Non-Executive Directors are expecled Lo
attend committee meetings of which they are a member and devole
sufficient time throughout the vear to ensure they fulfill their 1ole as
Company Directors,

Board Committees

The Board delegates specific respansibilities to the Audit and
Remuneration comimittees, These committees have written terms
of reference including their duties and reparting responsibiiities.
Fach committea shall have at least two Non-Fxecutive Directors who
arc independent of the management and frec front any business

ar other relationship that could interfere with tne exercise of therr
ingependent judgement. The terms of reference tor the committces
are kept under review 1o ensure they remain relevant and reflect
changes m regulation and best practice.

The Rudit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Sophie Tomkins with other
members Ed Wass and Helen Jones. The Audit Cammittee is
responsible tor ensuring the financial pertormance of the Group 1s
properly reported and reviewed, and for oversecing the framework
of internal controls lo manage busiress nak The Committee s
responsible for advising the Board on the appomtment of the
external auditor, ensuring external auditor independence and
advising on fees and termis of ieference. The Committee wiil receve
and review reports from the Graup's management and external
auditors relating to the mterim and annual 2¢ counts and the internal
controls operating within the Group.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twite each year at
appropriate times in the reporting and eudit cycle, The Chief
tinancial Officer may ottend the meenings By invitation
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The Remuneration Gommittee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Helen Jones with

other members Sophie Tomking and John Risman. The Committee
is responsible for ensuring remuneration policies and practices
support Group strategy and promaote long term sustainable success.
Maintaining @ formal and transparent process for developing pohcy
on executive rewards and ensuring executive remuneration is
aligned to the Group's purpnse and is claarly linked to the successiul
delivery of long-term strategy.

&

The Company is committed to
achieving and maintaining
high standards of corporate
governance and has adopted
the QCA Code. The QCA Code
identifies ten corporate
governance principles that
companies should fellow.

Set aut opposite is a description of how the Company
complies with the QCA Code at this point in time and
explains the areas of non-compliance, where applicable.
The Directors of the Company {the Board] remain

committed to evalving the Company’s corporate
governance arrangements as the business develops

Governance Report
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The Remuneration Committec will also make recommendations to
the Board for granting of share options or other equity incentive is
line with share based incentive plans operating within the Graup.

In exercising this role, the Remuneration Committee wiil have repard
to reconunendation of the QUA code and, where nppropriate, the
QCA Remuneration Committee Guide and associated guidance. The
Committee is anthorised to appoint external consullants (o advise
on remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Cormmittee will normally meet at least twice
every year,

Establish a strategy and business model which
promote long-term value for the shareholders

The Company’s strategy is to create a platform far organic growth
and potentially for acquisitionsin the wine, beer and spirits sector
where the opportunity exists to create significant shareholder

value through high growth and/or a well-executed consolidation
strategy. The Board is responsible for implementing the strategy and
managing the business of the Company.

Further infermation on our business model and strategy can be
found at pages 14 to 17 and our Strategic Report commences on
page 18

Seek to understand and meet shareholder
needs and expectations

The Campany has beerr committed to maintaining an open dialogue
with its shareholders to develop a goad understanding of the needs
and ex pectations of sharehotders and will continue to communicate
the Company's strategy al appropriate intervals as progress 1s made

all shareholders have the cpportunity, and are encouraged. to
attend and vote at the Arnual Gereral Meeting of the Company,
during which the Board will be availabie to discuss matters affecting
the Company. John Ristan will be the primary pointof contact for
sharcholder liaison, As the Senjor Independent Directon, Helen Joncs
will be available to sharcholders if they have anissue that the normal
channels of commuiication have tatled to resolve or forwhich such
chanaels of communication are inappropriate

The Company’s website contains infermation on the Company,
inctuding the year end and interimiesults announcements as well
as all Annual Reports, notices of Annual General Meetings and
general meetings, proxy voting details, cnculars sent to sharehotde s
and any other information sent to sharehoiders. It alsg includes
information on the Audit Committee and Remunerations Committee
terims of references
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Corporate Governance Report continued

(3]

Take into account wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their implications for long-
term success

The Company’s stakcholders principally include its customers,
suppliers, employees, sharehalders, potential vendors and
executive management teams and this list of resources and business
relationships on which the business relies will be monitored by the
Board. The principal ways inwhich the Company engages with these
stakeholders is through direct dialogue and relies on their teedback
through meetings, conversations and formal feedback processes.

The Company is also aware of the impact its business and
operations have an the wider community and places great
impaortance on community and social respansibility. The Board

is committed to developing a plan to minimise the Campany’s
environmental impact through further product innovation, targeted
operational initiatives and collaboration with its stakeholders. The
Company has expanded data capture and improved management
systems and processes, including the implementation of full
emission reporting for both tracking and transparency. Further
details can be found in the Sustainability Section on page 28.

o

Embed effective risk management, considering
both opportunities and threats, throughout the
organisation

The Board conducts a review of its system of internal control to
ensure compliance with best practice quarterly, while atsc having
regard to its size and the resources avalable The review covers all
material controls, including linancial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management systems and incorporates an analysts
of the regulatory and fiscal position in the Lerritories in which the
Company opet ates,

The Boaid is responsible for ensuring the Company has cflcctive and
robust systerns of internal controls and these controls are designed
to manage. but not clirminate, the risk of failire to achieve business
objectives and provide reasanable, but not absolute, assurance
againsi material misstaterments and loss, The Board has compiled &
comprehensive st of these risks which are detailed on pages 44 ta 46,

The Board has established an audit Committee, a summary of the
terims of which s set out on page 54.

The Company mainlains appropriste insurance cover inespoct of
actions teken aganst the Board and/or the Group. Theinsurance
cover in place will be reviewed an a perodic basis.

(5]

Maintain the Board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chairman

The Board currently comprises a Non-Lxeculive Charrman, two
Exccutive Directors and three Non-Executive Directors (two of whom
are considered to beindependenth. The Board has considered

each Non-Fxecutive Director’s interests in the share capital of the
Company and considers that Heler Jones and Sophie Tomkins are
independent in character and judgement and the Board does not
betieve that either of them has any relationships or circumstances
which are likely 1o affect, or could appear to affect, their judgement
as an independent Non-Fxecutive Director.

Fach member of the Board will seek re-election at least once every
three years

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for the proper
management of the Company and has committed to meet at
least quarterly to discuss the strategy of the Company and review
potential opportunities in g structured and orderly manner,

The Executive Directors are required to dedicate appropriate time,
being the Company's normal business hours and such other hours
required, to the Company. The three Non-Executive Directors and the
Non-Executive Chairman are each required to dedicate appropriate
time, being two days (or equivalent per month, to the Company.

The Board is awarc of the other commitments and interests of its
members, and changes Lo these commitments and interests are
reported to and, where appropriate, agreed with the Board.

The Company has put i place an Audit Committee and a Remuneration
Commitiee, sumimarics of the terms of reference for each are set out
under pages 54 and 56.

o

Ensure that between them the Board hasthe
necessary up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

The Board has a wealtn of knowledge and experierce, as illustrated
by the biopraphy of pach Board member, which can be found on
pagc 46

The Board believes that it has the appropriate mis of ex» penience.
expertise, personal gualities and skills in order to effectively
implementits strotegy The Board intends to hold meetings regularly
throughout the year and as required, for example when a potenuial
opportunity i« presented which requires more immediate attention
and Board input. In any event, Board meeatings will be held eleven
umes cachyear. Board mectings have been held in person where
possible, and where this has not been practically pessible, via video
conference,



Strategic Report.

During the course of the year, the Board continues to receve
updates from its nominated adviser and legal advisers in relation 1o
corporate governance matters Each Director takes responsibility
for maintaining his or her own skill set, which inctudes roles

and experience with other Boards and organisations as well as
formal training and seminars. This will be reviewed hy the Board
periodically.

Each member of the Board can take independent professional
advice in the continuance of their duties, if necessary, at the
Company’s expense. In addition, the Board has direct accesstothe
advice and services of the Company advisers, Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer.

Governance Report

Evaluate Board performance based on clear
and relevant objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

The Board undertakes a formal process of evaluating its own
performance and effectiveness and that of the individual members
of the Board and members of the Board Committees,

o

Promote a corporate culture that is based on
ethical values and behaviours

The Board has putin place an effective corporate governance and
comphiance framework The Board has established a corporate
culture hased on sound ethical values and behaviours and intends
to lead from the front in promaoting the adoption of this culture
throughaut the Group.

As well as being delicious and enjoyable, it is of the utmost
impartance to us that every wine we seft s created and delivered to
customers”homes in a way that we are proud of. This involves ethical
sourcing praclices ereating a supportive and inclusive workplace.
and having a positive impact on our environment. We are working
towards a short term Carbon Neutral goal, alongside a long-term
Met Zoro goal. Virgin Wines' approach to cthical values within the
Groupis further set out i the Sustainability Section on page 28.
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Maintain governance structures and processes
that are fit for purpose and support good decision-
making by the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall manzagement and control
of the Company. The Board reviews its strategy regularly and is
responsible for determining the strategic focus of the Company.

As set out above, the Board met eleven times a year to review,
formulate and approve the Company’s strategy, budgets. corporate
actions and oversee the Company’s progress towards its goals. The
Company has established an Audit Committee and a Remuneration
Committee with farmally delegated duties and responsibilities and
with written terms of reference. Consideration will be piven by the
Board lo futurc succession plans for members of the Board as well
as consideration as to whether the Board has the skills required to
manage the Company effectively.

The Board discusses and reviews all matters and issucs which are
important to the business. Certain decisions are reserved for the
Board and they can be found on page 50,

10/

Communicate how the Company is governed and
is performing by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant stakeholders

The Company communic ates with its shareholders through the
Annual Report and Accounts, full-year and half year announcements,
the Annual General Meeting and meetings/discussions with the
Company’s major existing or potentiat shareholders. The Companywill
communicate principally by way of the release of regulatory and othes
announcements as and when information is available to disclose,

The Company's website, wwwyirginwinesple.co.uk. is regularly
updated Ihe Company's Annual Report and Accounts are iocated
under the 'Documents’ section of the website, Notices of the general
meetings of the Company will be located under the 'Financiai
Calendar’ section of the website,

The results of voting on all resclutions at general meetings are
pasted to the webhsite on a timely basis, including any actions 1o be
taken as a result of resolutions of which votes against have been
received by a significent proportion of votes,
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Audit Committee Report

Sophie Tomkins
Chair of the
Audit Committee

Budit Committee Members

Sophie Tomkins - Chair
Helen Jones
Ed Wass

The Audit Commitiec is responsible for ensuring that the financial
performance of the Group is preperly reported and reviewed s

rofe includes monitoring the integrity of the linancial statements
including annual and interim accounts and results announcements),
reviewing internal control and risk management systems reviewing
any changes to accounting policies, reviewing and monitoring the
extent of the non-audit services undertaken by external auditors and
advising on the appointment of external auditors.

Members of the Audit Committee

The membership of the Committee is set oul on page 47 of the
Corporate Governance Report. Sophie Tomikins became Chair

upon the 1IPQ in March 2621, Two members of the Committec,
including the Chair, are independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Chief Financial Officer routinely attends the Audit Committee
meetings by invitation, but other Executive Directors or members
of the management team may also be invited to attend meetings as
required The Non-Executive Directors are provided an opporturity
at the Audit Conunittee meetings to discuss matters with the
Auditars wilhout the presence of the Executive Directors. The Board
i satisficd that the Chalr of the Commitiee has recent znd relevant
financial expericnce. Sophie s a Chartered Accountant and is also
Chair of the Audit Committer at Hotel Chocolat Group ple, Systeml
Group ple and The Snowfox Group. The Comimitize meets at feast
twice a year and more frequently if required. and has unrestric ted
access to the Group's auditor. Attendance at Board and Commitiee
meetings is set out in the Carporate Governance Repart on page

50. During FY22, two formal meetings were held, with additional
meetings for planning.

“FY22 has been a challenging year, but the Audit
Committee is pleased with the stability and
financial discipline of the Group.”

Duties

The main duties of the Audit Committee are set aut inits terms of
reference, which are summarised on page 50 and available on the
Group's website fwwwvirginwinesplc.co uk)

The work carried out by the Audit Committee during FY22 comprised
the following:
« ensuring the financial performance of the Company is being
property measured and reparted on;
review of the FY22 audit plan,
consideration of key audit matters and how they are addressed:
+ Going Concern Review:
review of suitability of the exterral auditor;
- review of the financial statements and Annual Report;

» review of the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies
and jJudgements made in the preparation of the financial
statements, and adequacy of the disclosures made therein:

« consideration ot the externa! audit report and management
representation letter:

« review of the risk management and internal control systems,
« meeting with the external auditor without management present;

« review of anti-bribery policy and whistleblowing arrangements.

Ruditor objectivity, independence, and performance

The Audit Committee monitors the relabionship with the external
auditor to ensure that auditar independence and objectivity are
maintained Aspartafthis role, the Conunittee reviews the non-audit
fees of the auaitor Pw(C's fees for the tinancial period to 1 July 2022
arc disclosed innote 7. Non-audit fees 1efate primarily to lax matlers,
and are not significant Lo PwC as a firm.
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The Audit Committee also assesses the auditor's performance.

The Committee has adopted a broad framework to review the
effectivencss of the Group’s exlernal audit process and audil

quality which includes: asscssment of the audit partner and team
with particular focus on the lead audit engagement partner,
planning and scope of the audit, with identification of particular
areas of audit risk; the planned appraach and execution of the audit;
management of an effec tive audit process: communications by the
auditors with e Contmittee; how the audit contributes insights
and adds value; a review of independence and objectivity of the
audit firm; and the quality of the formal audit report to shareholders
Having reviewad the auditor's independence and performance,

the Audit Cammittec recommends that PwC be reappeinted as the
Group's auditor at the next AGM.

Significant jssues considered in relation tothe
Ennual Report and Financial Statements

The Audit Committee considered whether the Financial Statements
are fair, balanced and provide the necessary information and
disclosures for Shareholders to assess the Group's performance,
strategy and business model. The Committee were satisfied the
Financial Statements for the period ended 1 July 2022 are fair and
achieved these stated objectives

Inso doing the Audit Committee assessed whether suitahle
accounting policies were adopted and the reasanableness of key
estimates and judgement used in the preparation of the Financial
Statements In particutar the Audit Commitlee assessed areas
identitied as key audit nsks including the follovang:

+ thecarrying value of goodwill in the Group Financial Statements
and judgements on impalrment,

the use of Alternative Performance Measures 1o provide
additional ¢larity of the Graup's finandial performance; and

« theimpairment assessment of the carying value of amounts due
from Group undertaking and the parent company investment.

Auditor’s tenure

PwC were ieappointed as auditor following an open tender process
In 2621, The audit partner Jonathan Studholme is in the second
vear of signing off the audit. While there s no immediate plan to re-
tender, the Audit Committes will continue to abserve best practice
for AIM Lsted campanies and make appropnate recommendations
to the Board

Internal audit

At present the Group doces not have an internal audit furction

and the Committee believes that management ‘s able to derive
assurance as to the adequacy and eflectiveness of internal controls
and risk management procedures without one,
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Risk management and internal controls

As described throughout the Annual Report and the Corporate
Governance section of the Group's website {www.virginwinesple
co.uk;, the Group has established a framework of risk management
and internal control systems, policies and procedures. The Audit
Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management and
internal control framework and ensuring that it operates effectively.
The Committee supports Lhe Buard in s overall responsibility for
risk management activities and implementing policies to ensure
that risks are cvaluated, measured and kept under review by way of
appropriate KPIs. Presentations from senior management across the
business are provided o the Board o Turther develop information.
understanding and debate oniisks.

The Group will centinue to improve and cvolve its risk management
tframework by developing and embedding the necessary capabilitics
within the crganisation to suppart informed risk taking by the
business, Management, tugether with the Board, periodically review
and revise risk appetites setting out risks that should be avoided and
thase that can offer sustainable and positive returns.

Whistleblowing

The Group has in place a process whereby employees can discuss
concerns confidentially. The Committee 1s comfortable that the
current policy is operating effectively.

Anti-bribery

The Group has in place an anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy
which sets out its zero-tolerance position and provides information
and guidance to those working for the Group on how to recognise
and deal with bribery and corruption 1ssues *he Comnuttee is
comfortable that the current policy is operating effectively.

Section 479¢ Companies Bct 2006 Audit exemption

The Group have opted Lo apply the audit exemption for subsiciary
companies avallable under section 479¢ of the Companies Act 2006
far the FY22 reporting period.

Sophie Tomkins
Chair, Audit Committee
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Remuneration Committee Report

Helen Jones
Chair of the
Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee Members

Helen Jones - Chair
Sophie Tomkins
John Risman

As the Company is lisied on the Alternative investment Markel it is
not required to provide all of the information mcluded in this Report.
However, we pravide disclosures in addition to Lthat winch is required
by AIM Rule 19 on a voluntary basis to enable sharcholders ta
understand and consider our remuneration arrangements,

The Company is commitlted Lo high standards of corporate
governance and our remuneration: policy and disclosures are
designed to reflect this approach,

Composition of the Committee and role

The Committee members are Helen Jones {as Chairt, Sophie
Tomkins iNon-Executive Director) and John Risman {(Non-Executive
Chairman The Executive Directors may attend mectings from time
totime at the invitation of the Comimitiee and provide information
and support as requested Dircctors arc excluded from discussion
an their own remuncration packages 1o ensure there is no possible
conflict of interest,

Tne sclivities of the Comnmitiee are governed by 1ts termis of
reference, which are available from the Group's website

Inexcrcising its role, the Remuneration Committec has regard Lo
the recommiendations pul tarward in the QCA Code and, where
appropnate, the QCA Remuneration Committec Guide and
assoclated guidance.

The Remuneration Committec determines, on behall of the
Board, the Group's policy for executive remuneration and the
indiviclual remuneratior packages for Executive Directors

“On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present
the remuneration report for the financial period
to1lJuly 2022. It sets out our remuneration policy
and the detailed remuneration for the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors of the Group. The
information is unaudited except where stated”

The Remuneration Committee reviews the incentive and reward
packages for the Executive Directors to ensure that they are aligned
with the Group's strategic objectives and financial pertormance;
are appropriate to attracl. retain and motivate executive behaviour
in support of the creation of shareholder value: and drive continued
commitment of executives to the Group's success through
appropriate mcentive schemes

FIT Remuneration Consullants is appointed as adviser to the
Cornmittec. FIT Remuneration Consultants is a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct and has confirmed to the
Committee that it adheres v all respects to the tenms of the Code,

The Remuneration Committee met two times during the year and
all Remuneration Committee members were in attendance The
Cammittee will normally meet at least twice every year,

Remuneration Policy

The Company's remuneration policy is designed ta attract, metivate
and retain high calibre individuals whe will contribute fully to the
success of the Group. Itis ntended that this policy conforms with best
practice standards commiensurate with its si7e ane market listing

The key ohjectives of the policy are to:
align executive packages with Group objectives and sharehaoider
interests;

- create an appropriate balance between fixed and perfarmarnce
related elements and between short ter and tong lerm
pcriormance;

ensure vanable pay elemonts are based on apmopriate
performanc e critena:

« promote a high-performance culture;

« support the recruitment, motivation, development and retention
of quality people:

+align with the expectations of shareholdess; and

+ ensure appropriate consideration s grven to non-financial and
sustainahility objectives when setting remuneration packages
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Element and
link to strategy

Operation
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Maximum opportunity
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-]

Performance

Base Salary

Help recruit and retain high
performing Executive Directors.
Reflects the individual's role,
evperignce and contribution.

Set at levels to attract and retain
individuals of the calibre required to
lead the business,

Benefits

Base salaries are reviewed annually
with any increases normally taking
effecton 1 July of each year.

Salanes are appropriately
benchmarked and reflact the role,
job size and responsibility as welt as
the performance and effectiveness
of the individual

Whilst there is no prescribed
formulaic maximum, any increases
will take into account prevailing
market and economic conditions
as well as increases for the wider
workforce.

N/A

Provide a competitive evel of
henefits.

Benefits are inline with those
offered to other senior management
employees and may include medical
expenses cover and life insurance
cover.

The cost of providing these benefits
can vary in accordance with market
conditions, which will, therefare,
determine the maximum value.

N/A

Provide a competitive level of
pension benefit.

Annual Bonus

Executive Directors are eligible
to receive an employer’s pension
contribution or a cash supplement.

Maxirnum contribution corrently 5%
of base salary.

This percentage Is in line with the
pension conttibution made by the
Company to its workforce.

N/A

Incentivise and reward the
achievement of stretching one year
key performance targets set by

the Cornmittee al the start ot each
financial year,

Parameters, performance criteria,
weightings and targets are set at the
start of each year.

Payments are made in cash following
completion of the year, subject to the
assessment of performance against
targets and the Committee retaing
the discretion to adjust the benus
cutcomes to ensure that they reflect
underlying business performancc.

Awards ore subject tomalus /
clawback previsions.

The maximum banus opportunity
for the CEQ and CFO is 100% of base
salary.

Performance measures may include
financial, non-financial, personat
and strategic objectives.

Performance criteria and weightings
may be changed from year to year.

At present, the performance target
15 hased an Group earnings which
is considered by the Committee

to be the Group's key financial
performance indicator.

Long Term Incentive Plan

Incentivise and reward Fxecutive
Directors for the delivery of lenger
term finarcial performance and
shareholder value.

Share-based to provide alignment
with shareholder irterests,

Awards are granted as nil cost
options ar conditional awards which
vest afler three years subject to the
meeting of objective performance
conditions specified at award. An
additional holding period post
vesting may be applied.

Awards are subject to malus /
clawback provisions.

Dividend equivalents may be added
to awards.

The maximum annual awad for the
CFO and CFO 15 100% of base salary.

Performance measures may
include financiat and share price
performance-based targets.
Performance criteria and
weightings may be changed from
year to year.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Element and
link to strategy Operation Maximum epportunity Performance

Shareholding guidelines

Increase alignment between If any Executive Director does not Minimum shareholding of 2009 of N/A
Executive Direclors and meet the guideline, they will be salary for all Executive Birectors.
shareholders. expected to retain up to 50% of

the net of tax number of shares
vesting under any of the Company’s
discretionary share incentive
arrangements until the guideline

fs met.
Non-Executive Director remuneration
Support recruitment and retention Non-Executive Directors are paid The Board is guided by the general N/A
of Non-Executive Directors with a base feein cash, with additianal increase for the broader employee
the necessary breadth of skills and fees payable for chainng a Board population and takes into account
experience, Committee. Fees are reviewed relevant market movements.

periodically. in addition, reascnable
business expenses may be
reimbursed.

Provide fees appropriate to time
commitments and responsibilities
of each role.

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Directors entered into new rolling service contracts with the Group on admission to AIM in March 2021 with an indefinite term,
but a fixed period of 12 months’ notice of termination.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Fxecutive Directors do not have service contracts but have letters of appointment dated 24 February 2021 for an initial term of three
years. The appointments are subject to a three month notice period Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration is approved by the Beard,

Summary of Director’s Remuneration (audited)
The following table sets out the total remuneration of the Directors who served during the financial period to 1 July 2022

2022 2041
Basic Batic

Waarr, Saiary/Fee Bonus Pension Benefits Total Salary Fee Bonys Fens on Beiefins Tt
Executive

lay Wright 275,000 - 20,667 6,273 301,940 205575 - 13.55% 1814 232940
Graeme Weir 210,000 - 10,500 1,800 228,300 IRERE] - 23,205 10732 2002 670
Non-Executive

John Risman 70,000 - - - 70,000 AT - - - 41604
Eddward Wass 45,000 - - - 45,000 3008 - - - ERATEY]
Helen Jones 50,000 - - - 50,000 1566, 7 - - ThEE
Sophue Tomkirs 50,000 - - - 50,000 R - - - 16,667

1 Helea Junes end Sopee lorkms were apoointed tbe Board on 1) ~ebita y 2021 so thie comparative fees for 202 et et the meomp ete vea of service

2 LdveardWass s o Fortfcho Partner o Gres 1am ouse Asset Moo nt Lirwted ard fe-s o ot pto s seraces onbehalf of te soard are palte Gresbam Hoose

Mo performance related bonus was payable for FYZ2. There was no performance bonus in place for the Fxecative Directors for the FY21
finarcial perind.
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Annual Bonus
The FY22 bonus was measured against Group Adjusted EBITDA targets, The performance shiding scale was set considering the internal and
external market expectations at the time, with maximum payout only achieved for performance in excess of these

Despite outperformance during the year on several key indicators, including an industry-leadimg LEITDA margin of 9.0%, the outturm aganst
the stretching targets set under the plan resulted in no bonus being awarded and therefore the targets have not been disclosed.

Long-Term Incentive Awards granted during the year
Long term incentive awards were granted to the CEQ and CFO on & December 2021

[BETEAS tate ot Gt Ferboermance Cnteng BUNTTAN [rereme ™ i Petlarng wo fenud en g
Jay Wnght 6 December 2021 FY24 Revenue and Farnings 1340567 £0.01 30 June 20Z4
Graeme Wer 06 December 2021 I ¢24 Revenue and Earnings 102,571 focel 30 June 2024

The value at the grant was calculated on the <lesing share price of £1.795 and each award represented 75% of annual salary. The vesting date
for the award 1s 1 November 2074
There were no awards to the Executive Directors in the period to 2 july 2021.

Also on & December 2021, a second LTIP share award was made to 25 stafl with a vesting date of 1 November 2024 with Group revenue and
profit performance conditions attached to the majority of the award. t or the award Lo fully vest, the Group would need to outperform market
expeclations at the grant date. Asummary of the staff LTIP awards granted to date is set out below:

T mtses ol stall Dele o Srant Forlormancs Cr lena Shiarey Ersrome Frng Perforr ance Penice eneng
LTP 124 Stat 23 June 2021 Y23 Revenue and Earrings 433,288 001 30 Jure 2022
[ TIP 2 25 Siaff 1e Decamber 2021 FY¥23 Revenue and Ezrm -gs 580,311 0] 30 Jure 2024

If futly vested, ail Staff and Executive awards would total 1,216,139 shares representing 2.18% of the shares in issue at 1 July 2022,

Director’sinterest inshares
The interest of the Directors as at 1 July 2022 in the shares of the Company were:

Hlarne Number % of issued
Jay whipht 4,631,260 8.3%
Graery e Wer 3,130,082 6%
Johin Rismian 1,513,834 3%
Fdward Wass Nil Nil
Helon fores Nil Nil

Nil Nit

Sophie Tomkins

As at 1 July 202/ Rapunzel Newcao Limited hela the sharehelding ot fo.n VO T funds managed by Gresham House Asset Management. Edwand
Wass 1s a Portfolic Partner at Gresham House Asset Management. The tatal number of shares held by Rapunzel Newco | imited were 20,131.614
representing 36.1% of the shares in1ssue In addition to the sharehalding of Rapunzel Newco Limited. Gresham House Asset Management held
3,020,304 shares representing 5.4% of shares in1ssue and taking the total shareholding managed by Gresham House to 41.5%.

Based anthe share price at 1 July 2022, the Executive Directors have a shareholding in eacess of the 200% of salary shareholding guideline
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Directors’ remuneration for the period commencing 2 July 2022

Executive Directors

There will e noincrease in Director salaries for F¥Y23. The satanes far CEQ and CFO remain at ¥275,000 and £210,000 respectively.

The Commuttee has approved implementation of an annual bonus scheme for Executive Directors for 2623 which will operate as set out in
the policy table above The FY23 banus wiil be measured against Group earnings and strategic targets The performance shiding scale was

set considering the internal and external market expectatians at the time, with maxirmum payout only achieved for performance in excess of
these The Remuneration Committee considers the actual performance targets to be commercially sensitive,

Long-term incentive awards are planned to be granted to the Executive Directors during the year and will operate as set out in the policy table
above The measures and targets are yet to be confirmed but will bhe disclosed in next year's report,
Non-Executive Directors

Fifective 2 July 2022, the annual fee payable to John Risman is £ 72,800, The base fee payabie to the other Non-Executives is £46,800, with an
additional annual fee of £5,200 payable to Helen Jones and Sophie Tomkins for chairing the Remuneration and Audit Committees

Helen Jones
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Report
for the period ended 1 Juty 2022

The Directors present their report and audited consolidated and
Company financial statements lor the period ended 1 July 2022,

Businessreview and future developments

A review of Group performance during the period including key
performance indicators, business risks and comments on future
developments is givenin the Chairman's Statement on page 48 and
the Strategic Report on pages 2 Lo 45,

Results and dividends

The Group has reported its consolidated financial statements and
Company accounts in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the Compariies Act 2006

The Group's revenue in the period was £69.2m {2021: £73.6m; and
profit after tax of £4.4m {2021: £0.7m).

The Board is not recemmending a final dividend for the period
{2021 nil).

Post Balance Sheet events

There are no matters anising after the balance sheet date that wouid
require disclosure in the financial statements,

Directors and their interests

The Directors of the Company who held office during the pernod and
up to the date of approving the Group financial statements were:

Executive

Jay Wright
Graeme Weir

Non-Executive

Johin Risman
Helen Jones
Sophic Tomkins
Ed Wass

The Directors who held office during the pertod had the following
interests in the Ordinary Shares of the Company:

arte of Lirecton [T
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Jay Wright 4031204
Gracme Wer 3,130,052
John Risman 1513834
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Directors’insurance

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the
benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third party indemnity
orovision as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006.
The indemnity was in force throughout the last financial year and
is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintained
throughout the financial year Directors’ and Cfficers’ liability
insurance in respect of itself and its Directors

HAppointment and replacement of Directors

Ihe rules governing the appointment and resignation of Directors
are contained within the Company’s Articies of Association.

The Articles can be found on the Company’s website, www.
virginwinesplc.ca.uk,

Political donations

It is the Company’s pelicy not to make political donations. The
Directors confirm that no pelitical donations were made during the
period (2021: Fnilh.

Share capital and voting

As at 1 July 2022 the Company's issued share capital comprised
55,837,560 Qrdinary Shares of £0 01 The holders of Ordinary Shares
are entitled to one vote per shate at the general meeting.

Significant shareholdings

As at 23 August 2022, the Company has been advised of the following
significant shareholding interests in 3% or more of the voting rights.

Lt Bl ssara
Ranunzel Newce Limited 20,131,610 36 104
Otus Capital Management 4,850,610 87%
Jaywright 4631268 R 3%,
Graeme Weir 3,130,052 5 4%
Cresham House Asset Management 3.420,401 5 AR
Umicorn Asset Management 2 288,834 4 1%
Liontrust Assel Managemernit 22195027 1.0%¢
AXA Framiingtor Investment Manage 1.933.217 250
Premies Mitor Investons 1,873,446 ERIE

1 Zresham House Aoset Llonagement misnagss Uie shareholdmg of Rapuy 1. =
Newc o Limited 36 1800 adation o the shaehriding of 8 55
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Directors’ Report continued

Employee involvement and equal opportunities

Fmployee involvement is encouraged at all levels vathin the
Group and 1s a key part of the Company culture which contribuites
towards the success of tne business. The Group provides regular
communications to staff on corporate strategy and objectives.
Second awards under the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan were
made on 6 December 2021 to 24 senior staff.

The Group is committed to eliminating disc rimination in any form
and promoting diversity within the workforce and the wider group of
stakeholders. Cur people should be a reflection of the whole society
including our custemers and suppliers.

Corporate Governance

The Group has signed up to the QCA Code of Conduct. Gur
Statement on Corporate Governance is included on pages 4610 63 of
the report.

Statement of Engagement with stakeholders

Developing our stakeholder relationships is central to our culture
and values. We believe in tostering positive relationships with
our employees, suppliers, customers and sharehalders. Further
information on how we engage with our strategic partners are
included in our Strategy Report on page 2 to 45 and also inou
Section 172 statement on pages 36 to 39.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

The Group is cominitted to understanding the impact of our

business on the environment and taking ail reasonable steps to
eliminate or reduce any harms caused by our economic activity
Our SECR reporting s icluded on pages 28 1o 35 of this report.

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to operate for a periad of atleast 12 months
from the date of approving these financial statements. Accordingly,
they have adopted the going concern basis in preparing these
financial statements.

Juring the penod the Group met its day-to-day working capital
requirements through cash generated fraom operating activities
The Group’s torecasts and projections. taking account ot a severe
but plausibie change in trading performance, show that Lhe Group
should be able o operate using cash generated lrom operations,
and that no additional borrowing facilities will be required. The
Group has no external borntowings and s not subject to any
COVENANE MEeasures,

Financialrisk

The financial risk management objectives and poticies of the Group,
ncluding credit risk liquidity nsk, foreign currency exchange risk
and capital management, are provided ninote 24 of the financial
slatements.

Future developments of the Group

The Company will continue to focus on organic growth by increasing
the investrnent in new customer acquisition, in 1T systems to
improve customer experience and grow the Commercial Division.

Notice of Annual General Meeting {AGM)

Details of the matters to be conducted at the AGM will be contained
in the Notice of Annual General Meeting which will be communicated
separately to shareholders. IU1s the opinion of the Ditectors that the
passing of AGM resolutions is in the bestinterest of all sharcholdurs.

Disclosure of information to Auditors

The Directors of the Company ai the date of approval of this report
confirm that:

+ scfaras each Directoris aware, there is na relevant audit
information of which the Company’s and Group's auditors are
unaware; and
each Director has taken all reasonable steps they cught to have
taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant
information and to establish that the Company's and Group's
auditors are aware of that information.

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingness Lo continue inoffice and a resolution that they be
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeling.

Approval

The Directors’ Reportwas approved on behalf of the Bomd on
26 Qctober 2022.

raeme Weir

Chief Financial Officer

Virgin Wines UK ple

37-41 Roman Way Industiial Estate
Longridge Road

Preston PRZ? 5BD

Registered Number 13169238
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and
the financial stalements 1n sccordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Dircctors to prepare tinancial statements
for cach financial vear, Under that law the Dircctors have prepared
the Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Under company law, Directers must not approve the linancial
statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period. in preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
cansistently;

«  state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting
standards have been followed, subject ta any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that arc reasonable
and prudent; and

+ prepare thefinancial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company
will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible tor keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy

at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the finanoial statements comply with the
Companes Act 2006,

Ihe Directors ate1espansible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial staterments may differ
from tegislation in other juisdictions.

I he Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was approved on by the
Board on the 26 October 2022

aeme Weir

Chief Financial Officer

63
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Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Virgin Wines UK plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In cur opinion, Virgin Wines UK plc's group financial statements and company [inanuial statements {the “financial statements” .

+ giveatrue and fair view of the slate of the proup’s and of the company's affairs a5 at 1 July 2022 and of the group's profit and the group's
cash flows tor the period from Z July 2021 to 1 July 2022,

«  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts ithe "Annual Report”), which comprise: the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial Position as at 1 July 2022; the Consolidated Staterment

of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fquity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Company

Statement of Changes in Fquity for the period then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
signicant accounting policics.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing IUK} "1SAs {(UK) ™ and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under 1SAs (UK are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We belipve
that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Fthical Standand, as applicable to lisled entities, and we have [ulfilleg our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance wilh these requirenients.

Qur audit approach
Cverview
RAudit scope

« lhe Group consists of three reporting compaonents, which are its legal entities. allincorporated and operating within the UK. The Group
financial statements are a cansalidation of these three reporung components.

- Weidentifiec one component which required an audit of its complete financial information, being the oy trading entity in the Group,
Virgin Wine Online |imited.

One further component, Virgin Wines UK plo, was also subject te audit procedures over accruals and administrative expenses due to then
contribution to the Group. The remaining component, Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited, was deemed inconsequential to the Group,

»  Asaresult of this scoping we obtained coverage over 100% of Group revenue and 99% of Group prolit before tax.

Key audit matters
- Goodwill impairment assessment (group)

impairment assessment for investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from Group undertakings {parent)

Materiality

« Overall group matenality: £254,300 (2021: £260,000) based on 5% of profit before tax (2021 profit betore tax and exceptional items).
Overall company materiality: £94,920 (2021: £92 680) based on 1% of net asscts.

+ Performance matenality: £191,000 {2021: £195,600) {group) and £71,190 (2021 £69,517) (company},
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The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the nisks of material misstatement in the financial statements.
Key audit matters '

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
staterments of the current period and include the most signiticant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether o1 not due to fraud
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thercon, were
addressed in the context of our audit of the finandizl statenients as 3 whole. and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

This is nol a complete list of all nisks identified by our audit.

Goodwill impairment assessment (groupand Impairment assessment for investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from Group
undertakings (parent’ are new hey audit matters this year Impact of the Iniual Public Cffering (1IPG™ {group and parent}, which was a key audil
matter last year, 1s no longer included because the IPO transaction was a one-off event in the previous year Otherwise, the key audit matters
below are consistont with last year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill impairment assessment (group)

Refer 1o page 81 {Judgements in applying accounting policies and key Our work over management’s goodwill impairment assessment included
sources of estimation uncertainty) and note 15, the following substantive procedures:

The Group holds goodwill of £9,623,000 (2021: £9,623,000). As required - We evaluated the discounted cash flow model prepared by the cirectors,
by UK-adopted international accounting standards, specifically IAS 36 checking the relevant inputs to supporting documentation ard
‘Impairment of assets’, it is the responsibility of the directors {o test challenging management on key assumptions within the calcuiations.
goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if there are Qur challenge included assessing whether management had considered
indicators of impairment. consumer trends and any associated climate change considerations
The Group has only one cash-generating unit {*CGU”} which is Virgin Wine within their model;

Ontine Limited. +  We obtained an external specialist report that management used for the

discount rate and using our own valuabion specialist, we challenged a
number of the key inputs i the report and concluded that the
methodologies adopted by the speciatist in forming the valuation were
consistent with industry practice and the discount rate used was within
our acceptable range;

In performing their impairment assessment, the directors determine
the recover able amount of the CGU by estimating its value in use, using
a discounted cash flow model basec on the Beard-approved budget.
The model incorporates a number of assumptions, for example, revenue
growth, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

{"EBITDA™} growth, the terminal growth rate and the discount rate. . Weecalculated management’s own sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions used in the value in use assessment and also challenged

the appropriateness of management's sensitivity analysis. We also
performed our own independent breakeven analysis on the discount
rate 1o establish the point where an impairment existed;

- We assessed the accuracy of management’s hustonic forecasts against
actual financial resuits to assess the reasonableness of growth
assumptions used in the forecast;

» We considered publicly available information and considered whethes
there were any views contrary to those of management; and

« We checked the goodwill disclosures made in the financial statenerits
back to supporting docurmnentation.

Based on our work performed, we concluded that no impairment
was necessary to the carryimg value of goodwill, and that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the financial statements.
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Independent auditors’ report continued

Our audit approach continued

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impairment assessment for investments in subsidiaries
and amounts due from Group undertakings (parent)
Refer to page 81 {Judgements in applying accounting policies and key Ourwork over management's impairment assessment relating to the
sources of estimation uncertainty) and note 5 to the company financial Company's investment in subsidiaries and amounts due from Group
statements. undertakings included the following substantive procedures:
Tne Campany has amounts due from Group undertakings of £9,463,000 » Weevaluated management’s recovery scenarios of the amounts due
{2021: £9,498,000) which are unsecured, interest free and repayable cn from Group undertakings, checking the relevant inputs te supporting
demand. The carrying amount of these intercompany loans is assessed documentation and challenging management on key assumptions
forimpairment in accordance with Uk-adopted international accaunting within the calculations;
standards, specifically the IFRS 9 expected credit losses (“ECL") model, »  Wechecked that management’s assessment of impairment for both
The directors have applied the ECL model to determine if any provision to balances used consistent assumptions of future cash flows as those
reduce the carrying amount of these loans is required. For intercompany used for the Group goodwill impairment assessment. Our procedures
loans that are repayable on demand, the expected credit loss is based on the over these future cash flows are described in the separate Key Audit
assumption that repayment of the loans is demanded at the reporting date. Matter above; and
The directors have determined that the borrower has insufficient highly liquid ~ «  We checked the disclosures made in the financial statements back to
resources at the reporting date, therefore the directors have considered supporting documentation.

the expected manner of recovery and recovery period of the intercompany
loans {the Company’s 'recovery scenarios’). The Company’s recovery strategy
would require the settlement via dividend distribution by Virgin Wine Online
Limited. Considering a number of factors, the directors determined that the
ECLimpairmentis inconsequential to the financial statements.

The Company has an investment balance of £774,000 (2021: £675,000}.

The existence of impairment indicators was first considered. The carrying
amount of the investment was also assessed for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36, after amounts due from Group undertakings. using the same
impairment model as for the Group's goadwill, as described above.

Based on our work performed, we concluded that no impairment of
investments in subsidiaries or amounts due from Group undertakings
Was necessary.

In performing theirimpairment assessment, the directors determine the
recoverabie ameunt of the investment by estimating its value in use, using
adiscounted cash flow model based on the Board-approved budget,

The model incorporates a number of assumptions, for example, revenue
growth, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EB11 DA”) growth, the terminal growth rate and the discount rate.

How we tailored the audit scope

W lailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statemenis as a
whele, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and contiols, and the industry inwhich
they operate.

The Gloup consists of threc reparting componenis, being one bradag company and two holding companies. all of which are accounted for
by the Group finance team [hese components are also each separate legal entities based in the UK. The Greup financial statements are a
consolidation of these components,

We idenlificd one component which required an audit of its comiplete financial information, beng the only trading entity in the Group. Virgm
Wine Online Limited, based on its contribution to profit before tax.

One further component, Yirgin Wines UK ple, was alse subject to audit procedures over accruals and adnunistrative expenses duc to then
contribution to the Group. The remamning component, Viegin Wines Holding Company Limited, was deemed inconsequential to the Group.

We atso audited material consohdation journats. All audit work over the twa in-scope components and the consolidation was performed by
the Group audit team.

A aresult of thes scoping we ebtaimed coverage over 100% ot Group revenue and 99% of Graup profit before tax.
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Materiality

The scape of our audit was inflienced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of cur audit procedures on
the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate
on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiabity for the financial staterments as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements - company
Overall
. £254,800 (2021 £260.000). £94,920 (2021: £92,6501,
materiality
How we 5% of profit before tax

. . . ; ) ) . 1% of net assets
determined it (2021: profit before tax and exceptional items)

Rationale for Profit before tax is considered to be 2 key metric used to Net assets is appropriate as the entity 15 not profit oriented. The company
benchmark assess the performance of the Group, and is a generally holds an investment in the rest of the Group. Net assets is considered a
applied accepted auditing benchmark. generally acceptable auditing benchmark.

for each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality thatis less than our overall group materiality The range
of materiality allocated across componenls was £200,000 to £223,000. Certain components were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality

We use performance matenality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstalements exceeds overalt maleriality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the
nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for examgle in determining sample sizes,
Our performance materiality was 75% {2021. 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £191,000 {2021: £195.000) for the group financial
statements and £71,190 {2021: ££9 517} for the company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality. we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the efectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was appropriate

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them imisstatements identified during our audit above £12, /00
{group sudit! (2021: ¥13,000 and £4,746 icompany aud it 1202 1: £4,635] as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in aur view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Conclusions relating te going concern

Our evaluation of the directors” assessment of the group’s and the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of

accounting included:

- obtaining and agreeing the directors’ going concern assessment to the board-appioved budget and ensuring that the base case scenario
indicates that the business generates sufficient cash flows o meetsits long and short term obligations,

+ evaluating and assessing the process by which the Group's future cash flow forecasts were prepared, inclading the fustorical accuracy of
farecasting:

- considering the extent Lo which the group's and company's future cash flows might be adversaly affected by climate change: assessing and
challenging the key assumptions in the going concern madel. including the forecast sales, margins, capital expenditure and other costs
assumptions over the period to December 2023,

- ensuring the mathematical accuracy of the model;

+ evaluating the directors’ severe but plausible scenario of disruptions continuing into the future and ensuring this is appropriately modelled
through the cash flows,

« pertorming further sensitvity analysis on the severe but plausible scenario; and

< considering the adequacy of the disclosures in the financiai statemenis.
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Independent auditors’ report continued

Conclusions relating to going concern continued

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that. individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the company s ability te continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are autharised forissue,

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the dircclors” use of the geing cancern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate,

However, because nol alt future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion s not a guarantec as to the group s and the company's
ability lo continue as a going concern

Our responsibilitios and the responsibiliticos of the directors with respect to geing concern are described in the relevant sections of this report

Reporting on other information

The other information comprnises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report therecn
The directors are responsible for the other information. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do nat express an audit opinion o1, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report. any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmation and. in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materally Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obiained in the audit. or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated Ifwe idertify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement. we are required to perform procedures to
canclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other intormation. If. based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information. we zre required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disciasures required by the UK Companies Ac t 2006
have beenincluded

Based on our wark undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also e report certain opiniens and matters as
described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the
period ended 1 July 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirernents

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment chtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identfy any material nusstatements in the Strategic report and Directors report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directars are responsible
tor the preparation of the financial statements in accordarice with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view The directars are also responsible far sueh internal control as they determine 1s necessary to enabile the preparation ot financial
statements that are free from imaterial imisstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to cantinue as a going,
concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to hquidate the group or the company or to cease operations. or have no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele are frec lram material misstatement,
whether due Lo fraud or error, and te1ssue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance s a bugh devel of assurance.
bt is not a puarantee that an audst conducled in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement whaen itexists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, ndividually or in the aggregate, thoy could reasonably be expected
to influence the econontic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Irregulasitios, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above. to detect material misstatements in respect ofirregulanties, including fraud The extent to which our
procedures are capable of dotectng rregutarities. including fraud, is detailed below
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Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of nen-compliance with laws and regulations related to
tax legislation and the Companies Act 2006, and we censidered the extent to which non-compliance sight have a material effect on the financial
slalements. We evaluated management's mcentives and oppor tunities tor fraudulent manipulation of the financial staterments (including the risk
of cvernide of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to inappropnatc journal entnes 1o Increase revenue, probil before tax,
or EBITDA, and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement leam includedt

+ oblaining an underslanding of the legal and regulatory framewark applicabie to the Group and how the Group is complying with that
framework;

- discussions with management and the Audit Committee, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-campliance
with laws and regulation and fraud;

« reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, where avaitable;

« reading any key correspendence with regulatory authorities that has taken place in the year;

+ incorporating an element of unpredictability into our audit procedures;

- dentifying and testing journal entries, including those with unusual account combinations relating to the principal fraud risks set out
above. and

- challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates,

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described ahove. We aie less likely to hecome aware of instances of non-complance

with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reftected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of

not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the nisk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery orintentional misrepresentations, or through coilusion.

Our audit testing might inctude testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
techiniques. However, it typically involves selecting a iimited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We
will often seek to targel particular items for testing based on ther size or risk characteristics. Ir other cases, we will use audit sampling 1o
enable us Lo draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample 15 selected.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc org.uky
auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditors' regort.
Use of this report

This report, including the epinions, has been prepared for and only lor the company's membears as a body in accerdance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do nol, in giving these opimions, accept or assume responsibibity for any
ather purpose or to any other person towhiom this report 1s shown or into whese hands it may come save whore expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing,

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Campanics Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opisnon:

+ we have not obtamed all the information and explanations we require for our audit: or

- adeguale accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retuins adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the company hnanaal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returms

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

./)f;n%ﬂ' o Shdlihee

Jonathan Studhoime

Senior Statutory Auditor

tor and gn behalf of PricewatethouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutary Auditars
Manchester

26 QClober 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

1 July 2l

2022 Sl

Nuster £'000 peee

Revenhue 5 69,152 73634
Costof sales (47,429) 150,353,
Gross profit 21,723 23,281
Administrative expenses hefore exceptioral tems {4,356} 5,381}
fxceptional ite s £, - 13810
Administiative expenses (4,356} {R.893!
Selling and distrdauticn costs {12,166} 1750
Operating profit 7 5,201 2,636
Finance income 11 3 5
Finance casts 1z (1343 19430
Profit before taxation 5,098 1078
Tazation 13 {74T) %33
Profit for the financial period and total comprehensive incéme 4,351 745
Basic and diluted earnings/{loss) per share (pence) 14 7.8 05

The results for the periods shown above are derived entirely from continuing activities

The Company has na other comprehensive income or expense ather than the profit ahove and therefore no separate statement of other
comprehensive income has been presented.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 1 July 2022

1 July 2 Jul,
2022 201

Cermpa y narber D306, 36 Hte £'000 [R9
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangibte assets i5 11,113 10.842
Proparty, plant anc equipment 15 400 163
Righ: of use assets =7 3,262 2 8EY
Deferred tax asset 18 428 1,100
?c;-t-;‘!_;;n-current asgef;fw T 15,203 o 12,9; _
Current assets

I e nEories 19 8,653 T.23%
Trade and other recenables 20 2,477 1,557
Denvative finencial mstruments 24 i6 -
Cash and cask equivalents Ea 15,070 15,660
Total current assets 26,216 24,251
Total assets 41,419 3403
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Trade and other payahles 27 (15,451) (18 314
Dervative ‘inancial mstrur.ents 4 - {50
Lease [ability 17 (456} B
Total current liabilities {15,907} 18,808}
Non-current liabilities

Prosesiors 23 {290)

Lease lability if (3,149)

Total non-current liabilities oo ) T {3,439) B

Total liabilities (19,346) 121106
Net assets - 22,073 T
Equity

Share capital 25 558 hE5E
Share prerium 11,989 11960
Owenr sharereserye (36) 136,
Mergereserve 65 65
Share-sased payme-t reserve 95 -
Retaned earnings 9,402

Total equity 22,073

[he financial statements on pages 70 to 97 were approved by the Board of Oirectors and authorised forissuce on 26 October 2022, They were
signed on its behalf by:

aeme Weir

Chief Financial Officer

26 October 2022

The notes on pages /< to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

Share-based Total

Called up Share Own share Merger payment Retained Shareholders®

share eapital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings funds

£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £7000 £2000 £'000

4 Ty 2020 7T e 136 - 5,665 6,137
Profitfor the finarwial penod - - - - - e 45
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 745 745
CGroup restructurirg 1277 31 - - - 1508
Issue of shares H5% 12,967 - B} - 13.5%]
Share issue costs 018 - - 781
Pu-chase of own shares [N - - - Ak
Divicends paid - - - - 11,35% 11363
Total transactions with owners recognised in equity &1 11,858 - ;5 ) T 1,353 10,745
2 July 2021 558 11,983 36; €5 - 5,051 17627
3 July 2021 558 11,989 {36} 65 - 5,051 11,627
Profit for the financial peniod - - - - - 4,351 4,351
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - - 4,351 4,351
Share-based payments {Note 10} - - - - 95 - 95
Totaltransactions with owners recognised in equity - - - - 95 - 95
1 July 2022 558 11,989 (36} 65 95 9,402 22,073

The notes on pages 74 to 97 form part of these financtal statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the 52 week period ended | July 2022
1July 2 .Uy
2022 801
Meste £'000 £
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 5,098 1678
Adjustments for.
Depreciation and amartisation i 963 832
Share-hased payment expense 0 95 -
Met tinange costy 11.12 103 Hhe
floc ease)fdecrease muade and ¢ther recen ables (941} YEL:
inLregse noimentares (1,414) 12,243
Decrease in trade oo other payablos {2,928) 3,557
Net cash generated from/({used in) o-perating activities 976 B 11,373
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest rec everd 11 31 5
Purchose of mtangible and tangible faed assets 15, 1k {969) 12421
Net cash used in investing activities T T {938) T 237
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid - 11,350
Interest on loans ard borrowirgs - 1953)
Repayrent of borrowirgs - [11.386)
Share 1ssue - 12,164
Payrment of lease habifities 17 {494) 305
Payment of lease interest 12 {134) 1135
Net cash used in financing acti;ities T (628) o 2,631
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (590) 14,7d4)
Cast and cask equvalents at beginmng of period 15,660 15,504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 15,070 15,660
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and ir hand 15,070 15,650

The notes on pages 74 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

1 Generalinformation
The principal activily of the Group is import and distribution of wine.
The Company was incorporated ori 1 february 2021 in the United Kingdom and is a pubiic company limited by shaies registercd in England

and Wales. The registered oftice 1s 37-41 Roman Way Industrial Estate, Longndge Road, Ribbleton, Preston, Lancashire, United Kingdom,
PR2 5BD. The registered company number is 13169238,

2 HAccounting policies

I his note provides a list of the significant accaunting policies adopted in the preparation of these censolidated financial statements to the
extent that thay have not already been disclosed in the other notes above. These poiicies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented. unless ctherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of Virgin Wines UK plc and iLs subsicharies

Basis of preparation

On 31 December 2020, IFRS as adaopted by Lhe European Union at that date were brought inte UK law and bocame UK-adopted
International Accounting Standards, with future changes being subject to endorsement by the UK endorsement Board. The Group
transitioned to the UK-adopted International Accounting Standards in the Group financiat statements on 1 July 2021 1his change
constilutes & change in accounting framework. However, there 15 no impact recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period reported
as a result of the change in framework, The Group linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under these standards.

Accounting reference date

UK company faw permits a company to draw up financial statements to a date seven days either side of its accounting reference date, For
operational reasens the Company has adopted an accounting penod of 52 weeks, and as a resutt of this the exact year-end was § July 2027
{2021- 2 July 2021,

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on @ historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabiiitios (ncluding derivative
instruments). measured at fair value through the income statement,

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the £ U that are effective in future
accounting periads that the Group has decided not to adopt early.

The following stangards were in sssue but have not come into effec t:

Amendments to

IFRS 17 and IFRS 4, ‘Insurance centracts’ deferral of IFRS 9, as amended in June 2020 - effective for the year ending 30 Junc 2024
IAS 1. "Presentation of financial statements’ on classification of habilities - effective for the year ending 30 June 2024
< IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS Binarrow scoper  effective far the year ending 3¢ June 2024
« 1AS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - effec tive for the year ending 3¢ June 7024
IFRS 17, 'Insurance cantracts' — effective for the year ending 30 June 2024
The Directars anticipate that the adoption of platned standards and interpretations in future periods will not have a material impacton the
financial statements of the Group.
Goingconcern
The Group's business actraties, together vath the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set outin the

Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repart, which also describies the financial pesition of the Group The Group's finanaal nsk management
objectives and its exposure Lo credit nsk and liquidity risk are set outin note 24

Duiing the year the Graup met 1ts day to-day working capital requirernents through cash generated from operating activities The Group's
forecasts and projactions, taking account of a severe but plausible change intrading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate using cash generated from opcrations, and that no additional borrowing tacilitics will be reguined The Group s theretore no longer
subject Lo any external borrowings or covenants

Having assessed the principal 1sks, the Directors considered it appropriate to adapt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing ils
cansolidared financial statements.
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2 HAccounting policies continued
Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consalidate the financial information of the Group and companies controfled py the Group {its subsidianes) at each
reporting date,

Controlis achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity, has the rights to
variahte returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The results of subsidiaries
arquired ar sold are included in the financial infonmation ltom the effective date of acquisition ar up to the effective date of disposal. as
appropriste. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the results of acquired subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by the Group

Allintra-Group transactions, balances. income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation,
I he financial statemnents of all Group companies are adjusted, where necessary, ta ensure the use of consistent accounting policies.

Employee Benefit Trust

The assets and labilities of the Employee Benefit Trust {EBT) have been included in the consolidated financial statements. Any assets hela
by the FRT cease to be recognised on the Conselidated Statement of Financial Position when the assets vest unconditionally in identified
beneficiaries.

The costs of purchasing own shares held by the EBT are shown as a deduction against equity. The proceeds from the sale of own shares
held increase equity Neither the purchase nor sale of own shares leadsta 2 gain or loss being recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers contains one performance obligation unless itis a WineBank sale, in which case therc arc two
performance obligations and this 1s described separately further below. The single performance obligation is the supply of goods. The
transactior price is fully alloc ated to the single performanice obligation for non-WincBank sales. 1he Group recognises revenue at a pointin
time when the single performance obligation is satisfied. The performance obhigation s satisfied when contrel is passed to the customer,
Controlis deemed to pass to the customer upon delivery of the goods.

Revenue is recogniscd at the ransaction price of the sale of geods, net of discounts and excluding value added tax. in the ordinary course
of business

The Group uses its accumulated historical experience Lo estimate the lovel of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value method.
Creditterms are only provided to corporate customers. and the average days are 60,

Contract balances
Timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of invarang to customers. Cantiact assets represent revenue recagnised prior 1o
invoicing when it has satisfied its performance obligation and has the unconditional right to payment.

Contract habilies consists of fees recoved related to unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the period.

WineBank

Amounts deposited by customers for WineBank are intially reported as a lizbility in the Statement of Financiat Position. On registering as a
WineBank ¢ ustomer, subscription customers agree to lodge a regular monthiy sum nte ther WineBank account. These sums accumulate ie
the customer account and build & balance to use against their next puichase from the Group.

Amounts deposited by WineBark customers are reported within the Group cash balance but are held separate to Group funds. WineBank
depusits are not used to fund the working capital of the business. WineBank custemers ¢ an cancel their WineBank account at any time and
may request 1o receive their money back immediately with no penalty whatscever

Using funds deposited tnrough the WineBank scheme entitles account holders to henefit from an extra discount on the Group's website prices,
This discount represents a ‘material nght’ under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which 1s a separate performance obligation
which s fulfilled when the customer uses that discount. The transaction price allocated to the material right performance obligation
represents the value of the discount earned, ang is deferred until the custamer uses the discount on a future o-der.

Orders placed thiough the Wineflank scheme alsu contain the same performance obligation as for other sales. as described above. The
transactior price alloczted to this performance obligation is the remaining antount after allocating the element to the materiat right. and is
recognised upon delivery to the customer.
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2 Accounting policies continued

Finance costs

Finance ¢osts onfinancial liabilities are recogmsed in the profit and loss account over the term of such instruments at a constant rate on
the carrying amount. Issue costs relating to financial instruments are recognised in the profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a
constant rate over the instrument’s life.

Interest on leases 1s calculated based on the Interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
rase for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremenldl bonowing rate is used [see lease accounting policy}

Taxation
Tax on the profit of loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Taxis recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the exten! that it relates wo items recognised directly in
equity, in which case itis recognised in equity.

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for financial reporting purposes

and the amounts used far taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill, the
initizl recognition of assets ar liahifities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amaunt of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of 2ssets and
liakilities, using tax rates and laws enac ted or substantively enacted at the reporting date A deferred tax asset is recognised anly ta the extent
that itis probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date

Foreign currerncies

Functional and presentational currency

Iterns included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measurcd using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {the functional currencyd. The furictional currency of the Group is Pounds Sterling. the financial
statemients have been rounded to thousands.

Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the excharge rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at quoted rates of exchange ruling at the balance
shest date. Fxchange profits and losses arising from current trading are included in operating profit.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businesses, representing any excess of the fair value of the consideration
given over the fairvaluc of the identiliable assets and habihties acquircd is capitalised.

The goodwill in the consolidated financial statements represents the goodwill recognised in the predecessor holding cormpany financial
statements at the ariginal carrying valuc.

Goodwill 1s not amaortisesd but is reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units {or groups of cash-generating units: expected to berefit from the synergies of the combination.
Cash-generating units to which geodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment arnually, or more heguently when there s an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash penerating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is aliocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on Lhe basis of the carrying amount of each assetin the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed n a
subsequent period.

Intangible assets

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, Software is amortised over its estimate useful life,

of between five and eight vears, on a straight line basis.

Whete tactors, such as techinological advancemient or changes in market prices, indicate that 1esiduai value o useful life have changed, the
residual value, useful life or amaortication 1ate are amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstances,
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2 RAccounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes the
original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to hringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use

Depreciation s calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over the useful economic life of that asset
as follows:

Leaschold Properly - Over the life ot the lease
Fixtures and fittings - 33.33% per annum

Computer hardware and warehouse cquipment — 33.33% per annurm

Assets classified as work 1 progress' are not deprecialed as such assets are not currently available for {or in] use, Once inusc, assels wiil be
re-categorised and deprecialed at the rate appropriate Lo their classification

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirerment of an assct 1s determined as the difference between the net sale praceeds and the
carrying ameunt ol the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment of non-financial asgets (excluding goodwill)

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there s 2ny
indication that those assets have suffered an impainment loss. {f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
to detenmine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are indepencent from other assets,
the Group estimates the recoverabile amount of the cash-generating unit ta which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-gencrating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its rec overable amount. An impairment foss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where animpairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unitjis increased o the revised estimate
ol its 1ecoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been defermined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unitj In prior years. Areversal of an impairment loss s recognised
immediately in profit or loss to the extent that it eliminates the impairment loss which has been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Leases

Acontract, or a portion of a contract, is accounted as a lease when it canveys the right to use an asset for a pariod of time in exchange for
consideration. Leases are those contracts that satisfy the fallowing criteria:

« Theteis anidentified asset;
«  The Group obtains substantiatly all the economic benefits from use of the asset: and

- The Group has the right to direct use of the asset.

The Gioup considers whether the supplier nas substantive substitution nights 1 the suppliier does have those nights, the contractis not
identified as giving rise to a lease. In determining whether the Group ebtains substantially all the cconomic benefits from use of the assct, the
Croup considers anly the ecanomic benefits that arise from use of the asset. In determining whether the Group has the nght to direct use of
the asset, the Group considers whether it directs how and for what purpose the asset 1s used throughout the period of use Ifthe contract o
portion of a contract does not satisfy these criteria. the Group applies other applicable IFRS rather than IFRS 16.

The Group leases various offices warehouses and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of five to ten years, but
may have extension options as detailed in note 17

Contracls may contam both lease and non-lease Lomponents. The Group allecates the considerationin the contiact o the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-atone prices.

Lease terms are negotialed on an individual basis and contain awide range of different terms and conditions, The tease agreements do nol
Impose any covenants other than the securily interests in the leased assets that are hetd by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
secunty for orrowing putposes.
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2 HAccounting policies continued

Leases conlinued

Assets and liahilities ansing from a lease are initially measured on a present value hasis. Lease liahbilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments

« fixed payments {including in-substance fixed paymentsi, less any lease Incentives receivable;

« variable leasc payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commeneement date;

+ amounts expected to be payable by the Group underresidual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group 1s reasonably certain 1o exercise that option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term retlects the Group exercising that option.
Lease payments Lo be made under reasonably certain extension options are alse included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessec would have to pay to
borrow the tunds necessary 1o oblain an asset of similar value 1o the right-of-use asset in a similar cconomic environment with simiar terms,
secunily and conditrons.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received;

+ uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-Tree interest ratc adjusted for creditrisk for leases held by Virgin Wines UK pic, which does
not have recent third-party inancing: and

»  makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example term and security

If o readily ehservahle amortising loan rate 15 available to the individual lessee {through recent financing or market datay which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed 1o potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, wiich are not intluded in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease lighility is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost 1s charged to piofit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liahility for each period.

1 he: Group has clected not to recognise night of use asscts and lease Labilities for leases of low-value assets and shoit-term leases. The Group
recagnises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the ease term.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisabie value on a FIFO basis. Cost comprises purchase price pius assoclated freight and
duty costs forimparted goods Inventonies are regularly assessed for evidence of impairment Where such evidence is identified. a provision is
recognised to reduce the value of inventories to its selling price after incurning any future costs to sell.

Gash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and with banks, as well as any deposits made with financial institutions with a maturity
period of less than throc months from the date of deposit. Cash and cash cquivalerts also includes amounts received from wineBank
custormers which are net restricted and as such are presented as cash and cash equivalents.
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2 BAccounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial lizbilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions of the financial

mstrument and are measured iniually at {air value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit arloss
which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and finariciat liabilies are described below.

Firancial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights (o the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the linancial asset and all
substantial risks and rewards are transferred, A financial hability 1s derecognised when itis extinguished, discharged. cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition.

« Financial assets at amorused cost
+  Financial assets/liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are nan-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
markel After imitial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed, less provision for impairment
Discounting is omitted where the eflect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash cquivalents, trade and most other
receivables fall into this category of linancial instruments.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) o financial assets that are measured at amortised cost. The amount
of expected credit losses is updatcd al cach reporting date to reflecl changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises iifetime ECl on trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assels are estimatad using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general econormic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

Allincame and expenses relating to tinancial assets that are recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income are
presented within finance cosls or finance incame, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within other administrative
CXpLNSes.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, accruals and contract liabilities, losns and borrowings and dervative
financial instruments

Financial liabidities are measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method. except for fingncial liabilities held for trading or
designated at FyTPL, that are canied at fair value with gains or losses recogrised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Allinterest-iclated charpges and, it applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in Consalidated Stalement of
Comprehensive Income are included within irance costs or financeircome.

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fan value at the date a derivative is entered into and are subsequently remeasaied to their farvalue
ateachieporting date. A dervative with a positive fair vaiue 1s recognised as a financial asset wheieas a denvative with a negative fair

value s recognised as a financial hiability. The resufting gain o: loss is recogrised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame
immediately. A derivative is presented as a non-cuirent asset ar non-current hahility ifthe Group has an unconditional right to defer payment
beyend 12 months Otherwise derivatives are presentad as current assets ar liabilities.

Borrowing

Finance charges. including premiums payabie on settlement or redemption and direcl issue costs, a1e acceunted for on an accruals basis
through the profit and loss account using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
they are not settled in the period in which they arise.
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2 Accounting policies continued
Exceptional items

The Group presents certain items as ‘exceptional’ on the Statement of Comprehensive Incomie in arriving st operating profit, These are items
which in management’s judgement need to be disclosed separately by virtue of thelr size, nature and accurrence

Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benelits 1o employees, including annual bonus arrangements. paid holiday arrangements and dafined
corilribution pension plans.

{i) Short-term benefits

Shortterm benelits, induding holiday pay and other simitar nen-monetary benetits, arc recognised as an expense in the pertod in which the
serviceis received

(ii) Defined contribution pension plans

The Group cperates a number of country-specific defined contribution plans for its employees A defined contribution planis a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid the Groug has no further
sayment cbligations. The contnbutions are recognised as an expense when they are due, Amounts not paid are shown in accruats in the
balance sheet. The assets of the plan are held separately from the Group in independently administered funds

{iii) Share-based payments

Atransaction s accounted tor as a share-based paymoent where the Group receives services for employees, Directors or third parties and pays
for these in shares or similar equity instruments

The Group makes equity-settled share based payments to certain employecs and Directors. Equity-setticd share-bascd schemes are
measured at fair value texcluding the offect of nan market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant, measured by use of an appropriate
valuation model. The expected life used in the modcl has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restnctions and behavicursl considerations.

The farr value determined al the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the periad
services are received, based on the Group's estimale of shares thal will eventually vest. Share options are forteited when an employee ceases
to be employed by the Group uniess determined to be 3 '‘Good Leaver”. A 'Good Leaver’ is a participant who ceases employment by reason of
death, injury. ill-health or disability.

The Group has discretion to recover the employer's hational Insurance liabitity from the employee. For the current active schemies the Group
has chosen to do so.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve was created during the prior period as a result of the share for share exchange under which Virgin Wines UK pic becarme
the Parent undertaking prior to the IPO, Under merger accounting principles, the assets and habilities of the subsidiaries were consolidated at
boaok value in the Group financial statemerts and the consolidated reserves of the Group were adjusted to reflect the statutory share capital,
share premium and other reserves of the Company as if it nad always existed. with the difference presented as the merger reserve.

Retained earnings

Retaired earnings includes all current and prior period retained profits and losses, including torergi currency translation differenices arsing
tfrom the translation of financiat statements of the Group’s foreign entities.

All transacuons vaith owners of the Parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividends are recognised when approved by the Group's shareholders or, i the case ot interim dividends, when the dividend has been paid.



Strategic Report Governance Report Finanecial Statements 81

3 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, the Dircctors have made the foilowing key judgements:

Goodwill impairment assessment (note 13)

At each reporting date, the Group tests goodwill for impairment in accordance with the requirements of 1A% 36. The recoverable amount of
the Group's single cash-generating unit {CGU) is determined by calculating its value in use. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future ¢ ash flows expected to anse from the single CGU and 1o use a suitable discount rate in order to calculate their present
value. The value i use s Lhen compared to the total of the relevant assets and liabilities of the CGLL See note 15 for detalls of the test for
impairment and the relevant key assumptions,

Revenue recognition

In determining the appropriate amount of revenuc to be recognised for WineBank sales when applying the accounting policy set out innote 2
above, the Directars make key estimates in retation to the amount of breakage (Lo reflect thar expectation of custoniers who will not excrcise
all of their rights to future discounts) and the total transaction price relating to existing and future orders.

Assessment of carrying values of plc company investments and amounts due from Group undertakings

In refation to the ple company's investments in subsidiaries, the Directors are required to assess whether there aie any indicators of
impairment at each reporting date, All relevant potential indicators are ¢ onsidered, including the performance of the underlying trading
subsidiary and the results of the Group’s iImpairment assessment performed as at the same date as described above. The Directors exercise
therr judgement in determining whether any such indicators exist. Where an indicator of impairmentis identified in relation to the company’s
investments or intercompany receivable balances, a full impairment review is performed The Birectors performed their assessment and
concluded that no impairment indicators existed at 1 July 2022 and, as such, a full impairment review over the company's Investments in
subsidiaries and inlercompany receivables was not performed.

in retation to the amounts due from Group undertakings, the Directlors are required to assess their carrying amount for any impairment using,
the expectad credit losses ["ECL model As set out in note 5 to the company financial statements, the amounts owed by Group undertakings
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on domand. Consistent with the ECL model, the Directors have asscssed Lhe carrying amount for
impairment on the assumption that iepayment of the amounts were demanded at the reporting date. The Directors, having delermined that
the borrower had insufficient highly liguid resources at the reporting date, considered the expected manner of recovery and recovery periad
of these toans ithe company's ‘recovery scenarios'). The Directors determined that the only non-trivial recovery scenanio would be realised by
way of a dividend distribution by the Group's trading subsidiary, Virgin Wine Cnline Limited. The Directors. amongst other factors, considered
the ability and intent of the subsidiary to make such a distnbution if required, and ultimately determined that any reduction in the carrying
amount of these receivables would be inconsequential to the company's financial statements. On that basts. no ECL proviston has been
recognised.

4 Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 requires operating segiments to be determined based on the Group's internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODMi.
The CODM has been determined to be the Board as it 1s primarily responsible for the allocation of resources to segments and the assessment
of performance of the segments.

The level of aggregation of results reported to and assessed by the CODM supparts that there are nat operating segiments smaller than

the business as a whole, there is only one oper ating segment. which comprises all of the operations of the Group Performance of this
operating sogment is assessed on revenue and £djusted EBITDA (being operating profhit excluding any adjusted items). These are the financial
perlormance measurcs that are reported to the CODM, along with other operational perlormance measures, and are considered to be uselul
measties of the underlying trading performance of the segment Adjusted items are not altocated to the cperating segment as this reflects
how they are reported to the Board.

5 Revenue

The Directors have considered the requirement of IFRS 15 with regards to disaggregation of revenue and do not consider this to be required
as the Group has only one operating segment which is the sale of alcehel

There is one geographical market hemg the UK. all revenue streams having similar recognition policies and whilst the Group provides
services, Management do not believe such analysis would provide meaningful infarmation for users of the financial statements,

There were no major cLstomers that individually accounted for more than 10% of totel revenues (2021 no customers),
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6 Exceptionalitems

Exceptional items relste to legzl and professional fees associated with the Group's admission to AlM on 2 March 2021 These costs are
deemed exceptional due to their size and non recurring nature

7 Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting):

1 July RN
2022 221
£'000 £066
Inventory charged to cost of sa es 43,060 45615
Depreciation inote 169 139 Gl
Depreciation of right ol use assetingte 17) 502 44
Employee herelit expenses 7,660 ih34
Net excharge gains tnclucirg movements on fan valie through prefit and loss der vatives) {23) 1125
Movementn Inventory provision 38 [18
Intangible asset amortisation (note 15) 322 294
Auditors remuneration.
- for the audit of the group financial statements 187 110
- for the audit of th e subsidiary tinancial staterrents - ik
- nanaudit fees tax con'pliance services, 11 10
- nan audit feos tax advice - 55
8 Staifcosts
1 July PR
2022 0.1
£'000 £t
Sta® costs ircluding Direciors consist of;
Wages and salaries 6,477 6,502
Socad security cests 707 645
GCther pension costs 476 38/
T o 7,660 P51,
The amount recagnisea in the Consolidated Statemient of Comprehiensive Income as an expense in relation 1o the Group's defined
contribution schemes is £476.00012021; £387.000).
The monthly average number of cmployees rincluding Directors} duting the period was as follows:
1 July 2oy
2022 a0
defanctun Number Numbigr
Sales 164 1hh
Vanagemert and administrative 36 32
200 18/

The majority of employeces are igible to joir the defincd contribution pension plan.
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9 Keymanagement personnel

1 Juty £ adly

2022 VRS,

£'000 [Rdee

Shott teim eniployee berefits 669 510
Post employmoent benefits n 44
700 251

Duning the period, retirement henefits were accruing to 2 Directors (2021: 2) nrespect of defined contribution pension schemes.
Key management personnel include only the Directors and as such no further disclosures in respect of compensation are given.
Additional analysis can be found in the Remuneration Committee report,

10 Share-based payments

in the 52 week period ended 1 July 2027 the Group operated an equity-setiled share-based payment plan as described below.
The charge in the period attributed to the plan was £89,0600 (2021: £6,0004.

Under the Virgin Wines UK plc Long Tenm Incentive Plan the Group gives awards to Directors and senior staft. Performance share awaids [PSA!
are granted subject to the achieverment of a pre-agreed revenue and net profit figure for the financial year of the Group, three financial years
subsequent to the date of the award. Restricted share awards (RSA) are subject to underpin conditions also based on pre-agreed revenue

and net profit targets for the financial year of the Group, three financial years subsequent to the date of the award. These shares vest after the
delivery of the audited revenue and profit figure tor the relevant financial year has been announced.

Awards are granted under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting nghts.
Awards are exercisable at the nominal share value of £0.01.

Awards are forfeited if the employec leaves the Group before the awards vest, excopt under circumstances where the employcc is considered
a‘Good Leaver”

December 2021 Awards Jane 2020 Seanis
PSA RSA R ESe
Shate price 2 grant 193p 193p 230n 237p
Numaoer of shareg 696,393 87,058 354 Kl FiAA4
Number of Shares heambe et Sho
1 July 2,
2022 PN
Cutyanding at srart af perod 433,288
Grantd duning the period 783,451 A3 3,768
Forfetures inthe penod (12,522) -
Outstanding atend of period T o 1,208,217 33088

The Company granted #s first share options on /3 June 2021, The second share options were granted on & Becember 2021
The awards outstanding at 1 July 2022 have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.0years (2021, 2.3 yeais,,

The fair value at grant date was determined with reference to the share price at grant date, as there are no market-based pertormance
conditions and the expected dividend vield 1s 0%. Therefore there was no separate option pricing model used to determine the fair value of
the awards.

11 Finance income

1 July s
2022 2000
£'000 0D

Bank interest 31 5
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12 Finance costs

1 buly £ dul,
2022 szl
£'000 §uLh
Investor loans - §28
Interest payable for lease [ abilities 134 135
- T 134 063
13 Taxation
1 July 2.l
2022 K|
£'000 Lot
Analysis of charge for the penod
Current tax
fotal current tax 75 -
Deferred tax
Ongimation and reversal of iming differences BS57 332
Adustment inrespect ot pror penod {82) -
FHect of changes in tax rates {103) -
lotal deferted tax 672 333
Tax charge on profit an ordinary activitios B 747 933

Factors that may affect future tax charges:

On 3 March 2021, the 2021 UK Budget announced an increase to the corporation tax 1ate from 19% to 25% effective from Ap:il 2023,
This was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021.

Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date have therefore been measured using the effective tax rate (25%h

The tax assessed for the penod s lower (20210 hugher! than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK applied to profit before Lax.
The differences are explained below:

1 July
2022
£'000
Prefit betore tax 5,098
Profithefore tax at the starcard rale of corporation tax 11 the U of 190 yean ended 2 July 2027 - 1944} 969 B
Mects of
Frpenses not deducti e fur tax purposes - BT
Tax rate chanpe {103} -
Adjustment inrespedt of pricr poriod {82}
Other permranent differences {37} {53
Tetal tax charge for t~e per’od 747 33

For further information on deterred tax balances sec note 18,
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14 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the earnings attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares in1ssue during the period.

The calculation of basic profit per share 1s based on the following dala:

Statutory EPS
1 July gl
2022 PR
Earnings {£'000)
Profit after tox 4,351 745
Dividend attibuted to prefe-ence sharcholders - [0
Earnings;{10ss) for the purpcse of basic carnings per share o 4,351 ) 3611
Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares or the purposes of basic earnings per share 55,837,560 50,534 R&4
Weighted average number of shares {or the pu-posos of diluted earnings per share 55,945,374 H(1,R473,194
Basic earnings/{loss) per ordinary share {pence) 7.8 RUY
Diluted earnings/{less) per ordinary share [pence) 7.8 5
Adjusted EPS

The calculation of adjusted carnings per share 1s based on the after Lax adjusted operating prohit after adding hack certain costs as detaled in
the table below Adjusted carmings per share figures are given Lo exclude the effects of excoptional items and pre restructuring finance costs.
all net of taxation, and are considered to show the underlving performance of the Group.

The 2021 weighted average number of shares uses the number of shares in issue post Admission on 2 March 2021, This has been applied
retrospectively to the number of shares in issue al 4 July 2020 and the prnor period metric has been restated to ensure that the adjusted
carnings per share figures are comparable over the two periods.

1 July ’

2022 a0
Earnings {£'000)
Farminps;llosst for the purpese o basic ea mings per saare 4,351 26T
Preferenc e dividend - 1,040
Exceptional items - 3.517
Pricate equity inance cost - 963
taxeffect of above - 1183,
Earnin_g;rf;fthe pm;pose of adjus'tieﬂd" :amﬁ,g} pe; share 4,351 '{df
Number of shares
Weorghled owerage rumiber af shares for the purcioses of basic carmings ser share 55,837,560 55.837.500
Welghted average number of sheres for the purposes of dituted earrings per skase 55,945,374 55,845 860
Basic earnings per ordinary share (pence) 7.8 90

Dituted earnings per ordinary share (pence) 7.8 90
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15 Intangible assets

Goodwill Software Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Cnst
Al 4 July 2020 a,523 2,085 11,708
Additions - 103 1013
A2 July 2071 T 9672 2188 TR
Additions 593 553
1 July 2022 9,623 2,781 12,404
Accumutate d amarreaticn ved maporment
AL 4 July 2000 - 75 ar
Amortisation charge - 2G4 754
At 2 July 2021 ae9 GRS
Amaortisation charge 322 322
1 .July 2022 - 1,291 1,291
Nep baok voluc
1July 2022 9,623 1,4%0 11,113
2 Juy 2021 G525 1,219 10,847

Included within Software is £0.6m {2021: £'U 8m) net book value In relation to development of the Mantiki core IT platform, which has a
remaining amortisation period of three {2021: four} years.

Amortisation is charged to administrative sxpenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Software is amortised over its estimated useful economic life,

The Group is required Lo test, on an annual basis, whether goodwll has suffercd any impair ment. The recoverable amount s determiined
based onvalue in use calculations The use of this methed requires the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows

The goodwill figure has been derived from the acquisition of 100% ot the share capital of Viegin Wine Online Uimited by Virgin Wines Holding
Company Limited in 2013 and as stich thero is only one cash-generating unit,

The Group has estimated the value in use of the business as a cash generating unit based on & discounted cashilow model which adjusts for
nsks associated with the assels, The discount rate applied s a pre-tax rate of 11.5% (2021: .19

Tne forecasts tor the business are based over a 5 year projection penod, use past expenence and apply a forecast annual growth rate. The
key assumptions used in the discounting cashflow were the saies and EBITDA figures {based on board approved planst, the future growth rate
fncluding long-term growth rate of 2% and the discount rate.

The Directers have assessed the sersitivity of the imparrment test to reasonably possible changes 111 the hey assumptions described above,
and noted that sutficient headroom existed in all cases
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16 Property, plant and equipment
Computer
hardware &
Leasehold warehouse Fixtures &
property equipment fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £7000 £'000
Cast
A4 Juby 2020 20 FER 233 1993
Additions - 95 A4 133
Disposals o T _ T 13 _ 13
AL Z July 2021 20 631 27T 928
Addtions - 268 108 3G
At 1 July 2022 20 B899 385 1,304
Accunmulatod deoreciation
Atd July 2020 20 450 206 85
Charge 'or the period - o] 23 9l
Disposals - 112} - 112]
At 2 July 2021 e 516 229 Tah
Charge for the peniod - GE 43 13%
At 1 July 2022 20 812 272 904
Mot Book vaiue
At 1 July 2022 - 287 113 400
ALZ July 2021 - 115 18 163

Depreciation is charged to administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Cormprehensive Inceme
17 Right of use assets
The Group leases a number of properties across the UK, in Norwich, Preston and Bolten

O 14 June 2022 the Group extended the lease on its offices in Narwich to 24 September 2032, The ease has a hreak clause on 24 September
2026 and on the 24 September 2030

The Group entered Into a lease for a warehouse in Preston on 19 Cctober 2616 under a 10 year lease term ending on 18 October 2026, The
Group sometimes negotiates break ¢lauses in its property leases, The factors considered in deciding to negotiate a break clause include:

« thelength of the lease term and,
« whether the location represents a new area of operations far the group.
The Preston Warehouse lease has a second break clause on 18 October 2024,

Ihe Croup entered into @ lease for a bulk storage facility in Bolton on 1 September 2020 under a 10 year icase term ending on 31 August 2030
The first break clause in is on 31 August 2026.

tor all ol the property leases, the peniodic rent 1s fixed over the lease term.

The Group also leases certan items of plant and equipment. Leases of plant and equipment comprise hixed payments over the [case terms,
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17 Rightof useassets continued

[he ful retrospective approach was adopted to calculate the cost of the nght of use asset.

Computer
hardware &
Leasehold warehouse
property equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 4 July 2020 2423 b 2,518
Additions 1,774 34 1814
Disprioad s - {26 o1
At 2 Juby 2621 4,200 1014 4,308
Additions 858 33 BST
At 1 July 2022 5,060 143 5,203
Aceumidated depreciation
At4 July 2020 983 35 1,018
Charge tor the peniod 4332 15 447
Disposals - 26t (26
A2 July 2021 T 1410 7 1433
Charge for the pe-iod 448 20 502
At 1 July 2022 1,891 50 1,941
et book value
At 1 July 2022 3,169 93 3,262
A2 July 2021 2,787 80 2,867
Lease liability
Computer
hardware &
Leasehold warehouse
property equipment Total
£'000 £7000 £'000
AL A Guly 7070 1,630 £ 1,690
Additions 1,774 35 1514
Interest cxpense 132 3 135
Lease payments Bel \17; 4381
ACdUly 021 o ERE T 3207
Additio-s HoB EY] 8
Interest expenss it 4 134
Lease paymonts 1HHG; |24 2 Bi
At 1 July 2022 3,509 96 3,605
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18 Deferredtax

1July 2l

2022 2l

£'000 1000

Biought fonward 1,100 2033

Utihsation thelgh Crofit and loss account (672) 533!

Corried forward 428 1.100

The halance comprises temporary differerices attiibutable to:

Fixed asset Other timing

differences differences Tax losses Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Defoerred tax asset at 4 july 2020 703 11 1,319 2,033

Recognisco in tne period through oroft ana loss 111G 4 827) (533

lyefer-ed taw asset at 3 July 2021 593 15 492 1,100

Recognisea in the pe-iod thiough profit ana loss 11751 5] 1492) £r2

Deferred tax asset at1 July 2022 418 10 - 428

The Directors consider that sufficient future taxable profits will be available and as such deferred tax assets have heen recognized in full for
Virgin Wine Online | imited

Adeferred tax assel has been recognised on losses in Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited (o the extent to which the losses can be utllised
through Group reliet. The deferred tax asset not recognised in Virgin Wines Holding Company is £0.9m {2021: £0.7m].

The deferred tax asset is expected to be utilised in more than one year. Deferred tax s calculated based on the expected taxrate in force when
the timing differences reverse of 25% (2021: 19%!.

19 Inventories

1 July PN
2022 200
£'000 L oce
Finisherd goods for resa'e 8,653 235
There is no difference between the replacement cost of stocks and carrying value (2 July 2021 £nil).
Inventories are stated after provision lor impairment of £293,000 12071 £ 255,000}
20 Trade and other receivables
1 July PN
2022 10
£'000 0L
Amounts foirg due within oe year:
Gross carrying amount - trade recewables 946 458
Loss allowance (13) [REcH
Net carrying amonnt - trade rP(H_\;-;ETpTﬁ S e 933 245
Taxatien and social securty - a0
Prepay nents 1,331 1017
Othot eceables 213 -
o - S T T 2417 1597

Trade receivables are considered past due once they have passed their contracted due date. Trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed forinpairment based upon the expected credit losses model.

The Graup applies the IFRS 3 Simplified Approach to measuring expe ted ¢ redit losses using @ hfetime expec ted creditioss provision for trade
receivables and contract assets To measure expected credit losses on a collective hasis. trade recevables and contract assets are grouped
based o similar credit risk and aging The contract assets have similar nsk characteristics to the trade receivables for similar types of contracts.

Tne expected foss 1ates are hased an the Group's histaricai credit losses experienced over the three years prot to the perind end. The historical
loss rates are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information on macroeconamic factors affecting the Group's customers
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20 Trade and other receivables continued

The average credit period on sales 1s 30 days after the invoice has been issued. No interest is charged on outstanding trade receivables.

All July 2022 there were 312 July 2021 4) customers who owed in excess of 10% of the total trade deblor balance, These customers were
operating within their agreed credit terms and the Directors do not foresee an increased credit nisk associated with these customers. As such
no provision for impairment has been recogrised an these balances.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written ofl where there 1s no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that thereis no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the fallure of a debtor to engape in a repayment plan with the Group, and a
lartlure Lo make contractual payments for a period of greater than 60 days past due. There are no amounts outstanding on inancial assels that
were written off during the reporting period and which are still subject to enforcement activity. Impairment losses on trade receivables and
contract assets are presented as net impairment losses within aperating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other receivables relate to uncleared sales receipts from customers, processed in the normial course of business.

The maturity analysis of trade receivables and other debtors is shown below

1 July R

2022 JR{P
Gross Provision Net Ginss Vsntan Lot
£000 £'000 £°000 OO0 £ronn IS

Trade receivables and other debtors

Not yel due 823 - 823 147 - 447
Ovardue 123 {13) 110 16 BN 3
246 {13) 933 458 113 445

Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are as follows:

1July
2022
£'000
Opening provis'on for maaiiment of trade receivabes and confract assets 13 47
Recewabiles witten off dunng the penicd as irrecoverabe -
Increase during the perod -
Carried farward 13 13

21 Gash and cash equivalents

Included in Cash and cash equivalents 1s a balance ol £ 7.4m 12021: £7.3m) relating to advance payments received from WireBank customers,
The corresponding creditor to customers is included in contracti:abilities.

£2.0m of the cash balance is heid un 95 day notice at a preferential interest rate of 1.45% {2021 £2.0m at ¢.45%0.

22 Trade and other payables

1 July

2022

£'000

Trade payables 2,810
Taraticn and seoiel securty 2,928
Contract habilities 7,736
Accruals and other crecitors 1,976
15,450

The Directors consider the far valie of creditors to be equal to the book value giver their short term nature.
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23 Provisions
Leasehold dilapidation provision

1July 2l
2022 2021
£000 £ 000
Brought forward 275 738
Charged inincome statemant 15 37
Carned forward 290 75

L easehold dilapidations relate 1o the estimated cost ol returning a leasehold property to i1s eriginal state at the end of the lease as a resull of
gencral 'wear and tear’. The cost is recognised as an experise in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and accrued for over
the term of the lease, on the basis that the 'wear and tear’ increases over the pertod of the lease. I he main uncertainty relates to estimating
the cost that will be incurred at the end of the lease.

Maturity analysis for provisions

Dilapidation provisions are expected to mature at the end of the lease term as follows:

1 July N

2022 Suil

£'000 IRt

2-5years 248 -
Owersyears 42 275
290 275

24 Financial instruments and financial risk management
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk anises, are as follows:

+ trade and other receivables;

- cosh and cash equivalents;

» trade and other payables; and

+ lease liabilities,

The existence of these financial nstiuments exposes the Group to the following financial risks:
. creditrisk;

« lquidity risk,

« Horeign currency nisk, and

«  capital management.
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24 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued
Ihe Group's financial instruments may be analysed as follows:

1 July 2 dul,

2022 2071

£'000 §oe
Trade and cther receables 1,148 445
Cast and cash equivalents 15,070 15,660
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 16,216 14,105
Derwvative financial assets meastred at fan value through profit or ioss 16 -
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 16 -
Derivatve financial Mabililies n-easured at fair va ue through profit ar 'oss - {9
Financial liabilities measured at fair vatue through profit and loss - 5]
Trade and other payebles, exc vomg non-hoandcal hab Ities {4,787} 17,552
Lease babilities (3,605} (3,207
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (8,392} 110,754;

Financial assets which are debt measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, other debtors and cash and cash equivalents,

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and toss represent the Group's derivative financial instruments. being foreign exchange
forward contracts.

Fmancial labilities measured at amortised cost comprise Uade payables, accruals and other creditors, lease hiabilities and loans and
borrowings.

Creditrisk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is imited to the carrying amount of the financial assets recognised at the reporting date, as
summarised below

1 July & Jui,
2022 RPN
£'000 [RHS
Finanaial assets medasured at amo-toed cos? 16,216 16,105
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through profitand loss 16 -

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are all held on deposit with leading international banks and hence the Directars consider the credit
risk associated with such balances 1o be low.

The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business. The principal credit risk therefore anses from the Groups trade
receivables. In order to manage credit risk the Directors set credit limits for corporate customers hased on a combination of psyment history,
credit references and a financial review of the business. Credit limits are reviewed on a regular basis in conjunction with debtor agemng and
payment kistory Historic credit losses of the Group have been negligible as referenced in note 20.

Uetails of the trade recervables impairment poiicy can be found in note 20,
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Ligquidity risk
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Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the amount of funding required for growth. Itis the risk that the
Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they falf due

The Group manages its cash and borrowing requirements through preparation of annual cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments
and anticipated projects in order to maximise interest income and minimise inlerest expense, whilst ensuring that the Grongp has sufficient
liguid resources io mect the operating nieeds of the Group. Borrowing tacilities are arranged as necessary to finance requirements

The following table shows the maturities of gross undiscounted cash flows of financial liabititics as at 1 July 2022:

Carrying Contractual
amount cash flows <1 year 1-5 years =5 years
£'000 £000 £000 £7000 £000
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 4,786 4,786 4,786 - -
Lease liabilities 3,605 4,384 629 2,284 1,471
8,391 9,170 5,415 2,284 1,471
Derivative financial assets:
Foreign currency forwards
tinflow) {1,463) {1,463) - -
Outflow 1,447 1,447 - -
(16) {16) (16) - -
8,375 9,154 5,399 2,284 1,471
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 2 July 2021 are as follows:
Car g Contractug |
Amount ca bowe “lyear BTN TV
an [ Eeie L] £
Non-denvative finsnaal babiities:
Irade and other payables 7,552 7,552 7557 - -
Lease lizbilities 3,202 3,753 521 2,061 1,065
10,54 11,30% 8,73 2067 1,065
Detvative financial | abihities:
Foreigneunency focwards
{rif o (5821 5082 - -
Cutfiow 5,U87 5,087
5 5 5 - -
lota, 10758 11,310 8,178 2067 1,0E%
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24 Financial ingtruments and financial risk management continued

Foreign currency risk

Fareign exchange niskis the risk that mavements in exchange rates affect the profitability of the business, The Group purchases goods from
overseas suppliers and is invoiced In currencies other than GBP. [t is therefore exposed to movements in the GBP exchange rate against the
currencies in which suppliers invoice the Group. The Group monitors exchange rate movements closely and ensures adequate funds are
maintained in appropriate currencies lo meet known liabilities

The Group enters into forward toreign currency contracts to mitigate the exchange rate risk for certain foreign currency payables. At 1 July 2022,
the outstanding contracts all mature within & menths (2021, 6 months) of the period end. The Group is committed to buy Furo, Australian Dollars
and US Dollars 2021: Fure, Australian Gollars and US Dollarsl with a Sterling value of £1.4m (2021: £5.1my,

The forward currency cantracts are measured at fair value, by reference to the spot rate, This is a level 1 valuation in that the spot rate is a
directly observalie input.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency sk at the end of the respective reporting period was as follows:

1 July 2 lul,

2022 AUL

£'000 TUGo

ALS 197 15
FUR - 1,453
ush 140 58
Total 337 1,564

Liabilities include the monetary assets and labilities of subsidiaries denominated in foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to fareign currency risk on the relationship between the functional currencies of Group companies and the other
currencies in which the Group’s material assets and liabilities are denominated The table below summarises the effect on reserves had the
functional currencies of the Group weakened o1 strengthened against these other currencies, with all other variables held constant

1 July 2 Jul,
2022 2021
£'000
L ess an 10% strengthening of functional currency {103) 1320;
Gam or 10% weakenirg of functicnal currency 126 391

Capital risk management

The Group's capital management objectives are,

+ loensure the Group's abilily to continue as a going concern o that it can continue to provide relurns for sharehotders and benefits tor
othor stakeholders; and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurate with the level of risk.

To meet these chjectives, the Group reviews the budgets and forecasts on aregular basis to ensure there is sufficient capital to meet the
needs of the Group.

Ihe capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders” equity as set out1a the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fquity Allworking
capital requirements are financed from existing cash resouces

1 July PR
2022 201
£°000 L0
Net cash 11,465 17258

Moty 22,073 17,677
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25 Share capital

1 July FANIN
2022 2l
£7000 § OG0
Authorised, Allotted, called up and fully paid
55,837,560 (2021: 55,837,560] Ordinary Shares of £0 01 ezch 558 558

Virgin Wines UK plc was incorporated on 1 February 2021 with authonised, allocated and fuily paid share capital of 5,000,000 Crdinary Shares
of £0.01 each.

Prior to the transaction referred to in the next paragraph, the previcus ultimate Parent undertaking, Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited,
issued 1,604,500 new shares to existing shareholders. These shares form part of the share capital of Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited
which was subject to the transaction referred to below.

On 2 Maich 2021 the Group underwent a reorganisation in which Virgin Wines UK plc becamie the ultimate Parent undertaking of the Group.
As part of Lhe reorganisation 6,615,413 new Ordinary Shares of £0.01 cach were created

The new shares were fully paid and will rank pan passu in all respects with the existing Ordinary Sharcs, including the right to receive all
dividends and other distributions.

£0.98m of costs in relation to the issue of new shares have been charged to the share premium account
3,660,100 (2021: 3,660,1001 Ordinary Shares of £0.01 are held within the Group by the Employee Benefit Tiust,
1 he Durectors have not apmoved an interim dividend and do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2021: interiny £1.36n).

26 Analysis and reconciliation of net cash

This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net cash, which includes cash and cash equivalents and liablities arising from financing
activities

4w, DT ol Zau,

27h [TERWINTTEN Cannfoon L0s1

£o0n £e5s ERH) frec
Casl at bank and i nand 19304 - A2 15,660
Lease habilities [1.59]] 11416t 113k 1440 (32027}
Borrowings RIS - o 11586 -
Net cash e 11,816 (145 g8y 12458
Decrease in cash in the period {4,244}
New leases 11816
Lease interest LY
Amortisation of captalised deal fees AR

lerse pay ments

Repeyment of loan notes

Yovementin net cash e the perioo

Net cash ot 3 July 2020

ALZ July 2621
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26 Analysis and reconciliation of net cash continued

3 July Other non-cash 1 July

2021 New Leases changes Cash flow 2022

£'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 15,660 - - (590) 15,070
Lease liabilities (3,202) {897) (134) 628 {3,605)
Netcash 12,458 (897) (134) 38 11,465
Decrease in cash in the period {590)
New Leases {897)
Lease interest {134)
Lease payments 628
Movermnent in net cash in the period {993}
Net cash at 2 July 2021 12,458
11,465

At 1 July 2022

27 Related party disclosures
Buring the period ended 1 July 2022, sales of £618,367 (2021 £324,122) were made by Virgin Wines UK ple to Virgin Wine Online Limited. These
have been eliminated an consolidation.

Balances between the Company and s subsidiancs, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
There was no intercompany dvidend in the period ended 1 Juty 2022 fiom Virgin Wine Online Limited (2021 £1,654,235)
Details of remuneration of key management personnet can be found in note 8.

As part of the Group restructuring the following loan notes, issued by Virgin Wines Helding Company Limited te its shareholders, were repad
on 2 March 2021

Mobeus Equity Partners LLP totalling £8,199,736 1epaid. Interest of £538,238 was charged in the period ended 2 July 2621,
Connection Capital LLP £3,390,479 repaid. Interest of £250,338 was charged in the period ended 2 July 2021,
Management tcam £3495,871 repaid. Interest of £29,229 was charged in the peniod ended 2 July 2021

During the period the Group paid £41,397 12021 £37,058) in monitoring fees and expenses to Gresham House Asset Management Limited
tformerly Mobeus Fquity Partners L P) and £nil (2021: £19,688! to Connection Capital |1 P At 1 July 2027 £4,500 {2021 £4,500}) was due to
Gresham House Asset management | imited

During the periad sales of £1.221 {2021 £6,511} were made to Mobeus Equity Paitners LLP and sales of £3,242 (2021: £2,1/3) were made 16
Connection Capital LiP At T July $85%7 |2021: £164! was due from Connection Capital | P

During the period sales of £20.499 (2021: £15.904) were made to LKB Enterprises Limited. At 1 July 2022 £3,440 (2021: £4,076) remaining
outstanding from | KB Enterprises timited.
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28 Ultimate parent undertaking

In the oprrilon of the Directors, there is no single controlling party.

29 Events after the end of the reporting year
There have been no matters arising after the balance sheet date that would require disclosure in the financial statements.

30 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

The Group has entered into an agreement for £0.3m for the new warehouse managemoent system until 31 Decemiber 2024, There are no other
capital cammitments and no contingent liabilities not provided in the financial statements for the peried ended and as at 1 July 2022,

31 Nature of each reserve
Share premium

Amount subscrnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Own shares reserve
Shares held within the EBT (Employee Benefits Trust).
Merger reserve

The difference between the nominal value of shares issued in exchange for the book vaiue of assets acquired.

Share-based payment reserve

The movements on share-based payments

Retained earnings

All other nel gaing and losses and transactions with owners ie.g. dividends) not recognised elsewhere.
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as at 1 July 2022

1 duly 2 .U
2022 2001

Hote £000 Il
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment 3 174 LT
Intangible assets 4 11 14
Tetal non-current assets i T 785 653
Current assets
Trade and other recen ables 5 9,479 9,537
Total current assets 9,479 9,537
Total assets 10,264 10,230
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and clher sayahles £ (772) 140,1;
Total current liabilities o “ (172) T
Total liahilities (772) 9615
Net assets - T 9,492 205
Equity
Share capital 7 558 558
Share prominrm 11,989 11,48%
Wergon reserve 236 £36
Share-sased payment resesve 95
Retained earnings (3,386) 13,514
Total equity B T N o 9,492 7 G200 B

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate Statement of Comprehensive Income, dealing with the results of the

Parent Company, has nat been presented. The Parent Company prefit for the period ended 1 July 2022 is £0.1m {2021 loss £3.5m;

The Company does not hold cash. As such ng cash llow slatement has been prepared.

Ihe financial statements on pages 98 to 102 of Virgin Wines UK plc were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issuc on

26 October 2022, They were signed o its behalf by:
(29

raeme Weir
Chief Financial Officer

26 0ctoher 20,7
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

Total
Called up Share Merger Share-based Retained Shareholders'
share capital premium reserve payment loss funds
£°000 £'000 £'000 reserve £'000 £7000
Cnncorporation 50 - - - - 506
loss for the financial perioc - - - - (3,514] {3,514
Tetal comprehensive expense for the peried - - - - (3,514) (3.514)
Acauisiion of subsidiary undertaking 443 - 236 - - 672
Issue of shares 66 12,861 - - . 13,033
Share ‘ssue cosls - L8l - - - el
Buy back of preference shares (1} - - m
Total transactions with owners recognised in ec;;i_ir - 508 1) 583 736 - s 12733
2 July 2021 558 11,589 236 - 13,514 9,265
3 July 2021 558 11,989 236 - (2,514) 9,269
Profit for the financial period - - - - 128 128
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 128 128
Share-based payments - - - 95 - 95
Total transactions with owners recognised in equity - - - 95 - 85

1 July 2022 558 11,989 216 95 (3,386} 9,492
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

for the 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

1 G@Generalinformation

I'he principal activity of the Company is the provision of Group management services,

2 Bccounting Policies

To the extent that an accounting policy is relevant to both Virgin Wines UK ple Group and Company financial statements, refer to the Group
financial statements for disctosure of the accounting policy.

Investments

Fixed asset investments comprise investments by the Company in the shares of subsidiary undertakings. Al the cnd of cach financial period,
the Direclors review the carrying amount of the Company’s nvestments to determine whether there is any indication that those asscls have
suffered an impairment loss. They are stated at cost less provisions for diminution in value.

Statement of cash flows

The Company does not trade outside of the Group and does not have its own bank account. There are no cash Hows and therefore no
statement of cash flows is presented in these financial statements.

Profit for the financial period

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements are disciosed in nate 7 of the Group
financial statements.

The Company had no employees in the current financial period.

Fees paid to the Company's Directors for the current financial period are disclosed Jn note 9 of the Group accounts.

3 Investment

Investment in

subsidiary companies

£'000

At 2 July 2021 679
Increase in investment 95
At 1 July 2022 774

The increase ininvestment represents the cost in the current period of share-based payments granted to emiployees of Virgin Wine Online
Limited

The Company has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings:

Cont-,
Hearen g ‘o
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Do epal gl bty

Virgim Wines Holding Campany Limited England
Yirgia Wime Orhine Limited” Englana
TreWwarehouse Wine Comnany Lrmted™ | ngland

Lnit 3/-41 Romar Way Industriel Estate.
Preston, Lancas~ire PR2Z BBRD

Fourth Flocr St James ML Whiterrinrs,
Naraech, Norfolc NR3 TTN

Lant 37-41 Romar: Way Ind strial Fatate,
Meston, Larcashure PR2 5B

Intermediate holging Qrdinary Shares

company
Wing impart Ordinary Shares
ancddistrbiatio

Moan-tracheg Cidriary Shares

Loy

On 2 March 2021 the Company acquired the share capital of Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited in a share for share exchange
mvestment is recorded at the nominal value of the shares issued.

CThecostof

The Directors believe that the carying value of the investments is suppoi ted by their undetlying net assets and future irading forecast.
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4 Intangible assets
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Software
£000
st
On incerporation -
Additions 15
At 2 July 2001 15
Additons -
At 1 July 2022 15
Arcumulited amorusution andimpainm=ar
SN mcorpatation -
Charge for penoc :
At2 July 2071 1
Charge for penod
At1July 2022 4
Nel ook vaiue
1 July 2022 11
2 July 2021 14
Amertisation is charged to administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Softwareis amortised over its estimated useful economic life,
5 Trade and other teceivables
I duly 2 uly
20212 FEP
£000 £a6c
Amounts due frem Group nncertakings 9,463 9.448
Prepaynents 16 39
9,479 9,537

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand,
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

6 Tradeandotherpayables

1 July

2022

£'600
Amounts cwed to Group undertakings 495 £
Accruals and defered income 277 K57
772 Ll

The Directors consider the fair value of creditors 1o be equal te the bock value given their short term nature
Amounts owed to Group undertakings ate unsec ured, interest free and repayable on demand.

7 Sharecapital
Details of the Company share capilal can be found innote 25 of the consolidated financial statements.

8 Related party transactions
Amounts owed by and to subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 5 and € respectively, of the Company financial statements,
Related party transactions are disclosed in nate 27 of the Group finandial statements.

9 Ultimate parent undertaking

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no single controlling party.
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Notes
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Virgin Wines UK plc
Financial Statements for 52 week period ended 1 July 2022

Supplementary note to the Annual Report and Accounts

The annual accounts have been revised as at the date of the original annual accounts and not as at the date of revision and
accordingly do not deal with events between those dates.

The below supplementary note revises in certain respects the original annual accounts of the company and is to be treated
as forming part of those accounts.

Note Z Accounting policies (P80, helow last paragraph)
Section 479c Companies Act 2006 Audit exemption

The subsidiaries Virgin Wine Online Limited (registered number 03800762} and Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited
{registered number 07970057} are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of accounts under section
479A of the Companies Act 2006.

This supplementary note was approved by the board onlq‘thMay 2023,

%waow Wesr

Graeme Weir

Chief financial Officer



Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Virgin Wines UK ple

Report on the audit of the revised financial
statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Virgin Wines UK plc's revised group financial statements and revised company financial statements (the
“financial statements™):

¢ give a true and fair view, seen as at the date the original financial statements were approved, of the state of the group’s
and of the company's affairs as at 1 July 2022 and of the group’s profit and the group’s cash flows for the period from
2 July 2021 to 1 July 2022;

¢ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 seen as at the date the original financial
statements were approved, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as they have effect under the
Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2008.

We have audited the revised financial statements, included within the Revised Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 1 July 2022; the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended; and
the notes to the revised financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies, together with
the supplementary nate attached thereto. The revised financial statements replace the original financial statements approved
by the directors on 26 October 2022 and were circuiated to members on 26 October 2022.

The revised financial statements have been prepared under the Cornpanies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 and accordingly do not take account of events which have taken place after the date the original financial

statements were approved.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the revised financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
revised financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Emphasis of matter - revision of note 2 to the financial statements

In forming our opinion on the revised financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the supplementary note filed with these revised financial statements concerning the need for revision of
note 2. because of the correction of a misstatement in the originat financial statements. The original financial statements
were approved on 26 October 2022, and our previous auditors’ report was signed on that date. We have not performed a
subsequent events review for the pericd from the date of our previous auditors’ report o the date of this report.



Our audit approach

Qverview
Audit scope

e The Group consists of three reporting components, which are its legal entities, all incorporated and operating within the
UK. The revised Group financial statements are a consolidation of these three reporting components.

e We identified one component which required an audit of its compiete financial information, being the only trading entity
in the Group, Virgin Wine Online Limited.

e One further component, Virgin Wines UK plc, was also subject to audit procedures over accruals and administrative
expenses due to their contribution to the Group. The remaining companent, Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited, was
deemed inconsequential to the Group.

* As aresult of this scoping we obtained coverage over 100% of Group revenue and 99% of Group profit before tax.

Key audit matters

+ Goodwill impaimment assessment (group)
¢ Impairment assessment for investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from Group undertakings (parent)

Materiality

¢ Overall group materiality: £254,900 (2021: £260,000) based on 5% of profit before tax (2021: profit before tax and
exceptional items).

+ Overall company materiality: £94,920 (2021: £92,690) based on 1% of net assets.

» Performance materiality: £191,000 (2021: £195,0600) (group) and £71,190 (2021: £69,517) (company).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the revised
financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the revised financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit
of the revised financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinioh on these matters.

This is not 2 complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Goodwill impairment assessment (group) and Impairment assessment for investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from Group undertakings (parent) are new key audit matters this year. Impact of the Initial Public Offering ("IPO") (group
and parent}, which was a key audit matter last year, is no longer included because the IPO transaction was a one-off event
in the previous year. Qtherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill impairment assessmeant {yroup)

Refer to page 81 (Judgements in applying accounting Our work aver management's goodwill impairment
policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty) and | assessment included the following substantive procedures:
note 15.

The Group holds goodwill of £9,623,000 (2021: ® We evaluated the discounted cash flow model
£9,623,000). As required by UK-adopted international prepared by the directors, checking the relevant
accounting standards, specifically 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of inputs to supporting documentation and

assets’, it is the responsibility of the directors to test challenging management on key assumptions
goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more within the calculations. Qur challenge included

frequently if there are indicators of impairment.




The Group has only one cash-generating unit ("CGU")
which is \iirgin Wine Online Limited.

In performing their impairment assessment, the
directors determine the recoverable amount of the CGU
by estimating its value in use, using a discounted cash
flow model based on the Board-approved budget. The
mode! incorporates a number of assumptions, for
example, revenue growth, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") growth, the
terminal growth rate and the discount rate.

assessing whether management had considered
consumer trends and any associated ciimate
change considerations within their model;

® We obtained an external speciaiist report that
management used for the discount rate and using
our own valuation specialist, we challenged a
number of the key inputs in the report and
conciuded that the methodolegies adopted by the
specialist in forming the valuation were consistent
with industry practice and the discount rate used
was within our acceptable range;

® We recalculated management’s own sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions used in the value in
use assessment and also challenged the
appropriateness of management’s sensitivity
analysis. We also performed our own independent
breakeven analysis on the discount rate to
establish the point where an impairment existed;

® We assessed the accuracy of management's
historic forecasts against actual financial results to
assess the reascnableness of growth assumptions
used in the forecast;

® We considered publicly available information and
considered whether there were any views contrary
to those of management; and

® We checked the goodwill disclosures made in the
revised financial statements back to supporting
documentation.

Based on our work performed, we concluded that no
impairment was necessary {o the carrying value of goodwill,
and that appropriate disclosures have been made in the
revised financial statements.

impamment assessiment for investments i subgichanes
and amounts due from Group nndertakings (parent)

Refer to page 81 (Judgements in applying accounting
policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty) and
note 5 to the revised company financial statements.

The Company has amounts due from Group
undertakings of £9,463,000 (2021: £9,498,000) which
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
The carrying amourit of these intercompany loans is
assessed for impairment in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards, specifically
the IFRS 9 expected credit losses (“ECL") modet.

The directors have applied the ECL model to determine
if any provision to reduce the carrying amount of these
loans is required. For intercompany loans that are
repayable on demand, the expected credit loss is based
on the assumption that repayment of the loans is
demanded at the reporting date.The directors have
determined that the borrower has insufficient highly
liquid resources at the reporting date, therefore the
directors have considered the expected manner of
recovery and recovery period of the intercompany loans
({the Company’s ‘recovery scenarios'). The Company's
recovery strategy would require the setlement via
dividend distribution by Virgin Wine Online Limited.
Considering a number of factors, the directors

Our work over management's impairment assessment
relating to the Company’s invesiment in subsidiaries and
amounts due from Group undertakings included the following
substantive procedures:

& We evaluated management's recovery scenarios of
the amounts due from Group undertakings,
checking the relevant inputs to supporting
documentation and chailenging management cn
key assumptions within the cafculations;

e We checked that management’s assessment of
impairment for both balances used consistent
assumptions of future cash flows as those used for
the Group goodwill impairment assessment. Qur
procedures over these future cash flows are
described in the separate Key Audit Matter above;
and

* We checked the disclosures made in the revised
financial statements back to supporting
documentation.




determined that the ECL impaiment is inconsequential | Based on our work performed, we concluded that no
to the revised financial statements. impaiment of investments in subsidiaries or amounts due
from Group undertakings was necessary.

The Company has an investment balance of £774,000
{2021: £679,000).The existence of impairment
indicators was first considered. The carrying amount of
the investment was also assessed for impaimment in
accordance with IAS 36, after amounts due from Group
underiakings, using the same impairment model as for
the Group's goodwill, as described above.

In performing their impairment assessment, the
directors determine the recoverable amount of the
investment by estimating its value in use, using a
discounted cash flow model based on the Board-
approved budget. The model incorporates a number of
assumptions, for exampie, revenue growth, earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
("EBITDA’) growth, the terminal growth rate and the
discount rate.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the revised
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which they operate.

The Group consists of three reporting components, being one trading company and two holding companies, all of which are
accounted for by the Group finance team. These components are also each separate legal entities based in the UK. The
revised Group financial statements are a consolidation of these components.

We identified one component which required an audit of its complete financial information, being the only trading entity in the
Group, Virgin Wine Online Limited, based on its contribution to profit before tax.

One further component, Virgin Wines UK plc, was also subject to audit procedures over accruals and administrative expenses
due to their contribution to the Group. The remaining component, Virgin Wines Holding Company Limited, was deemed
inconsequential to the Group.

We also audited material consolidation joumnals. All audit work over the two in-scope components and the consolidation was
performed by the Group audit tearn.

As a result of this scoping we obtained coverage over 100% of Group revenue and 99% of Group profit before tax.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set cerfain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the revised financiat statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the revised financial statements as a whole as follows:



Revised financial statements - group Revised financial statements - company
Overalf £254,900 (2021: £260,000). £94 920 (2021: £92,690).
ety
Hany we 5% of profit before tax (2021: profit before 1% of net assets
determned it tax and exceptional items)
Rationsale for Profit before tax is considered to be a key Net assets is appropriate as the entity is not profit
benchimark metric used to assess the performance of oriented. The company holds an investment in the
applied the Group, and is a generally accepted rest of the Group. Net assets is considered a
auditing benchmark. generally acceptable auditing benchmark.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality.
The range of materiality aliocated across components was £200,000 to £223,000. Certain components were audited to a
local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiaiity in determining the scope
of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example
in determining sample sizes. Qur performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £191,000
(2021: £195,000} for the revised group financial statements and £71,190 (2021: £69,517) for the revised company financial
statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment
and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and conciuded that an amount at the upper end of our normat range
was apprepriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£12,700 (group audit) (2021: £13,000) and £4,746 (company audit) {2021: £4,635) as well as misstatements below those
amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

e obtaining and agreeing the directors' going concern assessment to the board-approved budget and ensuring that the
base case stenario indicates that the business generates sufficient cash flows to meets its long and short term
obligations;

» evaluating and assessing the process by which the Group’s future cash flow forecasts were prepared, including the
historical accuracy of forecasting;

» considering the extent to which the group's and company's future cash flows might be adversely affected by climate
change; assessing and challenging the key assumptions in the going concern model, including the forecast sales,
margins, capitat expenditure and other costs assumptions over the period to December 2023;

e ensuring the mathematical accuracy of the model;

+ evaluating the directors’ severe but plausible scenario of disruptions continuing into the future and ensuring this is
appropriately modelled through the cash flows;

» performing further sensitivity analysis on the severe but plausible scenario; and

= considering the adequacy of the disclosures in the revised financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the original financial statements were authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the revised financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
and the company's ability to continue as a going concern.



Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the revised financiat statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Cur apinion on the revised financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the revised financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the revised financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
incansistency or material misstatement, we are required 1o perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material
misstatement of the revised financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ report, we aiso considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors’ report for the period ended 1 July 2022 is consistent with the revised financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ report.

Responsibilities for the revised financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the revised financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the revised financial statements, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the revised financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of revised financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the revised financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cencem
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the revised financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the revised financial statements as a whoie are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assuranca, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these revised financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud, is detailed below.



Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to tax legislation and the Companies Act 2006, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance
might have a material effect on the revised financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities
for fraudulent manipulation of the revised financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that
the principal risks were related to inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue, profit before tax, or EBITDA, and
managermient bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team inciuded:

e obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and how the Group is complying
with that framework;

» discussions with management and the Audit Committee, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-

compliance with laws and reguiation and fraud;

reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, where available;

reading any key correspondence with regulatory authorities that has taken place in the year,

incorporating an elemienl uf unpredictabllity into our audit procedures;

identifying and testing joumal entries, including those with unusual account combinations relating to the principal fraud

risks set out above; and

challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described abave. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the revised
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing compiete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete
populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or rigk characteristics. in other cases,
we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population frem which the sample is selected.

A further description of auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsrespaonsibilities. In the context of an audit of revised financial statements, in respect of our conclusion
relating to going concern, we are only required to consider audit evidence up to the date of our original auditors’ report. In
other respects, this description forms part of our auditors' report.

We are also required to report whether in our apinion the original financiaf statements failed to comply with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 in the respects identified by the directors. The audit of revised financial statements includes the
performance of procedures fo assess whether the revisions made by the directors are appropriate and have been properly
made.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
the Companies {Revision of Defective Accounts and Reporis) Regutations 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Opinion prescribed by the Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008

The original financial statements for the period ended 1 July 2022 failed to comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 in the respects identified by the directors in the statement contained in the supplementary note to these revised
financial statemenis.

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report te you if, in our opinion:



» we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e the revised company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Torohin Shdlibee

Jonathan Studholme (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

24 May 2023



